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Corporate Information

AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Chairman) (appointed with effect from
31 December 2024)

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Zheng (resigned on 31 December 2024)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li Huanbin (appointed with effect from 31 December 2024)
Ms. Gu Jing (resigned on 31 December 2024)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed with effect from 21 June 2024)

Ms. Li Rong (appointed with effect from 28 February 2025)
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed with effect from 21 June 2024)

Ms. Li Rong (appointed with effect from 28 February 2025)
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Li Rong (Committee Chairman) (appointed with effect from
28 February 2025)

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed with effect from 21 June 2024)

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Committee Chairman)
(tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Xie Cilong (Committee Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 21 June 2024)
Mr. Rui Meng
Ms. Li Rong (appointed with effect from 28 February 2025)
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman)
(resigned on 21 June 2024)
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Committee Chairman) (appointed with effect from
31 December 2024)

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed with effect from 21 June 2024)

Ms. Li Rong (appointed with effect from 28 February 2025)

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Tian Ming (Committee Chairman)
(resigned on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Zheng (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Gao Yuan

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,

PO Box HM 1179, Hamilton HM EX

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 406, 4/F.

8 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 106

WEBSITE
http://www.landsea.hk
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Definitions

“2014 “Share Award Scheme” the restricted share award scheme of the Company adopted on 2 July 2014
[ZZE—MERD REF S RABRZZE—WF+ A = BEMNKR SRR RE RT3

“2024 Share Award Scheme” the share award scheme of the Company adopted on 2 July 2024
[ ME D RERH 3 RABNR T -MF+ B - BEMANR D EETE

“AGM”
EREFAE]

“Audit Committee”
[B%REEE]

“Authorised Representative”

[EERK]

“Awarded Shares”

[ 2R n

“Board”

=350

“Bye-Laws”

(AR

“CG Code”
[EERSTA

“Chairman”

(7]

“Companies Act of Bermuda”

[BRZEQFDE]

“Companies Ordinance”

IPNCIRESHN

the annual general meeting of the Company
RARRRBAFRE

the audit committee of the Company
KARBEZEZEE

Authorised representative of the Company as required under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules
and the authorised representative of the Company for accepting on the Company’s behalf
service of process or notice to be served on the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
FARBEIBHRRENRRARERSE  URBRBEEBEOFE2E R AIEHIFE 16
HREXARANRBBEIEM R AARRRIRENARREF X G IB AR R FRER
=

the Shares granted or to be granted under the 2014 Share Award Scheme
RIZ =T —MEFRR ) RN 81 R TR B ARG

the board of Directors

BB

the bye-laws of the Company, as amended from time to time

RRB 2 AEAR (EAEHEET)

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

LR B ERCFrE R B AT A

the chairman of the Board

EEZREE

the Companies Act of Bermuda, as amended from time to time
BRERAE (KIREE])

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
&AM 622 F N AHED)
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“Company” or

“Landsea Green Management”

(AR K EAFF AR B E I

“Company Secretary”
[AERE ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ESG"
[ESG]

“ESG Committee”
[ESGZEZ

“Executive Committee”

(TR Eg

“FY2024”
[—Z —BFE |

“GFA”
[EEmiAl

“Greensheid”

[ Greensheid

“Group”

NS

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Landsea Group”

[BAEF & E ]

Definitions

Landsea Green Management Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00106)

AFFEBERERAR  RAREAMKIZ2BRAT  EROMREMER L/ (&
3R 5% : 00106)

Company secretary of the Company as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
FHRAIEI KB ENEARG AEME

the directors of the Company

RRRIZESR

Environmental, social and governance
RIR-HERER

The ESG Committee of the Company
RNARIESGEZEE

the executive committee of the Company
RARIITEZE®

the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_WF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

gross floor area
REEE

Greensheid Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, and a company indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Greensheid Corporation - REBH#B R HSIMAII2BRAR  r AAFEEEESD
EWA

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NCIDS @Y )= PNC]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B F B RITTH R

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BA&F & B g 19 B BR A 7]), a company established in the PRC

and a substantial shareholder of the Company
BISFEEROBRAR  RABRIKIZZ AFIRAAAFERRE

MEReERERAD _S_NEER 7



Definitions
&

“Landsea Green Life”

[BARS AR 2 4 E

“LLandsea Homes”

[Landsea Homes |

“Landsea International”
[ Landsea International ]
“Listing Rules”

[ EmAR A

“Model Code”
[mEsral

“Mr. Tian”
[ A %A

“NASDAQ’
[ iz 5 |

“Nomination Committee”

[RBZBE]

“PRC”
[

“Project Management Services”

[P iR

“Remuneration Committee”

[FrINZ B g

8 Landsea Green Management Limited

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1965)

SR ERBERAR  RESHSTMK L2 BRAR - HR&RM B FER
Ei (B R5E - 1965)

Landsea Homes Corporation, a company incorporated under the State of Delaware in the
USA and the common stock of which are listed on NASDAQ, and is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (symbols: LSEA)

Landsea Homes Corporation + A EBIF R = N FEM A LA AR EEBRAMETET
FH - WAARRFINERENE LN E (FHMRIE - LSEA)

Landsea International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Landsea International Holdings Limited - R BB R SHMAZ 2 BER A A - BH
SEEREEEESR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B2 Prg 7 E AR Al
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

ETRAIMERCIFME LM HITABERTETES X HHIRETRI

Mr. Tian Ming
AL

National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations capital market
ZH2BBRSFRIEHGEBDREELRTS

the nomination committee of the Company
RARZREEE®

the People’s Republic of China
g AR ERE

Project development and management services

T B % R EE RS

the remuneration committee of the Company
KRRz HMWEES

Annual Report 2024



“Restricted Share(s)”

BRI A A7

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
(787 M ' 15RH]

“Share(s)”
[ &1

“Share Option Scheme 2012”
[T FERE 2

“Share Option Scheme 2022”
[T = - FRERE S

“sq.m.”

[ 755K

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 P

“substantial shareholder”

[E2RR]

“United States”
[ ]

“Us$”
3

Definitions

the Shares granted or to be granted under the 2014 Share Award Scheme which are
subject to restrictions

RIE =T — MR R8I 3l TR E 2 ZRFI D

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR RBZZEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
EBEDEST BES MAERD

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
RAFIRAF GREEO0.01 BT HilAx

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 25 April 2012
AARRZE—ZFWNA -+ R HREMNZBERETS

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 30 June 2022

RRAFR T ZFRA=THERAZBRESE

square meters

FHK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMERSMERRQA]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB ETRRIE T RE

the United States of America
EFRE RE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States

X XBZEAEEH

MEReERERAD _S_NEER 9
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Major Events and Accolades of
Landsea Green Management in 2024
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20235 B £ HRMF T HFRRELRA
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B.EREH, d
b, LU B!

Landsea won the “Wuxi 2023 Outstanding Real Estate Enterprise
for High-Quiality Development”.

Landsea Fenghuali (BA 5% & 2 48 ) was selected for inclusion in
Jiangsu Province’s “Demonstration Casebook on Application of
Planning and Land Support Policies for Promoting Construction
of Improved Housing”.

Rungao Landsea e Shangxianli (B 5 B3 7% « 4 B 42) won the
Gold Award of 2024 American TITAN Real Estate Awards for
interior design.

Landsea ® Baixianting (B 5 ¢ B & ) project was awarded
as the annual construction quality and safety management

benchmark project.

Landsea Jinzhong Lake One (BA 5% & $E/M= 9% ) project awarded
1-star green building home.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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Major Events and Accolades of
Landsea Green Management in 2024

AR B BEIE 2024 F KRB HEKE
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6. In terms of architectural design, Poetry Clouds (£ E&1H) 6. ZEEFUBEBERERTHE - UEBEEBA

project won the Gold Award of 2024 Muse Design Award for its BEMBENERANGESMER - L2024
resort-style yacht club space with advanced artistic aesthetics. BHEHIRETREHE -

7. Landsea Poetry Clouds project was honored as “2024 Emerging 7.  BAFFSE L i$1H 18 B 7£12023-2024 EH E B+
Property of the Year” in the “2023-2024 Wuxi Radio and AL | R B[ 2024 F 12 A% | LA o
Television Residential Culture Ceremony”.

8. Landsea was honored as one of the “Top 30 Real Estate 8. A& & [2024FhEEMECERELES

Enterprises in China in terms of Comprehensive Capability of BEITOP30] ~ [2024F B S EPENRE
Agency Construction in 2024”, “Top 30 Real Estate Enterprises G hE (B 1E 1 TOP30 ] ~ [2024 F A B 5 & 1
in China in terms of Brand Communication Power of Agency FRFEIILIHEETOPI0] ©

Construction in 2024” and “Top 30 Real Estate Enterprises in
China in terms of New Scale of Agency Construction in 2024”.

MEHeERERAE _B_DEER 3



Major Events and Accolades of
Landsea Green Management in 2024

B EBEIE2024FRELHEE

{xEa}

MAJOR EVENTS

In February, Landsea recruited city partners across the country to
expand the construction market with flexible and diversified forms of
cooperation.

In April, the “First China Real Estate Agency Construction Summit” was
successfully held in Shenzhen. Mr. Huang Zheng, Vice President of
China Real Estate Association and President of Landsea Real Estate,
attended the summit and participated in the roundtable dialogue as the
representative of the leading brand of real estate construction quality.
Mr. Huang Zheng said that from To B to To C, the responsibility of
the construction company is to unify the needs of both sides, and
professionalism and open-mindedness are both very important.

14 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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At the end of April, more than 100 groups of customers participated
in the lottery for the maiden opening of Landsea Poetry Clouds, which
was jointly developed by Landsea and Liang Cheng Mei Jing (22, 3<
5 ) of Liangxi Urban Development Group (222,25 [&), and it was
the first project in Wuxi in 2024 to be opened by lottery. With 80% sold
in just 1.5 hours, the project won the first place in terms of transaction
amount for new projects entering the market in the first half of 2024 in
Wuxi.

In late July, the first phase of Dongyang Landsea ® Hupan Yundi (3
[% BA 35 o 5 BE 52 L) project was delivered in batches, honoring the
commitment to the owners in terms of time and quality. The project
achieved sales performance of over 80% in its first launch, winning
the triple crown of sales amount, sales area and number of units sold
in September of the same year, making it a phenomenal and popular
property in Dongyang.

On 24 December, Landsea celebrated its 23rd anniversary and will
continue to consolidate its core competitiveness of “green building +
construction agency”.

Major Events and Accolades of
Landsea Green Management in 2024
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

o [

SENSREEAEBRN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of
the Board and the Authorised Representative on 31 December 2024.
Mr. Zhou is currently the chairman and the legal representative of
Landsea Group and the vice president of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for the management of manpower and administration,
customer service and reverse review of the Company. Mr. Zhou joined
the Company in April 2007 as the deputy director of the president’s
office. From May 2008 to October 2020, Mr. Zhou held various
positions such as office director, compliance officer, customer-
service director, general project manager, deputy general manager,
standing deputy general manager and general manager of regional
companies, mainly responsible for manpower and administration,
customer relationship, operation and management of various projects
and regional companies. Since October 2020, Mr. Zhou has been the
vice president of the Company, responsible for the management of
manpower and administration, customer service and reverse review.
In January 2024, Mr. Zhou was appointed as the person in charge of
supply chain management, while his other duties remained unchanged.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in economics from Anhui
Finance and Trade College (Z &8 Z £x) in 1997 and an executive
master of business administration (EMBA) from China Europe
International Business School in September 2019.

16 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 61, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 31 December
2024. Mr. Li has extensive experience in the banking and real estate
industries. Mr. Li served as section chief and director at the Bank of
China Huainan Branch in 1988 and vice president of Bank of China
Chizhou Branch in 2008, then he worked as department general
manager and president of Hefei City Sub-branch of Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank in 2009. Mr. Li has been the deputy general
manager of Anhui Jindadi Commercial Development Co., Ltd (Z#& &
A X % R AR A A)) since 2022.

Mr. Li graduated from Party School of Anhui Provincial Committee
of C.P.C (FF £ Z# & & ER) majoring in economic management
with a master degree in 2009. Mr. Li is an assistant accountant and
economist in China

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 27 May 2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. Mr. Rui graduated from University
of International Relations ([ B8 & 22 Fx) in the PRC in July 1990,
where he obtained a bachelor degree in international economics.
He also received a master of science in economics from Oklahoma
State University in the United States as well as a master of business
administration and a doctor of philosophy in business administration
from the University of Houston in the United States in May 1993,
December 1996 and August 1997 respectively. Mr. Rui has been a
Professor of Finance and Accounting at CEIBS since January 2012,
and has held the title of Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance at CEIBS
from October 2015 to May 2019 and Parkland Chair in Finance at
CEIBS from May 2019. Mr. Rui has been professionally designated
as a Certified Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment
Management and Research since September 2000 and a Financial
Risk Manager by the Global Association of Risk Professionals since
April 2010.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

EEKREREEASBN

He serves as an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of each of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of Dexin Services Group Limited
(stock code: 2215; a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since June 2021 and an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of China Education
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 839; a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange) and he has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee of Country Garden
Services Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6098; a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since May 2018. Mr.
Rui also serves as an independent non-executive director of Sichuan
Languang Justbon Services Group Co., Ltd. (a company formerly
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and withdrew its
listing status on 19 August 2021) from 17 June 2021 to 19 August
2021. Mr. Rui has been an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd. (_E
TEE(EE)RHBERAQR) (stock code: 600843; a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from June 2017 to June 2023,
an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1138 and stock code: 600026; a company listed on both the
main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
respectively) from June 2015 to June 2021 and an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Midea
Group (R EE 15 B R A 7]) (stock code: 000333; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from September 2015 to
September 2018 and an independent director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Shanghai Winner Information Technology Co., Inc.
(EBIEME BRI R, AR RG] (stock code: 300609; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2015 to
September 2020.

18 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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Aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
21 June 2024. Mr. Xie has extensive experience in fund management
and business investment. From May 2016 to May 2018, Mr. Xie
was appointed as an investment manager of Shenzhen Lihe Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. (&I T & Bl E & & B R A Al). Subsequently,
he has become a business partner of Fortune Venture Capital Co.
Ld. (R EEP B AIZXEE TR AR A A]) since June 2018.
Mr. Xie obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering Physics from
Tsinghua University in July 2010 and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from HSBC Business School of Peking University in
June 2016. Mr. Xie is a certified public accountant in the PRC and
has passed the securities practitioner qualification examination, the
futures practitioner qualification examination and the fund practitioner
qualification examination.

Aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
28 February 2025. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
from the School of Management of Fudan University in 2006, and
obtained her practitioner qualification from the Asset Management
Association of China (AMAC) in October 2016 and the qualification
certificate of secretary to board of directors awarded by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in April 2019. From July 2006 to June 2016, Ms. Li
served at the Guangdong Branch of China Construction Bank, where
she successively served as the deputy general manager of the personal
finance department and the president of sub-branch. Subsequently,
she has been engaged as a financial writer since July 2016 and has
been serving as a lecturer for the cadre education and training program
at Zhejiang University since August 2023.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mao Jiangjun (E3I E) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 45, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. Mr. Mao is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Xichang
real estate company. Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2014 as the
general manager of the Chengdu real estate company. Since February
2020, Mr. Mao has served as the vice president and the general
manager of the Chengdu real estate company, responsible for its
overall operation and management. In September 2023, Mr. Mao
was appointed as the general manager of the Western real estate
company. He obtained a master’s degree in mechanical and electrical
engineering from Zhejiang University in March 2005 and an EMBA from
CEIBS in April 2019. In February 2024, Mr. Mao was appointed as the
general manager of the Xichang real estate company and the person in
charge of the Western real estate company. In February 2025, Mr. Mao
assumed the role of the general manager of the Xichang Real Estate
Company and ceased to be responsible for the Western real estate
company.

Mr. Xu Aibing (& E ££) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 45, is the vice president of
Landsea Green Management. Mr. Xu is primarily responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Nanjing real estate company.
Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2018 as the deputy general manager
of the management centre for supply chain. From February 2019 to
February 2020, Mr. Xu served as its general manager. Since February
2020, Mr. Xu has been the assistant to president of Landsea Green
Management and the general manager of the management centre for
supply chain, responsible for operation. Since September 2021, Mr.
Xu has concurrently served as the general manager of the Nanjing real
estate company, responsible for its overall operation and management.
He has served as the vice president as well as the general manager
of the Nanjing real estate company since February 2023. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from Southeast University in
2001.
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Mr. You Tianlong (i X %) (“Mr. You”), aged 43, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. Mr. You is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Suzhou-
Shanghai real estate company, in charge of the business development
centre of the real estate headquarters and as a member of the
investment and development committee. Mr. You joined the Group in
March 2018 as the deputy general manager of the Xi'an real estate
company. From January 2021 to September 2023, Mr. You served
as the general manager of the Xi’an real estate company. Since
September 2023, Mr. You has been the assistant to the president
of Landsea Green Management and the general manager of the
Suzhou-Shanghai real estate company. Since July 2024, Mr. You
has been in charge of the business development centre of the real
estate headquarters and served as a member of the investment and
development committee. Since January 2025, Mr. You has been
the vice president and general manager of the Suzhou-Shanghai
real estate company, in charge of the business development centre
of the real estate headquarters and a member of the investment
and development committee. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering management from Harbin Institute of Technology in 2004.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Gao was appointed as the board secretary, the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative on 30 December 2022.

Ms. Gao joined the Company in December 2020 and serves as an
investor relations officer. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Gao
served as the executive director of the board secretary office and the
executive director of investor relations in Fosun Tourism Group (stock
code: 1992.hk) and the head of capital market in Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169.hk).

Ms. Gao obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from the Central
University of Finance and Economics in 2005 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Peking University in 2016. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. She is
also a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional, a
Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) Charterholder. Ms. Gao is now studying Juris Doctor in
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Gao has over 15 years’ experience in investor relations and
corporate governance of listed companies. The Company meets the
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s property development business covers both the PRC
and the United States. It upheld the development strategy of “Product-
differentiation, Asset-light transformation and Revenue-diversification”
and leveraged its resource endowments to further achieve capability
of green property products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the
advantages of products diversification, the Group actively expanded
various projects focusing on Project Management Services to achieve
revenue diversification.

For the expansion of business development, during the year ended
31 December 2024, China Real Estate* (4 Bl i ) secured three
development and sales-type property projects in Wuxi and Lishui,
respectively, with an additional saleable area of 397,000 sg.m. and
a saleable value of approximately RMB10.62 billion; all of the newly
acquired projects were entrusted Project Management Services
projects. Meanwhile, the new Project Management Services contracts
amounted to approximately RMB110 million (2023: approximately
RMB460 million).

In 2024, the contracted sales of China Real Estate amounted to
approximately RMB5.83 billion (2023: approximately RMB10.52 billion).
The contracted area was 289,344 sg.m. (2023: 569,601 sg.m.).
Of these, the total contracted sales of projects with property sales
interests amounted to approximately RMB746 million, with contracted
sales area of 30,293 sg.m. at an average price of RMB24,620 per
sg.m.. The contracted sales were mainly from the cities of Wuxi,
Chongaing, Chengdu and Jiaxing in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR ERE Sl

No.
s

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

24

External contract projects
in the PRC in 2024
2024 FHEIH I ENIER

Nanjing Zixi Mansion
AR E BRI

Hefei Landsea’s Hi-tech Court
SRR = B

Yixin Xindu Mansion

B EET AT

Wuxi Industrial Fabric Factory Land Parcel B
B T XM MBH LR
Haining Qasis Jing Yuan
BEGEMIRR

Wuhan Xihua Mansion

B EREE

Chengdu Xihua Mansion

P BB ZE T

Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue
P ER A 55 25 1

Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion
BXCED _EAREREE
Chengdu Le Mansion

P EBLE T

Chengdu Xihua Tianxi

P AP ER 22 K EE
Chongqing Xiyue Mansion
EEERMAT

Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan
REFRRE

Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion(B)
RAEZHEE(B)
Shijiazhuang Future Block
ARERKRER
Zhangjiagang Le Mansion
R R B I

Wuxi Xiyunli

miHRER

Total

At

Landsea Green Management Limited

Equity
Holding
& £ £

20%

49%

26%

1%

20%

30%

33%

100%

33%

76%

60%

100%

75%

100%

26%

50%

10%
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Average

Contracted Contracted
Sales Contracted Sales
Amounts Sales GFA  Selling Price
&R ERHE EEBE
HESHE EEmE EHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AE®ETFT) (F7K) (ANR®TT)
317 - -

2,504 - -
5,615 - -
518,744 20,566 25,223
14,267 1,036 13,771
3,305 - -
2,447 - _
14,854 1,073 13,843
235 - -

3,159 - -

300 - -
47,868 3,029 15,803
180 - -

1,008 - -

874 - -

1,365 - -
128,782 4,589 28,063
745,824 30,293 24,620




In 2024, China Real Estate had reserve projects with a total
saleable area of 5,459,056 sg.m. and an expected saleable value
of approximately RMB117.13 billion, and equity-held projects with
a saleable area of 424,792 sg.m. and an expected saleable value
of approximately RMB12.86 billion. In which, the attributable equity
portion had a saleable area of 270,649 sg.m. and an expected
saleable value of approximately RMB7.46 billion. China Real Estate
had secured a total of 78 Project Management Services projects, with
a saleable area of 5,034,264 sg.m. and an expected saleable value of
approximately RMB104.27 billion.

In addition, China Real Estate held leased properties with total GFA of
42,244 sq.m. and equity-held projects with GFA of 22,149 sg.m..

City of accumulated land reserve Total  Developed  Developing

No. in the PRC as at the end of December 2024 GFA GFA GFA

N%E128 K BRI RE%

FH o REZFLRET HEEER NEER NEER

fsqm) fsqm) fsqm)

(FHK) (FHK) (FHK)

1 Shanghal 262,666 262,666 -
9

2 Nanjing 2,223,203 1,898,751 324,452
AR

3 Hangzhou 161,440 - 161,440
M

4 Chengdu 2,611,553 2,042,900 523,634
b

5 Tianjin 363,770 157,028 178,809
RE

6 Xian 383,061 56,918 327,133
AR

7 Chongaing 796,790 464,488 190,585

8 Wuhan 220,143 45,600 174,543
RE

9 Hefei 335,758 278,360 57,398
s

10 Changsha 266,216 80,301 112,098
&Y

Management Discussion and Analysis
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oA EMESELAADELEZETDES
42244 F K - R E R S0 R EE IR A22,149

GFA for
future Saleable Saleable
development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
ARER
NEER BEEE BERR TEEE TERR
(sqm) (RMB'000) (sq.m) (RMB'000) (sqm)
(Frk) (ARETR) (Fhx)  (ARETT) (FHK)
- 3,811,249 167,993 89,542 -
- 36,400,069 1,348,606 9,318,857 217,829
- 1,173,836 55,679 1,063,734 36,419
45019 22,608,980 1,572,122 4,339,919 339,846
17,933 1,623,953 111,965 2873675 136,859
- 1,367,068 71,391 3,075,850 188,314
141,747 5,510,206 424,836 3,353,494 230,243
- 2,656,205 125,105 1,075,015 28,935
- 3,361,451 202,319 479,132 34,266
73817 1,035,522 162,644 3480 -
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City of accumulated land reserve Total
No. in the PRC as at the end of December 2024 GFA
NUERAK
e PERTLRED BEEEHR
fso.m)
(F5%)
11 Shijazhuang 166,336
RFH
12 Suzhou 2,404,358
&
13 W 2,273,166
s
14 Changzhou 391,851
B
15 Nantong 763,709
i
16 Jinhua 576,344
17 Ningbo 216,549
£t
18 Jiaxing 314,282
R
19 Lishu 129,997
ES
20 Tal'an 208,757
NS
21 Taizhou 174,497
M
2 Zhongshan 843,312
il
28 Foshan 114,514
ll
24 Huizhou 139,615
BVl
2 Kaffeng 218,468
)
26 Landsea Green Management Limited

Developed
GFA
BRI
NXER
fsqm)
(F5)
122,685
786,329
959,379
391,851

43,381

267,084

20,461

302,574

82,607

Developing
GFA
BRY
NEER
fsqm)
(Fh5%)
43,651
1,374,228

1,015,697

200,587

309,260

216,549

123,069

120,997

143,682

174497

242,064

56,119

130,615

38,319
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GFA for
future
development
ARER
NEER
(sam)
(F7K)

243,801

208,190

519,741

30614

208474

58,395

167,542

Value Sold
BEKE
(RMB'000)
(AR®TTT)
1,082,267
14,716,279
13,622,175
6,963,407
820,633
2,886,359
564,779

2,128,006

102,663

2,216,746

53,036

1,306,188

GFA Sold
BEAE
(sam)
(F7k)
14,875
541,645
632,013
247,762
83,327
241,798
47841

195,565

4,462

224,724

4,189

163,589

Saleable
Value

TEEHE
RVB000)
(AR&FT)

18,116

29,659,519

25,129,005

1,206,699

7,320,195

1,992,941

1,639,491

799,239

1,627,984

2,519,310

860,770

7,408,000

1,142,620

1,024,444

912,398

Saleable
GFA

TERR

sy
(F5%)

1,186,508

886,041

34995

478,183

129,297

17357

29,006

60,348

109,605

44,810

384,810

79,299

90,565

58,623



No.

5

26

2

28

29

30

32

3

34

City of accumulated land reserve

in the PRC as at the end of December 2024
NUERAR

RERTLEAT

Hual'an
EZ
Xianyang
Zhangzhou
2
Yancheng
#i
Chuzhou
B
Zhangjiakou
FxA
Mianyang
Sugian
EE
Yingtan
EE

Total
e

Of Which: Subtotal of Equity-held Project
R BHESER T

Subtotal of Project Management
Services Projects
RERERBER NG
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GFA for
Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
GFA GFA GFA  development ~ Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA

BRI R4 ARER
HERSER NEER NEER NEER BEEE BERR TEEE TERR
(sqm) (sqm) (sqm) (sqm) (RMB'000) (sq.m) (RMB'000) (sqm)
(FA%) (Fh%) (F7k) (Fhk) (AREFT) (Fax) (ARETT) (Fh %)
33,287 - 33,287 - 64,344 7423 82,114 9,220
443619 61965 240,294 141,360 2,333,715 222578 1,417,087 124,65
103,075 - 103,075 - 51914 2,057 1,022,916 53,716
450,924 123,120 58,147 269,657 2,095,292 165,466 2,706,989 237,755
157,138 - 105,138 52,000 258,698 44,568 472,982 59,816
134,908 - 134,908 - 613,669 87,420 397,787 12,597
115409 115409 - - 917,649 84,057 55,440 -
425,143 425,143 - - 3,071,741 299,590 90,968 -
96,139 - 96,139 - - - 751,560 58,839
18,554,987 9,169,213 7,028,484 2,357,290 136,078,098 7657609 117,131,312 5,459,066
5,787,062 4,561,981 1,110,133 14938 57,517,634 3677491 12,862,551 424792
12,767,935 4,607,232 5,918,351 2,242,352 78,560,564 3,980,118 104,268,761 5,034,264
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the real estate development business in the United States, Landsea
Homes Corporation (“Landsea Homes”) has successively entered
Greater New York, California, Arizona, Texas and Florida.

In 2024, Landsea Homes contracted a total of 2,634 homes with
contracted sales amounting to approximately RMB9.46 billion.
Contracted sales were mainly in first- and second-tier gateway cities in
the United States.

Upon completion of the disposal of 2,434,783 ordinary shares of
Landsea Homes by the Group on 8 March 2024, Landsea Homes
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from Project Management Services of approximately
RMB387 million (2023: approximately RMB420 million), from sale of
properties of approximately RMB1.34 billion (2023: approximately
RMB8.62 billion) and rental income of approximately RMB3 million
(2023: approximately RMB3 million), which in aggregate was
approximately RMB1.73 billion (2023: approximately RMB9.04 billion).
The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB312 million
(2023: approximately RMB1.11 billion) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 18.1% (2023: approximately 12.3%).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised revenue
of approximately RMB1.73 billion (2023: approximately RMB9.04
billion). In which, the consolidated subsidiaries of the Group recognised
revenue from sales of properties of approximately RMB1.34 billion
(2023: approximately RMB8.62 billion), mainly attributable to Chengdu
Jianshe North Road, Suzhou Liu Garden in the PRC, and Lavender,
Tirador, Fontana, Sunrise, Alameda, Ellis etc. in the United States. The
average selling price in the PRC was approximately RMB13,527 (2023:
approximately RMB20,366) per sg.m., while the average selling price in
the United States was approximately RMB19,620 (2023: approximately
RMB18,828) per sg.m..
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised Project
Management Services income of approximately RMB387 million (2023:
approximately RMB420 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB126 million (2023: approximately
RMB547 million). The decrease in selling expenses was mainly
attributable to the decrease in overall expenses due to the
deconsolidation of Landsea Homes and the further reduction in
expenses by China Real Estate.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB330 million (2023:
approximately RMB973 million). The decrease in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to the decrease in overall expenses
due to the deconsolidation of Landsea Homes and the further control
of various expenses by China Real Estate.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, net provision for impairment
loss on financial assets of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB184 million (2023: approximately RMB194 million). The Group’s
net provision for impairment losses on financial assets was provided
using the expected credit loss rate for financial assets such as trade
and other receivables in accordance with the standard requirement of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s net other losses
amounted to approximately RMB1.5 billion (2023: approximately
RMB53 million). This was primarily due to losses of RMB863 million
from the disposal of subsidiary Landsea Homes and further losses
of RMB547 million from continued reduction of its equity interest in
Landsea Homes after losing control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded interest
expenses (excluding finance charges recognised on receipts in
advance) of approximately RMB205 million (2023: approximately
RMB754 million). The capitalisation rate of interest expenses during
this period was approximately 27.1% (2023: approximately 69.2%).
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the expensed finance cost of
the Group was approximately RMB150 million (2023: approximately
RMB232 million). For the year ended 31 December 2024, the interest
income of the Group was approximately RMB31 million (including
interest income from amounts due from joint ventures and associates)
and the net finance cost was approximately RMB119 million (2023:
approximately RMB200 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s share of net profit
of joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately RMB415
million (2023: share of net profit of joint ventures and associates
amounting to approximately RMB58 million), mainly due to the change
of Landsea Homes from a subsidiary to an associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately RMB1.51 billion (2023: net loss of approximately
RMB863 million), mainly arising from the disposal of equity interests in
Landsea Homes during the year.

Cash positions

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB616 million (as at 31
December 2023: approximately RMB1.09 billion).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was approximately 0.5 times (as at 31
December 2023: approximately 1.3 times).
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As at 31 December 2024, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2.81 billion (as at 31 December 2023:
approximately RMB7.21 billion). The decrease in total indebtedness
was mainly due to the deconsolidation of Landsea Homes during the
current period. The indebtedness of the Group primarily consists of
shareholder loans, bank borrowings, senior notes and EB-5 financing.
As at 31 December 2024, total net debts were approximately
RMB2.25 billion (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB6.23
billion). As at 31 December 2024, the proportion of short-term debts
was approximately 47.4% (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
27.3%) and that of long-term debts was approximately 52.6% (as at 31
December 2023: approximately 72.7%).

The Group has been striving to optimise its capital and debt structure.
The Group’s debt to assets ratio (total debt divided by total assets) was
approximately 30.1% as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December
2023: approximately 37.3%). In addition, the debt to assets ratio of the
Group net of advance payment received was approximately 117.3%
as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
89.3%). The management will monitor the capital and debt structure
of the Group on a regular basis to mitigate its exposure to the risk of
gearing.

As at 31 December 2024, borrowings of the Group were secured by
one or a combination of the following items: restricted cash, property,
plant and equipment, properties under development, investment
properties, property held for sales, leasehold land of delivered
properties, corporate debts, equity interests in certain subsidiaries of
the Group and guarantee provided by the major Shareholders of the
Company. Senior notes were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company. EB-5 loans were guaranteed by a subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, there are no charges on the Group’s assets.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while
that of the subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar, and that
of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi. As at 31 December
2024, the corresponding exchange rate changes in the internal funds
transfer of the Group resulted in book exchange gains recorded by
the Group of approximately RMB42 million (2023: exchange losses of
approximately RMB49 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 63.5% (as at 31 December 2023:
approximately 53.8%) of the total borrowings of the Group. The Group
will monitor the trend of interest rates in the market closely and seek
to adopt appropriate risk management measures for mitigating the
exposure to the interest rate risk.

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB574 million (as at 31 December
20283: approximately RMB726 million). As at 31 December 2024, there
were certain corporate guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the
Group for each other in respect of their borrowings. The management
considered that the subsidiaries had sufficient financial resources to
fulfill their obligations. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024.

32 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

RZZBEZMF+ZA=+—H  xEEZRE KA
CEHEEVEZBRHBEUARE - BLRkETAE
BHE - AEEEXENBARGCEREANEAET
EAMBRAICEAME ABE  hE AR E
NRFEEAEAEARE KT -_WF+=A
=+ AEEABESERIEENELESEHF
EXT$EIEEEERHSZ S AANREE42(ET (=
—=F - EHEBORARK0491ET) -

R-Z-mE+=A=+—B AEEEEFEY
R TS BB 3K 4963.5% (R~ B~ =&+~ 7
S+—B#9538%) - AEEEE R BRI
BB RE B RA B RRE B - LURER
EER -

AEEEZREBEBEAIE REVEERLHE
BEFBEANZEFER CEREEREER - R
“EONFET A=t B RTHEERDABAR
B4R TR _FE_=F+_RA=1+—HB X8
AR¥T726(87T) - M-FT_MF+_A=1+—8"

AEBEMBARREFEELREE TEERER - &

BEERSMBRRE TNV BEREMNEER - i
EdEN RZFB_OF+_A=1+—H0 A&KHE
WEREERNLREME -



SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During FY2024, the Group had the following significant investments,

material acquisitions and disposals:

@

On 8 January 2024 (New York time), Landsea Homes (a then
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Tommy McAden,
Lisa McAden and McAden Enterprises, Inc. (collectively, the
“Sellers”) and Antares Acquisition, LLC (the “Target Company”)
entered into a membership interest purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Landsea Homes conditionally agreed to
purchase, and the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell all of the
issued equity interests of the Target Company (the “Acquisition”).
The base purchase price for the Acquisition is US$185,000,000.

After Landsea Holdings Corporation (‘LHC”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the disposal of
2,434,783 shares of the common shares (“LSEA Stock”) of
Landsea Homes on 8 March 2024 (as referred to in paragraph
(c) below), Landsea Homes ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. In light of the above, the Acquisition no longer
constituted a notifiable transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

For further information, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 1 February 2024 and 10 March 2024.
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On 8 March 2024, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, Shanghai Langxin Property Development Limited*
(EHBAEE M E M AR A 7)), Suzhou branch of Shanghai
Landsea Investment Management Limited* (_£ /& B s &
E 12 B BR A A &M 5 A Fl), Shanghai Langming Property
Development Limited* (E/BB#FEEMREFR A F),
Shanghai Langxu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* (_E /& BB Y
P EEIE AR A a)) and Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd* (L8 E
ZEEBR A A (colectively, the “Group Members”) entered
into the property transfer agreement with Nanjing Landsea
Property Management Co., Ltd.* (B R BAFWEERER QA
(“Nanjing Landsea Property”) and Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate
Brokerage Co., Ltd.” ({Ei5[E#EEFEHELLBRAF) (‘Wuxi
Huilin Yiju”) (collectively, the “Landsea Green Life Group
Members”), pursuant to which the Group Members agreed to
transfer the target property, comprising 2 office premises and 6
car parking spaces located at the Landsea Peak in Cloud Project
developed and built by the Group in Putuo District, Shanghai, the
PRC, to the Landsea Green Life Group Members (the “Property
Transfer”) at a consideration of RMB9,071,671, which shall be
settled by offsetting the equivalent outstanding amount payable
by the Group Members to the Landsea Green Life Group
Members.

The Property Transfer was completed on 24 July 2024. For
further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2024.

Nanjing Landsea Property and Wuxi Huilin Yiju are both indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Landsea Green Life Service
Company Limited (‘Landsea Green Life”). Landsea Green Life
was indirectly held as to 40.20% by Mr. Tian at the time of the
Property Transfer. As Landsea Green Life was an associate of
Mr. Tian, it was a connected person of the Company at the time
of the Property Transfer. The Property Transfer constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in
respect of the Property Transfer was more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the Property Transfer was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but was exempt from the circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

English translation is for identification purpose only.
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On 8 March 2024 (New York Time), LHC completed the disposal
of 2,434,783 shares of LSEA Stock, representing approximately
6.76% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LSEA
Stock as of 4 March 2024, via underwritten offering in respect of
which B. Riley Securities Inc. (“B. Riley Securities”) and BofA
Securities, Inc., were acting as joint bookrunning managers (each
of them acting for itself and on behalf of other underwriters,
together the “March 2024 Underwriters”), at the public offering
price of US$11.6 per share of LSEA Stock (the “March 2024
Disposal’).

The highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the March
2024 Disposal exceeded 75%, the March 2024 Disposal
constituted a very substantial disposal of the Company and
was subject to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
The March 2024 Disposal was approved by the shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 29 February
2025.

For further information, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 5 February 2024, 29 February 2024 and 10
March 2024 and the circular of the Company dated 9 February
2024,

In connection with the March 2024 Disposal, LHC granted the
March 2024 Underwriters an option for a period of 30 days
to purchase up to 365,217 additional shares of LSEA Stock
(the “March Option Share(s)”), at the public offering price of
US$11.6 per March Option Share. On 8 March 2024 (New York
Time), 43,362 March Option Shares amounting to US$503,000,
representing approximately 0.12% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024, were
sold by the March 2024 Underwriters to Bruce Frank, Mollie
Fadule, Tom Hartfield and Murong Xinyao at a consideration of
US$503,000 which was paid in cash on 8 March 2024 (New
York Time) to the March 2024 Underwriters.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 March 2024.
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In connection with the March 2024 Disposal, LHC granted the
March 2024 Underwriters an option for a period of 30 days
to purchase up to 365,217 additional shares of LSEA Stock
(the “March Option Share(s)”), at the public offering price of
US$11.6 per March Option Share. On 8 March 2024 (New York
Time), 43,362 March Option Shares amounting to US$503,000,
representing approximately 0.12% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024, were
sold by the March 2024 Underwriters to Bruce Frank, Mollie
Fadule, Tom Hartfield and Murong Xinyao at a consideration of
US$508,000 which was paid in cash on 8 March 2024 (New
York Time) to the March 2024 Underwriters.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 March 2024.

On 12 May 2022, LHC and 1103849 B.C. LTD. (the “Lender”),
an independent third party, entered into a credit agreement
(as amended, the “Credit Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Lender extended to LHC a term loan in the principal amount of
US$45,000,000. To secure LHC's obligations under the Credit
Agreement, the LHC had pledged a total of 4,838,710 shares
of LSEA Stock (the “Pledged LSEA Stock”) in favour of the
Lender. Details of the transactions contemplated under the Credit
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
13 May 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 8 August
2022.
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To address the obligations of LHC under the Credit Agreement
where the outstanding amount under the Credit Agreement
immediately prior to the entering into of the Payment Agreement
was US$49,700,000 (the “Obligation”), on 10 May 2024 (United
States Eastern Standard Time), LHC and the Lender entered into
a payment agreement (the “Payment Agreement”) to discharge
the obligations under the Credit Agreement subject to the terms
and conditions of the Payment Agreement. Pursuant to the
Payment Agreement, (a) on 14 May 2024 (United States Eastern
Standard Time), LHC shall transfer 4,100,000 shares of the
Pledged LSEA Stock to the Lender or its nominee at US$6.00
per share (resulting in a US$24,600,000 repayment to the Lender
of the Obligation), and the remaining outstanding amount of
US$25,100,000 under the Credit Agreement had been satisfied
on the date of signing the Payment Agreement; and (b) on 14
May 2024 (United States Eastern Standard Time), the Lender
shall return the remaining 738,710 shares of the Pledged LSEA
Stock to LHC.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 14 May 2024.

East West Bank (the “East West Bank”) as lender extended a
credit facility to LHC as borrower pursuant to a loan agreement
dated as of 7 June 2022 and as amended as of 29 June 2023
(the “Loan Agreement”) and secured pursuant to a commercial
pledge agreement dated as of 29 June 2023 (together with the
Loan Agreement, the “Loan Documents”) by 3,225,578 shares
(the “Pledged Shares”) of Landsea Homes.

LHC has failed to satisfy certain financial covenants and ratio
under the Loan Agreement, which constitutes events of default
under the Loan Agreement. As a result, East West Bank has
become entitled to exercise all rights under the Loan Documents
and has elected to take ownership of the Pledged Shares in
a strict foreclosure action pursuant to section 9-620 of the
Uniform Commercial Code of California and in full satisfaction
of the obligations of LHC under the Loan Documents (the
“Enforcement”) and the East West Bank and LHC entered into
an agreement regarding consensual resolution of credit facility as
of 22 September 2024 (New York Time).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR ER eSS

RTBRHCEEEHZE T Z2ESE (RE
BIIUNRBZ 2 EEBZETHRE
2 £ % 549,700,000kt ([&H])) =
TZWMFRATH (EEEIZERMA) -
LHCEERAGI Y MR HE ((SRB=RD) -
NRREEMRE NZEB  HEABTHNRX
aE 2 B RGS BEBNRBE @R=
ZNFERATMNA (EERBEFERMH)
LHC #% & % 6.00 3 7T 1% 4,100,000 & 2 & #
LSEARRMERETFTERARERE A (HEMRA
BERAEEHT524,600,000E7T) © MEEW
FIE T 2 F &g R EIE £ %25100,000% T E
REFBEESELEHERMN: ROR TN
FRATIMA CERRIMBFERME) ERXA
A A LHCRZE & T 738,710 & & #f LSEA

{/'\ °

EHE—TEN F2HARABHPAR-ZF
“HERATEOBEHRE -

East West Bank ([ East West Bank |) {E & &
FARBEEHA_ZE-_—_E#XA+BEIRN=
T_=FXNAZtTAREBITNER DS (&
MiGE]) MLHC (EREFA) RIEEERE -
WREARA-_E-_=FXA-+NLENHE
XL (BERERDEARE BRI
LA 3,225,578 % Landsea Homes % 15 ([ & 8 1%
7B 1) 1ERBIELR -

LHCKREEM A BER HE THE THBRAER
LR - EREFBETHEREOSH Bt
East West Bank 2 BT ER XU T A
A WEEERBMNING —BETAESE
9-620 & 1E BX 4% HY L FE 17 8 R BN A5 & 48 iR 15
WETERE  UTEE2ETLHCEER X4+ TH
ST ([@m#81T]) - I H Fast West Bank &
LHCERZZZWFNAZ+=H (HKMH)
HEEBENBREERS REKRZ -

CECNEER 37



Management Discussion and Analysis

38

EEF DTDH:H& jtﬁ

Following the Enforcement, the shareholding of the Company in
Landsea Homes was reduced to 9,035,151 shares, representing
approximately 24.9% of the issued and outstanding shares of
Landsea Homes as of the date of the Enforcement.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 September 2024.

On 5 December 2024 (New York Time), LHC completed the
disposal of 2,521,740 shares of LSEA Stock, representing
approximately 7.0% of the total issued and outstanding shares
of LSEA Stock as of 5 December 2024, via underwritten offering
in respect of which B. Riley Securities, Wedbush Securities
Inc. and Zions Direct, Inc. were acting as joint bookrunning
managers (each of them acting for itself and on behalf of other
underwriters, together the “December 2024 Underwriters”), at
the public offering price of US$10.25 per share of LSEA Stock (the
“December 2024 Disposal”). In connection with the December
2024 Disposal, LHC granted the December 2024 Underwriters
an option for a period of 30 days to purchase up to 378,260
additional shares of LSEA Stock (the “December Option
Shares”), at the public offering price of US$10.25 per December
Option Share.

LHC received notice of option exercise from B. Riley Securities
(as representative of the December 2024 Underwriters), pursuant
to which the December 2024 Underwriters would purchase all
the December Option Shares (the “Further Disposal”’) and
completion of the Further Disposal took place on 10 December
2024 (New York Time).

Immediately following completion of the December 2024 Disposal
and the Further Disposal, the number of LSEA Stock held by
LHC has decreased to 6,135,151, representing approximately
16.9% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock
as of 10 December 2024.

For further information, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 September 2024, 9 December 2024 and 10
December 2024.
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Save as disclosed above and in this report, the Group had no
significant investments, acquisitions and disposals during in FY2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The company has no concrete plan for future investment in place as at
the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 26 March 2025,
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the special general meeting
to be convened and held, the Company proposes to dispose of up to
6,135,151 shares of LSEA Stock, representing approximately 16.9%
of the issued and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as at 26 March
2025, during the period of 12 months from the date of approval by the
shareholders. Upon completion of such disposal, the Company will
cease to hold any shares of LSEA Stock.

Up to approval date of these consolidated financial statements, another
RMB432,000,000 of the Group’s bank borrowing, bearing interest
at 6.40% per annum and secured by properties under development,
was overdue and unpaid, along with overdue interest amount of
RMB35,879,000.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “EXTRACT
OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT” in this report, there are no
material events affecting the Group after 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report.
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DETAILS OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION AND
RESPONSE FROM THE COMPANY

As at 31 December, 2024, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB4,213 million and net liabilities of approximately
RMB1,559 million. The Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,513 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024. At the end of reporting period
and up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Relevant
2024 Statements”), the Group was in default of a senior note with
principal amount of US$33 million (equivalent to RMB241 million) and
interest of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) (the “Defaulted
Senior Note”) because of non-payment for over 2 years from its due
date. Subsequent to 31 December 2024, the Company received a
letter formally demanding the Group to settle principal and interest
under the Defaulted Senior Note or otherwise a winding-up petition may
be presented to the court. In addition to the Defaulted Senior Note, the
Group had secured borrowings totalling approximately RMB511 million
that were overdue and remained unpaid as at 31 December 2024
and up to the date of approval of consolidated financial statements,
comprising loans from other financial institutions of approximately
RMB451 million and borrowing from a bank of approximately RMB60
million.

The auditor does not express an opinion on the Relevant 2024
Statements due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements as set out on pages 107 and 108 (the “Modifications”).

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL IMPACT OF AUDIT
MODIFICATION ON THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE GROUP

The Modification themselves do not have any actual impact on the
Relevant 2024 Statements. As stated in the independent auditor’s
report, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that material uncertainties exist that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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MANAGEMENT’S POSITION

The management of the Company is of the view that combining
with the macro environment, the entire PRC real estate industry is
experiencing a liquidity crisis, and each lending institution has a large
number of loans for real estate projects maturing, and the Group’s
current situation is not an isolated case. Based on past experience in
debt handling and the national credit guideline policy, the Company is
in accordance with the principle that, for the maturing debts, it should
roll over as much as possible. Based on the guarantee of sufficient
collateralization ratio, the management is reasonably confident that the
Company can ultimately complete a blanket rollover agreement with
the lending institutions. The Company will continue to communicate
with the creditors in order to arrive at a mutually agreeable restructuring
plan. Meanwhile, the Group is practicing an asset-light model in the
PRC, and the development and construction service projects currently
in hand can cover the Group’s basic expenditure needs. Therefore,
the management believes that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern for the next 12 months.

OPINION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed and endorsed management’s
position on the action plan for addressing the Modification. The Audit
Committee has also discussed with management and the auditor to
understand the reasons for issuing the Modifications and the views
of the Board and the auditor. The Audit Committee agrees with the
management’s position and views on the Modification, agrees that the
Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to support its operations
and will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern for the next 12 months.
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PROPOSED PLAN TO ADDRESS AUDIT
MODIFICATION

The plans and measures of the Company:

M

(i)

(i)

42

The Group proactively adjusts its sales and pre-sales activities to
better respond to market demand, and is striving to achieve the
contracted sales, pre-sales volume and amount under the latest
budget and to enhance collections.

By the end of 2024, the contracted sales from consolidated
property development project and property development projects
with minority equity amounted to only 1% and 12% of the total
contracted sales respectively. The revenue and profit contribution
from project management segment is expected to further
increase by the end of 2025.

In 2025, the Group will maintain continuous communication
with major builders and suppliers to reach mutually agreeable
payment arrangements for the smooth commencement of pre-
sales and timely completion of property development.

As at the date of this report, the majority of the Group’s
businesses consists of project management services. The
Company anticipates that the project management services
segment will contribute an additional contract value of around
RMB600 million, with equity project cash inflows amounting to
RMB300 million, for the year ending 31 December 2025.

The Group is actively discussing with the holders of the Defaulted
Senior Note to reach further agreements. Meanwhile, the Group
will closely monitor the progress of the performance of financial
borrowings other than the senior notes.

As at the date of this report, the Group has already obtained
the consent from holders of certain senior notes to extend the
outstanding principal amounting to approximately US$95 million
(please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19
December 2024 and 23 December 2024). The Group is currently
continuing its communication with the remaining noteholders to
reach an amicable settlement on the outstanding notes.
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(iv)

(vi)

The Group has been actively negotiating with relevant financial
institutions to ensure that the Group could obtain development
loans for development projects in a timely manner and obtain
borrowings or seek rollover of existing borrowings by pledging
equity interests in certain subsidiaries.

For example, the loan institution for the Chongaging Central Park
project plans to allocate funds according to local government
requirements for the construction of the project in 2025.

The Group has been liaising with potential buyers for the disposal
of certain investment properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
as well as the equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates holding the investment properties. In addition, the
Group will seek income from disposal of equity interests, dividend
income and advances from joint ventures and associates in a
timely manner, depending on their pre-sale status and cash flow
position.

For example, the Group is currently negotiating with potential
buyers with regard to the joint venture projects Shanghai
Zhangjiang Center and Guangzhou Jiefang Tower, and aims to
complete the disposals in 2025.

The Group will also continue to accelerate the recovery of trade
and other receivables and take active measures to control
administrative expenses.

In 2024, apart from the Chongqging Central Park project, the
Company has succeeded in disposing of all the consolidated
property development projects. The Company has successfully
reduced administrative expenses by 66% in 2024 through, e.g.,
downsizing workforce, and will continue working on it in 2025.

(V)

(Vi)

BMEHegRBRAT
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In 2024, China’s real estate market environment remained challenging.
According to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, real estate
development investment decreased by 10.6% year-on-year, while
sales of newly constructed residential properties declined by 17.6%.
Although the real estate climate index has gradually recovered from its
low point in April 2024, it has not yet returned to the levels seen at the
end of 2023.

In FY2024, the Group implemented the proposed action plan as
set out in the 2023 annual report and had successfully ensured that
performance of the Group did not deteriorate further in FY2024. During
FY2024, the Group disposed of approximately 40% of the shares of
Landsea Home held by the Company and used the proceeds for debt
repayment and working capital. Additionally, the Group successfully
obtained consent from its senior note holders to extend the
outstanding principal amounting to approximately US$95 million (please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 19 December 2024 and
23 December 2024).

Furthermore, the lending institution for the Nanjing Huafei dormitory
has expressed its willingness to facilitate the disposal and monetization
of mortgaged assets to settle outstanding debts.

The disposal of heavy assets typically involves extended transaction
cycles, depending on market conditions and the progress of
negotiations with buyers, and is difficult to be fully completed in a short
term. Therefore, the Audit Issue was unable to be resolved despite the
Group’s continuous efforts in FY2024. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to use best efforts to implement the actions set out above
with an aim to resolving the audit issue by the end of 2025.

The Board (including the Audit Committee) have reviewed the above
plans and measures formulated by the management of the Company
and are of the opinion that the above plans could resolve the audit
issue and the Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to support
its operations and fulfill the related financial obligation for the year
ending 31 December 2025.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of
high standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to Shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
Shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted and has complied with the code provisions
set out in part 2 of the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with
all the relevant code provisions under part 2 of the CG Code during
FY2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of one executive Director, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Chairman of the Board)
(appointed on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman of the Board)
(resigned on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Zheng (resigned on 31 December 2024)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Li Huanbin (appointed on 31 December 2024)
Ms. Gu Jing (resigned on 31 December 2024)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed on 21 June 2024)

Ms. Li Rong (appointed on 28 February 2025)

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family or other material/relevant relationship among members
of the Board, and in particular, between the chairman and the chief
executive. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 16
to 19 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance Report
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 4 Board meetings were
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matter in
the agenda for regular Board meetings and were given sufficient time
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.

Number of

Name of Directors meetings attended

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Chairman) et " N/A

Mr. Tian Ming (e 2 4/4

Mr. Huang Zheng (et 4/4

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huanbin (ete 4 N/A

Ms. Gu Jing et 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Rui Meng 4/4

Mr. Xie Cilong 2/2

Ms. Li Rong " N/A

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (e 8 2/2

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (9 4/4

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhou Kunpeng appointed on 31 December 2024, and no Board meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

2. Mr. Tian Ming resigned on 31 December 2024, and four Board meetings were held
during his tenure of office in 2024;

3. Mr. Huang Zheng resigned on 31 December 2024, and four Board meetings were
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

4. Mr. Li Huanbin was appointed on 31 December 2024, and no Board meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

5. Ms. Gu Jing resigned on 31 December 2024, and four Board meetings were held
during her tenure of office in 2024;

6. Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and two Board meetings were held
during his tenure of office in 2024;

7. Ms. Li Rong appointed on 28 February 2025;

8. Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and two Board meetings were held

during his tenure of office in 2024; and

9. The tenure of office of Mr. Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and four
Board meetings were held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, 2 general meetings

of the Company were held.

Name of Directors

Number of
meetings attended

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Chairman) ©ete " N/A
Mr. Tian Ming (2 o/0
Mr. Huang Zheng ¢ 9 2/
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huanbin ®ete4 N/A
Ms. Gu Jing el o/0
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Rui Meng 2/
Mr. Xie Cilong (™t ® N/A
Ms. Li Rong (e N/A
Mr. Xu Xiaonian ®ete® 2/
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (€9 o/0

Notes:

1.

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng was appointed on 31 December 2024, and no general meeting
was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Tian Ming resigned on 31 December 2024, and two general meetings were held
during his tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Huang Zheng resigned on 31 December 2024, and two general meetings were
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Li Huanbin was appointed on 31 December 2024, and no general meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

Ms. Gu Jing resigned on 31 December 2024, and two general meetings were held
during her tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and no general meeting was held
during his tenure of office in 2024;

Ms. Li Rong appointed on 28 February 2025;

Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and two general meetings were held
during his tenure of office in 2024; and

The tenure of office of Mr.Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and two
general meetings were held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, uses AGM or other general meetings
to communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee attended the abovementioned
general meetings to answer questions and collect views of
Shareholders.

DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group’s strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s latest
developments and thus can assist them in discharging their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 110.

As disclosed in note 2.1(c) to the financial statements, certain
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans and measure
have been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
its cash flows. The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections for a period of 12 months from 31 December 2024 and
are of the opinion that, taking into account the certain plans and
measures, the Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December 2024. Accordingly, the
directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. Save as disclosed
above, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concemn.
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To improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, the
management has taken and/or will take the following measures: (i) the
Group proactively adjusts its sales and pre-sales activities to better
respond to market demand, and is striving to achieve the contracted
sales, pre-sales volume and amount under the latest budget and
to enhance collections; (ii) the Group will maintain continuous
communication with major builders and suppliers to reach mutually
agreeable payment arrangements for the smooth commencement
of pre-sales and timely completion of property development; (iii) the
Group is actively discussing with the holders of the Defaulted Senior
Note to reach further agreements. Meanwhile, the Group will closely
monitor the progress of the performance of financial borrowings other
than the senior notes; (iv) the Group has been actively negotiating with
relevant financial institutions to ensure that the Group could obtain
development loans for development projects in a timely manner and
obtain borrowings or seek rollover of existing borrowings by pledging
equity interests in certain subsidiaries; (v) the Group has been liaising
with potential buyers for the disposal of certain investment properties
held by the Group’s subsidiaries, as well as the equity interests in
certain joint ventures and associates holding the investment properties.
In addition, the Group will seek income from disposal of equity
interests, dividend income and advances from joint ventures and
associates in a timely manner, depending on their pre-sale status and
cash flow position; (vi) the Group will also continue to accelerate the
recovery of trade and other receivables and take active measures to
control administrative expenses.

For further details of the plans and measures of the Company, please
refer to pages 42 and 44 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Xie Cilong has extensive experience in fund management and
business investment.

Mr. Rui Meng is professionally designated as a Certified Financial
Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and Research
since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently acts as
independent non-executive directors for several listed companies.

Ms. Li Rong obtained the practitioner qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China (AMAC) and the qualification
certificate of secretary to board of directors awarded by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors during FY2024 the annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The Group attaches great importance to gender diversity in its staff and
management team and has established a comprehensive recruitment
system, such as eliminating gender discrimination in the recruitment
process, providing equal employment opportunities, career paths
and training opportunities for employees, and protecting the health
and safety of female employees in strict compliance with relevant
national policies. The gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at 31
December 2024 is as follows:

Type Male Female
Senior management 90% 10%
All employees 65% 35%
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POLICY TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, and will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such policy on an annual basis, which includes:

(1)  The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

(2)  The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors. The meeting should include reviewing the
performance of the Board and the flow of information of between
management and the Board.

(8) The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(4) The Company will, upon reasonable request, provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to perform their duties to the Company.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Board or Board committee shall be supplied with adequate
information, in a timely manner, by the senior management, to enable
it to make informed decisions. Such information supplied shall be
complete and reliable. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has the
right to separately and independently access the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries, if necessary.

Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informal decisions on matters placed before it. Directors will receive a
prompt and full response to his/her enquiry, if any is raised.

In addition to convening Board meetings and Board committee
meetings, the Company also submits regular reports to all Directors,
including project expansion, reasons for changes in management
statements and major indicators, content of external announcements,
and corporate governance-related content, so that all Directors keep
abreast of the Company’s operations and development status.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
Director/taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for
seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the
Company a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 December 2024.

The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year &HZE-_Z_WNF+_-_A=+—HItFE  SEEAT

ended 31 December 2024 is summarized below: BEX 2 EAEIRES M T
Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house LES2E
briefing relevant BBEK .
to the business, BHNEERAR
regulatory updates EZRE
and director’s e/
Name of Directors duties Espg RS
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (appointed on 31 December 2024) N/A FEELE (NS mET=—A=T—HEZ{) NER
Mr. Tian Ming (resigned on 31 December 2024) v RBAEE (RZE-METZA=T—REF) v
Mr. Huang Zheng (resigned on 31 December 2024) v BEE(RZEEETZA=T—HET) v
Non-executive Directors: FRTEE -
Mr. Li Huanbin (appointed on 31 December 2024) N/A AL (RZE-NE+ZA=T—BEZHA) i
Ms. Gu Jing (resigned on 31 December 2024) v  EERT(R-Z-mETA=T-HEE) v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHITEE :
Mr. Rui Meng v RBEE v
Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed on 21 June 2024) v AR E(R-SNEAAZT—BEZRE) v
Ms. Li Rong (appointed on 28 February 2025) N/A AT (RZE-RF A=+ N\REZH) i
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024) v  MERE(RZZZMERAZT-BEL) v
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025) v BETLE(FER-_Z-_AF=A=+—HEW) v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional PREZNAUBEEXER2EZ N YHEEBS
development and are committed to participating in suitable training to A BEIIRIE - DA M E R A BB RE
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhou Kunpeng is the Chairman
and Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Company considered that the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer is clearly established.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the CG
Code.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.
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APPOINTMENT AND INDUCTION OF NEW
DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
appointed during FY2024 and as at the date of this report attended a
training covering the requirements under the Listing Rules as a Director
and the possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange. Details of the training received

MEENZERRB

REBEEHRAEI.00DM%K  RZF_MHERFRE R
RAREAREZENEETHE L2 MEI - AR
MELTRABBLEEEORE - ARMBERAA
EHERZHKEHEREMNAEER - HAE
ERXBINFHBOT

by the relevant Directors are as follows:

Name of Directors

BESHA

Executive Director
HITES

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng
B8R IS 7 4

Non-executive Director
FHITES

My. Li Huanbin

IR ST

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Xie Cilong

i FRIBE ST A

Ms. Li Rong
FRLL

Date of
appointment

ZEHH

31 December 2024
—EOF
+-—A=+—H

31 December 2024
—EF
+=A=+-8

21 June 2024
—ENF

/ N\ H —+_ El

28 February 2025
—T-RF
—AZ=+N\H

Date obtaining
legal advice
MEBEEER
#H &

31 December 2024
—EmF
+=—A=+—8H

31 December 2024
—EomF
t=A=+-8

21 June 2024
—EEF

/ \ )E] — + - E

28 February 2025
—T-RHF
—A=+N\H

Each of the above Directors has confirmed his/her understanding of
the information provided by the legal adviser and her obligations as a
Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the ESG Committee, to oversee
different aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Rui Meng (as chairman), Ms. Li Rong
and Mr. Xie Cilong. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary
financial information of the Group for committee members to consider,
review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted.

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended
Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Xie Cilong ete D 1/2
Ms. Li Rong (2 N/A
Mr. Xu Xiaonian M) 1/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan ot 4 2/2
Notes:
1. Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and one audit committee meeting

was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

2. Ms. Li Rong was appointed as a member of audit committee on 21 March 2025;
3. Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and one audit committee meeting was

held during his tenure of office in 2024; and

4. The tenure of office of Mr. Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and two audit
committee meeting were held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following work:

—  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2024,

— discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the preparation
of the 2023 interim and annual financial statements;

— reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of auditor;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
and relevant reports from external auditor; and

— reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least
three members with majority of independent non-executive Directors,
and an independent non-executive Director should take up the role
of chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Li Rong (as chairman), Mr. Rui Meng and Mr.
Xie Cilong. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, to approve the terms of executive
directors’ service contracts, to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors, and to review and/or
approve matters relating to the share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members
reviewed and determined the remuneration policies and structure of
the Directors and senior management and recommended to the Board
the proposed remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
assessed the performance of executive Directors, approved the service
contract of executive Director and discussed the assessment plan of
the management for the year 2024.

Number of

Name of Members meetings attended

Ms. Li Rong (Committee Chairman) " N/A

Mr. Rui Meng 1/1

Mr. Xie Cilong (2 N/A

Mr. Xu Xiaonian M) 1/1

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (°te 4 1/1

Notes:

1. Ms. Li Rong was appointed as the chairman of remuneration committee on 21
March 2025;

2. Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and no remuneration committee
meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

3. Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and one remuneration committee
meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024; and

4. The tenure of office of Mr. Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and one

remuneration committee meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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During 2024, the Remuneration Committee also discussed the grant
of awarded shares involving 138,505,750 Shares to one Director
and 15 employees in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Share
Award Scheme. All the awarded shares were vested upon grant.
The 2014 Share Award Scheme does not provide for any minimum
vesting period. The Remuneration Committee was of the view that
since the grant of the awarded shares served as a recognition of the
grantees’ past contributions to the Group and as an incentive for them
to continue to contribute the development of the Group, it would be
appropriate not to impose any vesting period for the awarded shares
granted. The vesting of the awarded shares granted were not subject
to any performance targets or any clawback mechanism. Taking into
account that the awarded shares were granted to the grantees as
recognition for their past contributions to the Group, the Remuneration
Committee was of the view that the grant of awarded shares without
performance targets or a clawback mechanism was market competitive
and aligned with the purpose of the 2014 Share Award Scheme.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman
or an independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xie Cilong (as chairman), Mr.
Rui Meng and Ms. Li Rong. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and
monitor the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company.
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To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter
for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as
well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities
which, in particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or
she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be
made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable,
the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed
the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services) of the Board;
recommended candidates for directorship to the Board; assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
considered the election and re-election of Directors.

Number of

Name of Members meetings attended

Mr. Xie Cilong (Committee Chairman) " 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1
Ms. Li Rong (2 N/A
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (ote 3 11
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan M4 11
Notes:

o Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and no nomination committee

meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

2. Ms. Li Rong was appointed as a member of nomination committee on 21 March
2025;
3. Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and one nomination committee meeting

was held during his tenure of office in 2024; and

4. The tenure of office of Mr. Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and one
nomination committee meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee was established on 30 June 2021 with
written terms of reference to take over the Company’s sustainable
development supervision committee, which was established on 19
December 2016. The ESG Committee currently consists of one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (as chairman) and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Li Rong,
Mr. Rui Meng and Mr. Xie Cilong. The terms of reference of the ESG
Committee are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the ESG Committee held
1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed and
discussed the ESG work progress in the year of 2024 and future work
plan.

Number of

Name of Members meetings attended

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (Committee Chairman) " N/A

Mr. Rui Meng 1/1

Mr. Xie Cilong (°te2 1/1

Ms. Li Rong (et N/A

Mr. Tian Ming (e 1/1

Mr. Huang Zheng °te9 1/1

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (e ® N/A

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan °te?) 1/1

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhou Kunpeng was appointed on 31 December 2024, and no ESG Committee
meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

2. Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed on 21 June 2024, and one ESG Committee meeting
was held during his tenure of office in 2024;

&} Ms. Li Rong was appointed on 28 February 2025;

4. Mr. Tian Ming resigned on 31 December 2024, and one ESG Committee meeting

were held during his tenure of office in 2024;

58 Mr. Huang Zheng resigned on 31 December 2024, and one ESG Committee
meeting were held during his tenure of office in 2024;

6. Mr. Xu Xiaonian resigned on 21 June 2024, and one ESG Committee meeting were
held during his tenure of office in 2024; and

7. The tenure of office of Mr.Chen Tai-yuan expired on 21 March 2025, and one ESG
Committee meeting were held during his tenure of office in 2024.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational
Committee”) was established on 18 March 2005, was reformed and
renamed to “Executive Committee” with all of the executive Directors
as its members and a new set of terms of reference was adopted on
31 July 2013, which has been subsequently amended to reflect the
powers, authorities and discretions delegated by the Board from time
to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Gao Yuan (“Ms. Gao”) was appointed as the board secretary,
the Company Secretary and the Authorised Representatives. The
biographical details of Ms. Gao are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”. During the
year, Ms. Gao has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for FY2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development
and maintenance of risk management and internal control of the
Company and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts
a comprehensive risk management and internal control structure
to handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. It
discusses with the management regarding the risk management and
internal control systems to ensure they have performed their duties
to establish effective risk management and internal control systems,
which is reviewed annually. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for ensuring that the internal review function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate stand within the Company, and reviewing the
adequacy of qualifications and experience, training programs and
relevant budgets of staff in charge of accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks
from time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year
ended 31 December 2024, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The
Company has set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out
audit and supervisory work independently under the guidance and
supervision of the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman and
the Audit Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period. Therefore, the
Board considers the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company are effective and adequate.

The Company has improved a number of systems and guidelines,
issued a number of regulation systems and management measures
such as “Management Measures on Product Differentiation Design (&
= BRI E B IDE))”, “Engineering Standardization Achievement
Documents (Standards, Guidelines) ({ T 2 1Z % (b fk 2 > 14 (12 # -
#5351 48)))”, “Project First Opening and Delivery Special Assessment
Management Measures ((JEE B - RISFIEEZE R HE))”, and
further refining the operation guidelines of each module, improving
the business risk management mechanism, standardizing business
process management, improving the Company’s operating efficiency
while strengthening project progress management and quality
management, preventing project risks, achieving project business
objectives, and ensuring the stable operation of business management.
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Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information
system security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ({3
1L B B& F ), the Landsea Brand Handbook (<BA 75 & k2 F fit)) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including
the revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ({1
& F 1)), the Company has strengthened the daily authorization
management and the authorization system, which has laid the
foundation of the existing authorization management system of the
Company.

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control
and investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

Through communication with the business departments, the internal
control department classifies the various risks arising from the
company’s operation process according to “risk factors, risk paths and
risk levels”, establishing a “risk list” which is published on the “Sunshine
Landsea ([5 J¢ BAFF)” platform. It is not only an evaluation tool for audit
and supervision, but also a risk management tool suitable for use by all
staff in daily management and operation.

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advice on risk prevention aiming to improve systems,
standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms; provide rectification
of material internal control defects, if discovered. Improvement has
been made in response to the rectifying opinions for the year.
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The Company continues to build and iteratively update the reporting

system. During the year, on the basis of the original reporting hotline,

reporting mailbox, and WeChat reporting platform, the Audit and

Supervision Department of the Company relied on the integrity culture

and the development of information tools to update the working

mechanism as follows:

(1)

68

Updated the internal reporting management system, and
introduced a special reporting process specification to ensure
that all reports are stored in the warehouse with traces, clear
nodes, clear circulation, and controllable timeliness;

Updated the handling methods for reporting and follow-up
work, issued “Regulations on Judicial Coordination and Unified
Management (K 71)% 1 [A] 41 — & I #9 #1 7E))”, “Regulations on
the Management of Integrity Funds and Articles ({EEIEE 4 4
AR EE IR IR ), etc., and incorporated reporting and related
work into the scope of institutionalized overall management;

Updated the reporting management information tool. Relying
on the “Sunshine Landsea (F% )% BA )" platform, developed the
“integrity face-to-face (/& 1E T ¥J )" function, using the “I have
something to say, | want to report (F 7B &at © & 28 3R)” port
as a new form of reporting, and it was launched simultaneously
on the computer and mobile terminals.
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With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought
to develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws
and regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-
corruption and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest
executive function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties
mainly including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination
of anti-corruption work and handling and making decisions in relation
to relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr.
Tian Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives.
The Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function
operating under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation
in corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman
of the Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units and
personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing, and
all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the whistleblowers
will be informed of the result under various measures that safeguard
their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance towards corruption.
Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the Company will impose
penalty in accordance with the Code of Anti-corruption, including
dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put
in place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal,
ensure compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly
identify and manage the major risks which may affect the performance
of the Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.
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The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of
the Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with
the requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be
submitted to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department
will review and follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure
effective implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control system of the Group
is sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of
the Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the internal control system
of the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.

70 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

AREB AR BPFTERAN A R R I B AR T

7% SEAPEIFINEFIETE - BER
EEEE EBMBREENSBEEETERRER -
WiZREBENZIETENRS  MBEZERS
RFEREEE N B BrISEREREH
WREBRE - IkZEET TeEHREEE

EEeEFRELER -

AEBARBHNHFIBLIAERR EREZES
AEETREEABREBEASENAIEIT R
FARIBM - AEBEAMLE TERAAEENEZ
ZERIR HBELARMBEEERER-

EEEAERARERERABEERGHRET - 81T
rEx YEEFTHMEERE HEXRLZEGE
BARERGHBRK °

BE_Z_MHE+-_A=+—HLFE  AQAA
MELFNETEAR BEEANEZANFEER
b TREEA AT ERARMBER  BERE
BREEALEREERENEESE -



AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited is set out
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Services rendered by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited RKEBEEBLFMEBAERA ARME 2 RS
Audit services ZE R 2,800
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August
2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of
the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity and better succession
planning through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

EERREZTILBE

EERR-_Z—=FN\A=THERBEZR/KE
ZRBR((EEREESZTEEE])  ZHE
FHIEREZRKEBEZ TN ITE - ARRHEE
EREMRHEZ T AERARAREBERER
AREEREHF -ARFAREELZHREZ &
BERRRES - & XERHBEES Bk
HELR Rt MENMRBEN BREHES
BREZTIEREENBRIRE - ARFIREES

REREKBAAR  THETREEEAGEBEERN
MEBRE-

S mesRERLE B _NEER 71



Corporate Governance Report
EEELRHRS

The Board composition reflects the current management of the Group
and comprises seven members, including a female non-executive
Director. The Directors of the Company have a balanced mix of
experiences, including business management, property investment,
real estate development, economics and finance, risk management
and accounting and audit experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the
Directors of the Company range from 40 years old to 70 years old.
The Company have taken and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but without
limitation at our Board and senior management levels. As it is not a
single gender board, the Board considers gender diversity has been
achieved and will continue to review the Board composition.

The Board has delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity
Policy to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will
discuss and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
shall be called a special general meeting.
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Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company

according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the

Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to

convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled

“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director”

, Which is currently available on the Company’s website.

A summary of which is also included below:

If Member(s) would like to propose a person for election as a Director

other than in a general meeting appointed for election of director(s), the

relevant Member(s) can request to convene a special general meeting

of the Company in the following manner:

M

(i)

(i)

Members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may send a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company to convene a general
meeting.

The requisition must include the information as stated in items
1, 2 and/or the Note (where appropriate) above, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures for appointment of Director including
the convening of a general meeting.

A general meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of the requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-
one (21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a general meeting, the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three (8) months from the said date.
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The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong addressed to the Company Secretary at Unit 406, 4/F, 8
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2024 AGM will
be voted by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman as well as the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee together with the external auditor are present
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The annual report together with
AGM circular is distributed to all the Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

Any enquiries put to the Board shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 406, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

With reference to the Policy, the channels for distribution of the
Company’s updates and putting enquiries to the Board, and two-
way communication between the Company and the Shareholders at
the AGM, the Board is of the view that the implementation of such
shareholders’ communication policies is effective, and will continue to
monitor and review the shareholders’ communication policies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements,
liquidity position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.

The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking
into account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and any other internal and external factors that may
affect the business and financial performance and position of the Group
in addition to the above-mentioned criteria. Any future declaration of
dividends may or may not reflect the historical declarations of dividends
and will be at the absolute discretion of the Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company. As at 31 December 2024, there was no arrangement
pursuant to which the shareholders of the Company waived or agreed
to waive their dividends.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group issued an Inside Information Disclosure Policy in January
2022 to regulate the acquisition, dissemination and use of inside
information by employees, to prevent insider trading and other market
misconduct, and to ensure that shareholders and the public receive
comprehensive, accurate and timely information or data about the
Company’s business and its financial position. The policy sets out
the practices and procedures for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside information
can be identified and reported to the Board of the Company as soon
as possible to ensure that the Board can make timely decisions on
disclosure, if required; and for taking appropriate steps to maintain
the confidentiality of inside information until such time as it is formally
released in accordance with the regulations. The Board may, where
appropriate, apply for suspension of trading in the securities of the
Company pending disclosure of inside information in order to maintain
fair trading in its securities and to address any matters about the
disclosure.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 111 to 113.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend in
FY2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance including a fair review of the
Group’s business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, future development in the Company’s business and
analysis using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the
sections headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this annual report. The
above sections form an integral part of this Directors’ report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The ESG report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024 containing the information required under Appendix C2 to the
Listing Rules will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website
and at the section headed “Sustainability” of the Company’s website
http://www.landsea.hk/ the same time as this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC
and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of employees of the
Group was 685 (as at 31 December 2023: 1,506). Employees are our
valuable assets, thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Board adopted
a 2014 Share Award Scheme as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives to retain them for
the continuing operation and development of the Group. The restricted
Shares to be awarded will be with reference to the performance,
operating and financial targets and other criteria determined by the
Board from time to time. The Group provides training opportunities for
employees. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to
achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, the management has kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year under review,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its business partners or bank enterprises.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitle
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 20 June 2025, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 17 June 2025 to Friday, 20 June 2025,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 June 2025.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end date.
The net decrease in fair value of RMB1.8 million has been credited
directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
19 and 20 to the financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB24,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2024, the
balance of the account was RMB390,827,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng (appointed on 31 December 2024)
Mr. Tian Ming (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Zheng (resigned on 31 December 2024)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Li Huanbin (appointed on 31 December 2024)
Ms. Gu Jing (resigned on 31 December 2024)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Xie Cilong (appointed on 21 June 2024)

Ms. Li Rong (appointed on 28 February 2025)

Mr. Xu Xiaonian (resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025)

Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Rui Meng shall retire
from office as Director by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.

Mr. Xie Cilong was appointed by the Board on 21 June 2024 as an
independent non-executive Director, and he shall be subject to re-election
as Directors at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 83 of the Bye-Laws.

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng was appointed by the Board on 31 December
2024 as a executive Director, and he shall be subject to re-election as
Directors at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 83 of the Bye-Laws.

Mr. Li Huanbin was appointed by the Board on 31 December 2024
as a non-executive Director, and he shall be subject to re-election as
Directors at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 83 of the Bye-Laws.
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Ms. Li Rong was appointed by the Board on 28 February 2025 as an
independent non-executive Director, and she shall be subject to re-
election as Directors at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 83 of the Bye-
Laws.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
by reference to the experience, qualification, position and performance
of each Director and senior management and the goals, strategies and
performance of the Company. The remuneration also aligned with the
market practice and conditions. The Group also has in place the Share
Option Scheme 2022 and the 2024 Share Award Scheme as long term
incentive for performance.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements
in this report, respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, none of the
Directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

There was no inducement paid or receivable by Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company; nor was there compensation paid during the financial year
or receivable by Directors or past Directors, or the five highest paid
individuals for the loss of office.

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
which are available to all relevant employees. For details, please refer
to note 2.25(b) to the financial statements in this report. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.
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DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

Name of Director Capacity

EEHR 8%

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng Beneficial owner

JEV R MG S A EnEAA
Note:
1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the number of

issued Shares as at 31 December 2024 of 4,722,307,545.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 41 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, no contracts of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMBO (2023:
RMB100,000).
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
34 to the financial statements, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted the 2014 Share Award Scheme as
an incentive to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, as well as attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The Directors strongly believe that the
continued success of the Group is closely tied with the commitment
and efforts of the employees of the Group. The Restricted Shares can
serve as an incentive to motivate them to further contribute to the
Group. The Restricted Shares to be awarded will be with reference
to the performance, operating and financial targets and other criteria
determined by the Board from time to time. The 2014 Share Award
Scheme is effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of
adoption subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board.

As the 2014 Share Award Scheme expired on 1 July 2024, the
2024 Share Award Scheme was adopted for a term of ten (10) years
commencing on 2 July 2024, in order to continue to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives to the employees
in order to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, as well as to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.
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The summary of the principal terms and conditions of the 2014 Share
Award Scheme and the 2024 Share Award Scheme were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 2 July 2014 and 25 June 2024
respectively and included in the section headed “Summary of Share
Schemes” below. Details of movement of the Restricted Shares during the
year are set out as below:

—ZT—FRG EEE B R =T — INF (D SR AT
B2 EEBRAREHEREHIRAR A B ES R
AZE—NFLtAZARZZTE-_NFAAA=Z+H
BZRERETXIROFAEBME] —&  -RNER
FR&BIMEAR () 2 BB FEBE T -

Unvested Unvested
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Date of award Shares Shares Restricted Restricted Shares as at
Category of of Restricted as at awarded  Sharesvested  Shares lapsed 31 December  Vesting period/
awardees Shares 1 January 2024  during the year  during the year  during the year 2024  conditions
R-Z-MF R-E-MmF
—-B—H +T=B=t-H
SR RIRR A ABE2 REARBz REREEZ RERXRZ ABEZ
BRBALZER B3 B FR 4 IR A7) R 6 4 IR 47 R 5 14 R 47 R R4 REtRE BEDH K4
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Zhou Kunpeng 31 March 2020 900,000 20,184,022 21,084,022 - - Note, vesting
AL E “E-THE conditions (i)
=A=t+-H PFEE 5 {61 i)
Sub-total of Directors 900,000 20,184,020 21,084,020 - -
EEat
The five highest paid 31 March 2020 46,400,000 = 46,400,000 = - Note, vesting
individuals during the 33 conditions i)
financial year in aggregate =A=+—H PREEE ~ 558 {6 i)
RABREENRS
BaaMATE
25 June 2024 = 67,280,070 67,280,074 = - Note, vesting
—ZoE conditions (iv)
~NAZTAA PiFEE ~ R (v)
Sub-total of the five highest paid individuals 46,400,000 67,280,070 113,680,074 - -
during the financial year in aggregate
REBEENEERSHMA LG
Employee participants 19 November 2014 980,000 - - 980,000 - Note, vesting
EE2HE —T-mE conditions (i)
+—At+nHA MiEE - R IEHEG)
8 April 2016 309,750 — — 309,750 - Note, vesting
—T-RE conditions (i
mANB P - 5508 1 i)
31 March 2020 42,400,000 - 17,300,000 14,100,000 11,000,000  Note, vesting
ZTZTE conditions (ii)
=A=+—H PEE ~ 53 B A0 i)
25 June 2024 - 51,041,654 51,041,654 - - Note, vesting
—TmE conditions (iv)
ANAZTHHA PFEE - B 161 ()
Sub-total of Employee participants 43,689,750 51,041,654 68,341,654 15,389,750 11,000,000
EES8RE G
Total 90,989,750 138,505,750 203,105,750 15,389,750 11,000,000
o
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Notes:

1. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, half of the Restricted Shares
granted are exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and half of the Restricted
Shares are exercisable at nil consideration. Such Restricted Shares are held by Core
Pacific — Yamaichi International (H.K.) Nominees Limited, the trustee appointed by
the Company for the administration of the Scheme, before they are vested.

2. The awarded shares granted under the 2014 Share Award Scheme on 25 June
2024 were vested upon grant for nil consideration. The fair value of the awarded
shares as at the date of grant was HK$0.054 per share and the weighted average
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant/vesting was
HK$0.054.

Vesting Conditions:
(i) Restricted Shares granted on 19 November 2014:
(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of two years
is required

(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 8 April 2016:
(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’'s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

B -

(i)
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(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 31 March 2020:

(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

(iv)  Shares granted on 25 June 2024:

All the awarded shares were vested upon grant and were not
subject to any performance targets or any clawback mechanism.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted and became effective upon
passing relevant ordinary resolution at the AGM of the Company held
on 25 April 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme 2012”). Summary of
the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme 2012 were set out in
the circular to the Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012 and
included in the section headed “Summary of Share Schemes” below.

Since the Share Option Scheme 2012 has expired on 25 April 2022,
the shareholders of the Company has approved to adopt the new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme 2022") at the AGM
held on 30 June 2022. Summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme 2022 were set out in the circular to the Company’s
shareholders on 27 May 2022 and included in the section headed
“Summary of Share Schemes” below. No share option was granted
under the Share Option Scheme 2022 during the year ended 31
December 2024. As at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, the
number of share options that are available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme 2022 was 472,230,754, representing approximately
10% of the issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
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SUMMARY OF SHARE SCHEMES

Purpose

=l

Participants

Maximum entitlement

&= A R D

Share Option Scheme 2022
“ECCFRREE

To grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

FEAKETASERSEERLBERE FRARFYUAE
B B R B PR -

Directors of the Group and employees (whether full time or
part time) of the Group.

AEEESERAKEREE (TRE2BHEFR) -

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options and the options granted
under other schemes (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

PMEM 1218 A Hf - RITERBRERBEE M ERE 2
BREBRETERNRTEZBRE) MEBETRAT
BOTRABRAZRDEY  TEBEARRRAERE &
BRARA1%
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2014 Share Award Scheme and 2024 Share Award
Scheme

—E-MERARDHUR-E-NERAXDH Y

As an incentive to recognize the contributions by
employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
the continuing operation and development of the Group, as
well as to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group.

RYREZER ABREATEENHELENER
MEEN  TRAREE-FSERBRIIBEEAT -

Any employee or director (including, without limitation, any
executive directors, non-executive directors or independent
non-executive directors) of any member of the Group.
AEEZEAKEZENEEXES (BRETRNE
AMTES  FRMTESHBUFNTES) -

The Board shall not make any further award of the
Restricted Shares/Awarded Shares which will result in
the aggregate number of the Restricted Shares/Awarded
Shares awarded by the Board throughout the duration of
the Scheme to be in excess of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
EZRTBE—SRLBHERGRBRG  EHE
ZRERGERE AR L 2 REVERG,RBR N B
HBBAR AR EZ 2 #ITRAT10% °
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Exercisable period

TS

Vesting period

FEH

Acceptance

Y

90

Landsea Green Management Limited

Share Option Scheme 2022
S ERBA Y

A period (which may not be later than 10 years from the offer
date of that option) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee thereof and, in the absence of such
determination, from the offer date to the earlier of:
SERBERERNS - AEFRTEWBAERRA 2 BE(TE
BEZBREZNE SR +F) MEFRBELEZRT
ARHENBREENTZRERE

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in
the offer to an eligible participant who accepts an offer, there
is neither any performance targets that need to be achieved
by the eligible participant before an option can be exercised
nor any minimum period for which an option must be held
before the option can be exercised.

The Board may, however, at its absolute discretion, fix any
minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the option can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to an eligible participant.
BRIEZRAREIERNMEERLEERICENS
GRBREREAERBRERTRBRE 2 AILRESD
WRFBR MERTETEERE A LARABRE
B HAIR

A EERALENFEELARARREZREHR -
VEREHZENKRRBERURERNAERZEERLBR
BRITEBBER L AR R 2T AR

By remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof within such time, which
shall not be later than 21 days from the offer date.
ARERNABBR (MEERED R GRF21A) RN TR
DA ZEFI.00BTIERBERBIREZKE -

Annual Report 2024

2014 Share Award Scheme and 2024 Share Award
Scheme

—E-MERARDHUR-T-NERARDE

N/A

TER

When the relevant selected grantee has satisfied the two
vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of
making the award, upon satisfaction of the first vesting
conditions, the selected grantee shall entitle to the related
income or distribution derived (such as the dividend arising
therefrom) from the Restricted Shares/Awarded Shares
under the award; and upon satisfaction of the second
vesting condition, the selected grantee shall become entitle
to the Restricted Shares/Awarded Shares, the Trustee shall
transfer the relevant Restricted Shares/Awarded Shares to
that grantee.
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Basis of determining the

exercise price of options/
purchase price of shares
awarded

EEBRETRE &
BEnEEE I KE

Remaining life of the
scheme

5812 SR

Share Option Scheme 2022
RS ERBA Y

Determined at the discretion of the Directors, provided that it

shall not be less than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the Shares on the offer date;

(2)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and

(3)  the nominal value of a Share.

HESMERE  BEPMEIRUTZ&RE

(1) REXNBH BIM BEREXAREE-—FIZ
FRG AR OB

@ EEZHNEHMLMAERA MIMBARERM
W R TFHRTE : R

@ BiHmEE-

Remains valid and effective for 10 years from the adoption
date on 30 June 2022, until 29 June 2032.
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2014 Share Award Scheme and 2024 Share Award
Scheme

—E-NERHEMHUR-T-DERHED Y

N/A

TER

2014 Share Award Scheme: Remains valid and effective for
10 years from the adoption date on 2 July 2014, until 1 July
2024.

2024 Share Award Scheme: Remains valid and effective for
10 years from the adoption date on 2 July 2024, until 1 July
2034.
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Under the Share Option Scheme 2022, the 2014 Share Award Scheme
and the 2024 Share Award Scheme, there are no:

(i) participants with options or awards granted that is in excess of
the 1% individual limit;

(i)  options and awards granted and to be granted to any related
entity participant or service provider in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue; and

(i)  clawback mechanism.

Saved as disclosed in this report and in note 34(C) under “STOCK
INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES”, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had any other option schemes during the year ended 31
December 2024.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company:
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ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE AATEREEMBIHNEZER

COMPANY

Name of Shareholders

BRREE/AH
Tian Ming (Note 1)
HE (1)

Nanjing Ding Chong (Note 2)
ARSE (fff2)

LLandsea Group (Note 2)
HEEIEICGE)

LLandsea International (Note 2)
Landsea International (Fff 5£2)

Greensheid (Note 2)
Greensheid (Ff3£2)

Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (Note 3)
Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (fif53)

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (Note 3)
Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (Fffz£3)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,

Ltd. (Note 4)

PETZRR (KB RHERAF (M)

Long Position/
Short Position

HE/ %R
Long position
e

Long Position
e

Long position
e

Long Position
e

Long position
He

Long position
He

Long position
e
Long position
e

Short position

NN
KR

Capacity

5t

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation
Rt EE#ER

Beneficial interest
o s

i}
Bl
Bl

\

Beneficial interest

)

S1E

N
\

\

/

B
N
Y

B

nm?}

Interest in controlled corporation

AR

Beneficial interest
iy

i

/
N

m
BX

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation

% i) EE
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Number of
Shares held

FisRAEE

1,415,329,857

1,030,410,572

1,030,410,572

662,495,678

367,914,894

662,495,678

384,919,285

384,919,285

327,002,604

327,002,604

BEEegRBRAT B8

Approximate
percentage in
total number

of issued

Shares Mete?)
HERTRG
RYZBO
ER L AGEL

0 & 3R

29.97%

21.82%

21.82%

14.02%

7.79%

14.02%

8.15%

8.15%

6.92%

6.92%
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Name of Shareholders

RREE/ L8

Ping An Life Insurance Company of

China Ltd. (Note 4)

PR ASRIBBIDARAR (F5E4)

Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance

Company of China, Ltd. (Note 4)

PR ERBBRNARAR (FE4)

Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. (Note 4)

FrABERRATF (HE4)

Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 4)
T BEBAFRAR (HT4)

Fuiji Investment Management Limited (Note 4)

BEEREEHARAR (M4
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Long Position/
Short Position

HR/ KR
Long position
e

Short position
KRB
Long position
e
Short position
%A
Long position
e
Short position
%A
Long position
e
Short position
%A
Long position

He

Short position

e
WKE

Capacity

L8

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Interest in controlled corporation
AR S

Interest in controlled corporation
AR R

Interest in controlled corporation
AR R

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Interest in controlled corporation
REthEERER

Beneficial interest

Ny

StE

i}
i
|

B

B

\

Beneficial interest
1

i

\
T
Bk
Bk
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Number of
Shares held

FrEROEE

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

327,002,604

Approximate
percentage in
total number
of issued
Shares Mote?
HERTRE
FCE

Eﬁ\tt(ﬁﬁiﬂ

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%

6.92%



Name of Shareholders

RREE/E8

State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government (Note 5)

HRMARBNEEEEEEER
Z82(fsEs5)

Nanjing Urban Construction Investment
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 5)
MRMAmERREER (£E)
BB EMEDE (FFE5)

Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment &
Management Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Note 5)

ERTEHEEEREERER (£E)
BREFAR (FizES5)

Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Note 5)
AREESBEEREFAR (E5)

Nanijing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd.

(Note 5)
HRAEmEL ORNBR AR (FE5)

Hong Kong Newdawn International Co.,
Limited (Note 5)

Hong Kong Newdawn International
Co., Limited (Fffz£5)

Chen Huaijun (Note 6)
BOEE (fi56)

LLucky Front Investments Limited (Note 6)
Lucky Front Investments Limited (Ff{556)

Long Position/
Short Position

HR/ KR

Long Position
HE

Long Position
e

Long Position
He

Long Position
He

Long Position
e

Long Position
e

Long Position
e

Long Position
He

Capacity

L8

Interest in controlled corporation
R EE R

Interest in controlled corporation
REHEE S

Interest in controlled corporation

B HEE

Interest in controlled corporation

% i) EE

Interest in controlled corporation
AR S

Beneficial Interest

e

T T

i}
|

N

N

B

\

Interest in controlled corporation
REtEE#ER

Beneficial Interest

S

B

i
B

\
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Number of
Shares held

FrsROEE

314,507,927

314,507,927

314,507,927

314,507,927

314,507,927

314,507,927

944,461,509

944,461,509

— == =
P —

Approximate
percentage in
total number

of issued

Shares Mot
HERTRH
Ay BH

B2 b WED

0 & 3R

6.66%

6.66%

6.66%

6.66%

6.66%

6.66%

20.00%

20.00%
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Notes:

96

These include (i) 367,914,894 Shares held through Landsea International; (i)
662,495,678 Shares held through Greensheid; and (i) 384,919,285 Shares held
through Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd.. Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea
International, which is in turn wholly-owned by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is
owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management Consultants
Ltd. (“Nanjing Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Mr. Tian is regarded as the
controlling shareholder of Landsea Group. Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is
wholly-owned by Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd.. Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. is
wholly-owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in these
1,415,329,857 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

These include () 367,914,894 Shares held through Landsea International and (i)
662,495,678 Shares held through Greensheid. Greensheid is wholly-owned by
Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned by Landsea Group. Landsea
Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong, a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Tian, and as to 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Landsea
International is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Greensheid,
and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Landsea
International and Greensheid, as well as Nanjing Ding Chong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Greensheid and Landsea International pursuant to
the SFO.

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd.

These include (i) 327,002,604 Shares held by Fuiji Investment Management Limited.
Fuji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real Estate
Capital Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate Company
Limited. Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49.5% by Ping An
Life Insurance Company of China, Ltd. and 35% by Ping An Property & Casualty
Insurance Company of China, Ltd.. Each of Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China, Ltd. and Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd.
is owned as to 99.51% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd..
Therefore, each of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An
Life Insurance Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real
Estate Capital Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuiji Investment
Management Limited pursuant to the SFO.
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5. Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Nanjing Textiles
Import & Export Corp., Ltd.. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd. is owned
as to 34.99% by Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.. Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.
is owned as to 60% by Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. and 40% by Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.. Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. are both wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government. Therefore, each
of State-Owned Assets Supervision And Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government, Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd., Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Textiles Import & Export
Corp., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Newdawn
International Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.

6. Lucky Front Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Huaijun.

7. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the number of issued
Shares as at 31 December 2024 of 4,722,307,545.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors was a director
or employee of a company which had, or was deemed to have, an
interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 December 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has the following

connected transactions:

(1)

98

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea
Group agreed to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate
principal amount of not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong
Kong Dollar equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries
during the two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an
interest rate of 5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest
free since 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2023, Landsea
International, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group
has granted shareholder loan to the Company which has been
settled.

Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2024, an aggregate of
RMB3,084,622 remain outstanding.
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On 8 March 2024, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, Shanghai Langxin Property Development Limited*
(/881 5t E % A R A 7)), Suzhou branch of Shanghai
Landsea Investment Management Limited* (£ /& Bf 55 &
EIE BB A A &M o A Al), Shanghai Langming Property
Development Limited* (E/BB#EERZEFR A F),
Shanghai Langxu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* (_E /& BF i}
(P EEIE AR A A]) and Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd* (L& E
ZEEBR R A (colectively, the “Group Members”) entered
into the property transfer agreement with Nanjing Landsea
Property Management Co., Ltd.* (B R BAFFWEE R ER A A)
(“Nanjing Landsea Property”) and Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate
Brokerage Co., Ltd.* ({Ei5[E#EEFEHELLBRAF) (‘Wuxi
Huilin Yiju”) (collectively, the “Landsea Green Life Group
Members”), pursuant to which the Group Members agreed to
transfer the target property, comprising 2 office premises and 6
car parking spaces located at the Landsea Peak in Cloud Project
developed and built by the Group in Putuo District, Shanghai, the
PRC, to the Landsea Green Life Group Members (the “Property
Transfer”) at a consideration of RMB9,071,671, which shall be
settled by offsetting the equivalent outstanding amount payable
by the Group Members to the Landsea Green Life Group
Members.

The Property Transfer was completed on 24 July 2024. For

further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2024.

English translation is for identification purpose only.
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(4) In connection with the March 2024 Disposal, LHC granted the

100

March 2024 Underwriters an option for a period of 30 days
to purchase up to 365,217 additional shares of LSEA Stock
(the “March Option Share(s)”), at the public offering price of
US$11.6 per March Option Share. On 8 March 2024 (New York
Time), 43,362 March Option Shares amounting to US$503,000,
representing approximately 0.12% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024, were
sold by the March 2024 Underwriters to Bruce Frank, Mollie
Fadule, Tom Hartfield and Murong Xinyao at a consideration of
US$508,000 which was paid in cash on 8 March 2024 (New
York Time) to the March 2024 Underwriters.

Bruce Frank, Mollie Fadule and Tom Hartfield are the directors
of Landsea Homes. Murong Xinyao is the spouse of Mr. Tian.
The above disposal constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All of the
applicable percentage ratio(s) in respect of the above disposal
in the public offering were below 5%, the above disposal
constituted a connected transaction which was subject to
reporting and announcement requirements but was exempt
from the circular, independent financial advice and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 March 2024.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment Management Limited (& =
B BRKEEIEARA ) (“Xinbeisheng”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord and Nanjing Landsea
Apartment Commercial Management Limited (E REAE BRI ¥ E
2 F R /2 7)) (‘“Nanjing Landsea Apartment”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry Development
Co., Ltd* (E/BBAEEX ER AR A A]), as tenant, entered
into a rental agreement (the “Rental Agreement”) on 1 February
2017, pursuant to which Xinbeisheng agreed to lease the
property at the 11 buildings at Chang Ying Cun, Mai Gao Qiao
to Nanjing Landsea Apartment for a term of 15 years from 1
February 2017 to 30 January 2031.

Nanjing Landsea Apartment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, and therefore a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The rental paid/payable to Nanjing Landsea Apartment under the
Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
RMB2,638,568 (tax inclusive).

2. On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Landsea Green Life (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement in relation
to the provision of properties services and property consulting
services by Landsea Green Life and its subsidiaries (“Landsea
Green Life Group”) to the Group (the “2023 Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement”), pursuant
to which Landsea Green Life Group shall provide properties
services and property consulting services to the Group for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026 at the respective annual caps of RMB40 million,
RMB40 million and RMB40 million.

English translation is for identification purpose only.
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The actual transaction amount under the 2023 Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2024 is approximately RMB10.5 million.

On 18 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Landsea Group (for itself and on behalf of

3.

its subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement in relation
to the project management services provided by the Group to
Landsea Group (the “2023 Project Management Services
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which the
Group shall continue to provide project management services
to Landsea Group and its subsidiaries for a term of three years
commencing from 28 December 2023 to 27 December 2026.
The respective annual caps are as follows:

BHE_T_MF+_A=+—HILFE"
E_—FYPERBERYPEFLABIERETNE
BRI P ERAB/ARE1,0508 7T °

R-E-—=ZF+A+=0 AR (REXRF
RREFEMBAR) HAFER (HEXAF K
REEWEB AR I EBASERBAFER
RERBRERBOELRGE ([Z8B==
BERAERBEHRD Bt NEEBEE
MR E R E W E QAR AR ERE
BEZZE_=F+ A+ NAEZZT=RF
TZAZTER BREH=F - FE LR
U

Period Annual cap
HA R FELR
RMB’ million

ARBBET

28 December 2023 to 27 December 2024 —E-_=F+_-_A -+ N \HE-_Z-_NF+_-_A=++H 90
28 December 2024 to 27 December 2025 =T =—F+ A=+ N\BEZFT-AF+=-A=++tH 90
28 December 2025 to 27 December 2026 —ZE_AF+-_A -+ N\BE_ZE=-_"F+_HA=++H 90

The actual transaction amount under the 2023 Project
Management Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024 is approximately RMB2.8 million.
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On 16 October 2024, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and Shanghai Landsea Green Architectural
Technology Co., Ltd. (/8RAFF&EERK M AR A F]) (“Shanghai
Landsea Green Architectural”) (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement in relation
to the provision of green architecture services by Shanghai
Landsea Green Architectural and its subsidiaries (the “Green
Architecture Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
Shanghai Landsea Green Architectural shall provide the green
architecture services to the Group for the period from 16 October
2024 to 31 December 2026.

The annual caps for the green architecture services under the
Green Architecture Services Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB9
million, RMB9 million and RMB9 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount under the Green Architecture
Technological Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024 is approximately RMB482,000.

Connected Parties Relationship

U

(i)

(i)

Landsea Group through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, was interested in 1,030,410,572 Shares as at the
date of the Rental Agreement and the 2023 Project Management
Services Agreement, representing approximately 21.82% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Landsea Group, being the then
controlling shareholder of the Company;

Landsea Green Life was indirectly held as to 40.20% by Mr. Tian
as at the date of the 2023 Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement. Landsea Green Life, being an associate
of Mr. Tian, is therefore a connected person of the Company;
and

Shanghai Landsea Green Architectural was indirectly held as
t0 99.9% by Mr. Tian as at the date of the Green Architecture
Services Agreement. Therefore, Shanghai Landsea Green
Architectural is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Tian.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1) the
Rental Agreement, (2) 2023 Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement, (3) 2023 Project Management Services
Agreement and (4) Green Architecture Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2024. Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their
findings and conclusions of the review in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this report.

(1)  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
conducted, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(8) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not carried out, in all
material respects, in accordance with the Relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual caps set by the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions
and the continuing connected transactions carried out during the
year ended 31 December 2024 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35.3% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 19.4% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 8.1% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 2.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
close associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than the trust of the
2014 Share Award Scheme or the 2024 Share Award Scheme) did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

As of 31 December 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none
of the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company upon the request of the Company with effect from 27
October 2023 as the Company and PWC were unable to reach a
consensus in respect of the audit fee for the year ending 31 December
2023. At the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
resolved to appoint Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as the new auditor
of the Company with effect from 27 October 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of PWC and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2025 AGM for the re-appointment
of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors of the
Company for the past three years.

On behalf of the Board

Landsea Green Management Limited
Zhou Kunpeng

Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Landsea Green Management Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Landsea Green Management Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 321, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of matters described in the
Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all
other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As described in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2024, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB4,213 million and net liabilities of approximately RMB1,559 million.
The Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,513 million for the year ended
31 December 2024. At the end of reporting period and up to the date
of approval of the consolidated financial statements, the Group was in
default of a senior note (the “Defaulted Senior Note”) with principal
amount of US$33 million (equivalent to RMB240 million) and interest
amount of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) because of non-
payment for over 2 years from its due date. Subsequent to 31 December
2024, the Company received a letter formally demanding the Group to
settle principal and interest under the Defaulted Senior Note or otherwise
a winding-up petition may be presented to the court. In addition to the
Defaulted Senior Note, the Group had secured borrowings totalling
approximately RMB511 million that were overdue and remained unpaid
as at 31 December 2024 and up to the date of approval of consolidated
financial statements, comprising loans from other financial institutions
of approximately RMB451 million and borrowing form a bank of
approximately RMB60 million.
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These events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in
note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that
material uncertainties exist that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been formulating a number of plans
and measures to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and improve its
financial position, which are set out in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
on the outcome of these measures, including whether the Group is
able to (i) successfully adjust sales and pre-sales activities to achieve
budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes and timely collection of sales
proceeds; (i) successfully arrange payments to constructors and
suppliers on schedule and meet all of the necessary conditions to
launch the pre-sale and complete the development of the properties on
schedule; (jii) successfully negotiate with the holders of the Defaulted
Senior Note and comply with financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the other borrowings, successfully and timely secure
or extend the loans from financial institutions when necessary; (iv)
successfully dispose of certain investment properties held by the
Group’s subsidiaries, and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties, and timely receive the
proceeds; as well as successfully receive dividends and advances from
certain joint ventures and associates; and (v) successfully generate
operating cash flows through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative costs.

In view of the above, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves about the appropriateness of the
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures on a timely basis and operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s
report. We report solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements.
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We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Sai Ho.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

Chan Sai Ho
Practising certificate number PO7705
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Fair value losses — net

Other losses — net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint ventures

Loss before income tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year
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Note
{hr=2

3.1(b)
10

11
11

11
17
18

12

2024 2023
—E-E TR =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
1,725,922 9,039,797
(1,414,125) (7,929,178)
311,797 1,110,619
6,514 18,685
(126,017) (547,287)
(330,167) (972,727)
(183,953) (194,315)
(9,222) (29,979)
(1,495,256) (53,416)
(1,826,304) (668,420)
29,119 18,997
(149,778) (232,099)
(120,659) (213,102)
623,553 (94,087)
(208,922) 152,291
(1,532,332) (823,318)
18,863 (40,001)
(1,513,469) (863,319)
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE—ZT_NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operations

Iterns that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss:

— Exchange difference on translation of
functional currency to presentation
currency of the Company

— Exchange difference on translation of
functional currency to presentation
currency of non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year
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2024 2023
—EE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
(1,513,469) (863,319)
(64,802) (8,353)
(26,206) (16,491)
4,879 24,948
(86,129) 104
(1,599,598) (863,215)




Loss for the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to the
shareholders of the Company for
the year

Basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income
e Bm kA MEE NS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—ZT_NFE+-_A=+—HItFE
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2024 2023

—E-mE =&

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR%TR ARETTT
(1,509,333) (860,793)
(4,136) (2,526)
(1,513,469) (863,319)
(1,600,341) (885,637)

743 22,422
(1,599,598) (863,215)

RMB RMB

ARY AR
13 (0.327) (0.189)
13 (0.327) (0.189)
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Consolidated statement of
financial position
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As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-—ME+—-A=+—H

n4

Landsea Green Management Limited

Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
—EWE —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ART ARBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties BB 19 66,400 321,600
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KR 20 220,841 251,898
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 21 905 85,325
Interests in associates NNz op 17 1,598,405 1,074,737
Interests in joint ventures RNE e bENER 18 2,081,049 2,315,077
Trade and other receivables, JFEE 8 B R B EL A B R
prepayments and deposits ENRREE 27 18,394 29,603
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEREE 32 281,207 409,501
Goodwill [ 22 - 486,148
4,267,201 4,973,889
Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale FEHE M 23 819,279 605,541
Properties under development MR EHE 25 1,401,727 9,095,550
Inventories BT 24 30,319 30,448
Contract assets EREE 5.2 259,775 280,720
Trade and other receivables, JE LS B SR N At FE U R
prepayments and deposits BN R RES 27 1,928,784 3,279,961
Restricted cash ZREIHRS 28 63,142 99,315
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEED 28 553,065 988,161
5,056,091 14,379,696
Total assets BEEAE 9,323,292 19,353,585




LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Consolidated statement of
financial position

R BIN R

As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-—ME+—-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mE o=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B ARBTR ARBTT

=N
FRBAE
JE 155 BR SR % EL A FE S 51 29 4,000 351,662
BRARBEFABZD
TRAR 30 - 39,047
HEAE 21 519 73,879
fBx 31 1,477,699 5,241,915
BEFTEREE 32 130,778 190,497
1,612,996 5,897,000
REBAaE
JE 1T BR 3K I EL At FE A< 3K 29 7,512,035 8,082,921
BRARBEFABRHNESE
afE 30 - 311,840
aRARE 5.2 292,110 248,606
HEAE 21 264 26,646
B 31 1,329,049 1,972,978
EVERAT ST B A 136,024 741,310
9,269,482 11,384,301
EEHAE 10,882,478 17,281,301
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Consolidated statement of
financial position

R BIN R

As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-—ME+—-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EE o=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR®TR ARBTT

EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to BEREARTBRRNELRRHE

the shareholders of the Company

Share capital [N 33 38,702 38,702
Reserves s 35 (1,538,666) (49,729)
(1,499,964) (11,027)

Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) 1 2 36 (59,222) 2,083,311
Total (deficit)/equity (B4t) RERBE (1,559,186) 2,072,284
Total liabilities and deficit/equity BEREMN EREE 9,323,292 19,353,585

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read it 474 B & AR O 3% FE EREE B MY 53 — PF R 8 -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 321 were F 111 E2321BHENGAHEREZER_ZE -1
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2025 and were signed ®=F -+ /\H&KE=ERBHE  WHATALTHRE

on its behalf. HE o
Zhou Kunpeng Li Huanbin

JB 5 s 1

Director Director

BF EF
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At 1 January 2023

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive
(loss)/income

Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year

Movement of employee
share trust account

Employee share based
compensation

Transfer the shares to
employees related to share
based compensation

Repurchase of shares
of a subsidiary

Release

Disposal of shares of
a subsidiary without losing
control

Subtotal of transactions
with shareholders

At 31 December 2023
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Consolidated statement of
Changes in equity

/\\7]—\ 7|t / T 5 @J %%
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZE T _MF+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
FERARBRE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
FEFE L
&N [ mEt Ham  EEER
(note 33) (note 35) (note 36)
(ftEE33)  (Pt&ES5) GEXD)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AREFTT ARETT AR®TRT AR®TT AR%TR
38,702 678,158 716,860 1,976,498 2,693,358
- (860,793) (860,793) (2,526) (863,319)
- (24,844) (24,844) 24,948 104
- (885,637) (885,637) 22,422 (863,215)
34 - (209) (209) - (209)
34 - 8,277 8,277 - 8,277
34 - (2,896) (2,8906) 19,776 16,880
35(c) = 84,266 84,266 (304,591) (220,325)
88 - 289,747 289,747 - 289,747
35(b) - (221,435) (221,435) 369,206 147,771
- 157,750 157,750 84,391 242,141
38,702 (49,729 (11,027) 2,083,311 2,072,284

BEEegRBRAT “E_NFEER n7



Consolidated statement of
changes in equity

GERREnE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ T _MWF+_A=+—HIEFE

Note

Attributable to the shareholders

M AR®TR

At 1 January 2024 R-Z-NF—F—H

Loss for the year FEBR

Other comprehensive Hit 2@ (), Wi
(loss)/income

Exchange difference on BEBINEBEED
translation of foreign PN =5
operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2HE (FE)WE

income for the year HEE
Movement of employee share & B R E5TERE

trust account 34
Employee share based 1& B B s B

compensation 34
Repurchase of shares of a (o] B FfY BB 2 ) AR 12

subsidiary 35(c)
Revaluation surplus released & ¥ 2% R A

upon disposal of property ERPhS 85
Disposal of shares of EREREHIEAERT

a subsidiary without losing HEKH B2 AR

control 35(g)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR 39

Subtotal of transactions HERERSZ /st
with shareholders

At 31 December 2024 R-ZZE-NEF

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

of the Company
BERARATRR
Non- Total
Share controlling equity
capital  Reserves Total interests /(deficit)
FEEEFIM BE/
R 7 EX] #mct i (B#)RH
(note 33) (note 35) (note 36)
(BFaE33)  (HF7E35) (Kt=£36)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrR AR%®TR AR%®TxR
38,702 (49,729) (11,027) 2,083,311 2,072,284
- (1,509,333) (1,509,333) (4,136) (1,513,469)
- (91,008) (91,008) 4,879 (86,129)
- (1,600,341) (1,600,341) 743  (1,599,598)
- 1,440 1,440 - 1,440
- 8,149 8,149 - 8,149
- (12,217) (12,217) (27,511) (39,728)
- (1,289) (1,289) - (1,289)
- - - 383 383
- 115,321 115,321  (2,116,148) (2,000,827)
- 111,404 111,404  (2,143,276) (2,031,872)
38,702 (1,538,666) (1,499,964) (59,222) (1,559,186)
iR G W o B B 5K R B BB P B 5 — F B RE o
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid

Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Capital injection to joint ventures

Dividend from joint ventures

Dividend from associates

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
net of cash and cash equivalents

Proceeds from deconsolidation of
subsidiaries, net of cash and cash
equivalents

Proceeds from partial disposal of shares
of joint ventures

Proceeds from disposal of associates

(Payment for)/proceeds from acquisition
of subsidiaries, net of cash and cash
equivalents

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
property

Funding to related parties

Collection of funding to related parties

Repayment from advance to
non-controlling interests

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Consolidated statement of
cash flows

= AL AN =
,ZNT\ = fﬁixﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZE T _MF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mE o=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B & AR®T ARBTT

RETHNRERE

BEFFIRE 37 (797,005) 521,565
EHIIR (50,138) (107,037)
B F A (133,082) (730,838)
RETHFARS TR (980,225) (316,310)
RETENRERE
B A E 3 199
RELEEEIE - (2,550)
REEEREHRE 203,703 5,300
REBE QAR E - 18,552
& BT B A R FR S A -
HhRBEeREEEEY 39 (394,851) =
M@ AR IEERE ABRFTSFIE -
NpHEeRESEEY
(1,215) =
HoHEaEERND
P15 3018 137 7,381
BB A R TS 58 659,225 55
FURBEH B A 7
(30 FBRIE - 1k
RekREEFED 38 (682) 606
BEME  BEREH (8,612) (63,608)
HEME - HERZE
FrS 5k 18 105,252 31,262
HERE U MEMEHIE
32,200 =
MBS IRENES 41(g) - (15,500)
W el m B IR E £ 41(g) 122,777 252,761
Wz (5] 1A) FE47 ) M e 2 B 5K
- 24,977
RETEHBHRESENE
717,937 259,435

BEEegRBRAT “E_NFEER 19



Consolidated statement of
cash flows

/\T = EEEMLE?%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ T _MWF+_A=+—HIEFE

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary
Proceeds from related parties
Repayment to related parties
Repayment to funding from third parties
Proceeds from disposal of shares of a
subsidiary without losing control
Principal elements of lease payments
Shares bought back for employee
share trust

Repayment from financing from third party

Repayment of financial liabilities
Decrease of restricted cash

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

120 Landsea Green Management Limited
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Note
=2

28

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
758,363 4,042,584
(982,090) (4,222,373)
(39,728) (220,325)
- 102,101
(36,729) (24,290)
(8,700) =
383 147,771
(5,941) (28,074)
1,440 (209)
(25,557) (18,300)
- (25,971)
2 55,915
(338,557) (191,171)
(600,845) (248,046)
988,161 1,252,056
165,749 (15,849)
553,065 988,161
GEBa:E -
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Notes to the consolidated

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Management Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and Room 406, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, respectively. The Company’s shares are listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of properties.

As at 31 December 2024, (i) Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BA %
£ B/ AR A A, a company established in the People’s
Republic of China, the “PRC”) (the “Substantial Shareholder”)
beneficially held approximately 21.82% (31 December 2023:
50.39%) of the issued Shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
being the single largest shareholder of the Company. Following
the reduction in its shareholding, the Substantial Shareholder
has lost control of the Group but retains significant influence over
the Group. (i) Mr. Huaijun Chen beneficially held approximately
20.00% (31 December 2023: Nil) of the issued Shares, being the
second largest shareholder of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

financial statements
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RBARTXHEAIAEE] - AEEERH
EEMERTENEE RHUHEERBELLE
YE

R-ZE-_mME+—_A=+—8  ()BAFEH
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements

are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Compliance with HKFRS Accounting Standards,
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“HKCO”) and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of HKCO and Listing
Rules.

HKFRS Accounting Standards comprise the following
authoritative literature:

° Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

o Hong Kong Accounting Standards

o Interpretations developed by the HKICPA

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial liabilities and investment
properties measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Annual Report 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB4,213 million and net
liabilities of approximately RMB1,559 million. The
Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,513 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024. At the end of
reporting period and up to the date of approval of
the consolidated financial statements, the Group
was in default of a senior note (the “Defaulted
Senior Note”) with principal amount of US$33 million
(equivalent to RMB240 million) and interest amount
of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) because
of non-payment for over 2 years from its due date.
Subsequent to 31 December 2024, the Company
received a letter formally demanding the Group to
settle principal and interest under the Defaulted
Senior Note or otherwise a winding-up petition may
be presented to the court. In addition to the Defaulted
Senior Note, the Group had secured borrowings
totalling approximately RMB511 million that were
overdue and remained unpaid as at 31 December
2024 and up to the date of approval of consolidated
financial statements, comprising loans from other
financial institutions of approximately RMB451 million
and borrowing form a bank of approximately RMB60
million.

Due to the slowing down of Mainland China property
market since second half of 2021, the Group’s China
operations had experienced a decline in the business
of property development and the related pre-sales
volume and collection of pre-sale proceeds reduced
significantly in recent years. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB1,513 million and reported a net operating cash
outflow of RMB980 million.

2

BEEegRBRAT

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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(c)

BEEEEE
RZE-_MWF+=—A=+—H"
AEENRBEEFENARAR
B2 ABETRBEFENAA
R¥15598 T - BEZ-ZT _N4F
+_A=+—BHBULFE A£H
BEFEEBEBARK1513E T - K
REHRAREBEZLRATBHRE
R AEEFABHHA RSN
8 R A F M HE K AN £ 88 4 3,300
BEXxT (HERARKE240ET)
NF B &8 A1008 =T (HER
ARB7008TT) WELEER ([E
HWEEERE]) R-_T_WF
+ZA=+—H& ARAEE
—HEG ERERAEEEE
BHEEEBRETHAS RFE
BRIFTgE g AR REERES -
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TEFRH AR 6,000 8 T °

HRABEAMYETRSE -
TFETHFRNE AKED
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B RAEBEEHE T8N RYE
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)
The above conditions indicate the existence of a

(c)

Landsea Green Management Limited

material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors

have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group

will have sufficient financial resources to continue as

a going concern. Certain plans and measures have

been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure

and to improve its cash flows which include, but not

limited to, the following:

)

(i)

(i)

The Group will continue to actively adjust
sales and pre-sale activities to better respond
to market needs, make efforts to achieve the
latest budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes
and amounts, and enhance collection of sales
proceeds;

The Group will maintain continuous
communication with the major constructors and
suppliers to arrange payments to these vendors
and meet all of the necessary conditions
to launch the pre-sale and to complete the
development of properties on schedule;

The Group is actively negotiating to reach
agreements with the holders of the Defaulted
Senior Note. At the same time, the Group
will closely monitor and ensure compliance
with financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the other borrowings, including
timely repayment of principal and interests of
the borrowings. In addition, the Group has
been actively negotiating with certain financial
institutions so that the Group can timely secure
project development loans for qualified projects
and secure or extend other borrowings through
pledge of equity interests in certain subsidiaries;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

(V)

The Group has been in contact with potential
buyers to dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties.
In addition, the Group will continuously seek
dividends and advances from certain joint
ventures and associates according to those
projects’ pre-sale and cashflow conditions; and

The Group will also continue to speed up the
collection of its trade and other receivables and
will also continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash

flow projections for a period of 12 months from
31 December 2024 and are of the opinion that,
taking into account the above-mentioned plans

and measures, the Group will be able to generate
sufficient funds to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall

due within twelve months from 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)
Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties

exist as to whether management of the Company

will be able to achieve its plans and measure as

described above. Whether the Group will be able to

continue as a going concern would depend upon the

following:

)

(i)

Landsea Green Management Limited

successfully adjust sales and pre-sales
activities to achieve budgeted sales and pre-
sales volumes and timely collection of sales
proceeds;

successfully arrange payments to constructors
and suppliers on schedule and meet all of the
necessary conditions to launch the pre-sale and
complete the development of the properties on
schedule;

successfully negotiate with the holders of the
Defaulted Senior Note and comply with financial
covenants and other terms and conditions of
the other borrowings, successfully and timely
secure or extend the loans from financial
institutions when necessary;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

(V)

successfully dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties,
and timely receive the proceeds; as well as
successfully receive dividends and advances
from certain joint ventures and associates; and

successfully generate operating cash flows
through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative
costs.

Should the Group fail to achieve a combination of the
above-mentioned plans and measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,

and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further

liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-

current assets and non-current liabilities as current

assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects

of these adjustments have not been reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.
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R B WRARMEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
A number of amendments and interpretations to
existing standards are mandatory for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
Hong Kong Interpretation 5  Classification by Borrower of
(Revised) Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

Except the below amendments, the standards,
amendments and interpretations described above are
either currently not relevant to the Group or had no
material impact on the Group’s financial information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 6 (2020) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

In August 2020, the HKICPA issued amendments to
HKAS 1 (“2020 HKAS 1 amendments”) to clarify
the requirements on determining if a liability is current
or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has the right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments:
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)
2.1 BAS

(d)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

IS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and related amendments to

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) and Amendments

to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(Continued)

o specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement
must exist at the end of the reporting period;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by
management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement;

° clarify how lending conditions affect
classification; and

o clarify the classification of liabilities that will or
may be settled by issuing an entity’s own equity
instruments.

In December 2022, the HKICPA published
further amendments to HKAS 1 (“2022 HKAS 1
amendments”) to clarify how an entity determines
the current/non-current classification of a liability
when its right to defer the settlement is subject to
compliance with covenants.

The 2020 and 2022 HKAS 1 amendments are to
be applied as a package on a retrospective basis
for annual reporting periods beginning on after 1
January 2024. The application of the amendments
in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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R B WRARMEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(e) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2024 and relevant to the Group
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Standards, amendments and
interpretations

R - BURRE

Amendments to HKAS 21
ERGTERIE 215 (B2
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7
ERMIEMELERE IR KR
RN mELERE 75 (B2
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

BRZ Rl

2

Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to the Classification and

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent

RAEERBEASTHEER #)

21 wBEEEE)
(6) IRIRMBYFATER R 252

AT AR BRAEEAW
g kEBERM BRHARARZ
TN —A—BRANTEF
R H AR BAKEB AR
5 B AR IR ©

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RUT BHR
ZEBEBEN
FEHBEN

1 January 2025
—E-hF—H—H
1 January 2026

Measurement of Financial Instruments
SRTASBRFENEN —E-RF—H—H

HKFRS 7 Electricity
ERMBRELERE IR K P REREEABNHE R —ETZR"E—H—H

BT B HELERE 75 (1B2k)
Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

BEM GRS LR G R BREMBREED
(&%) S+
HKFRS 18

Statements
ERMEmELERE 1855
Amendment to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
ERMBEMELERE 105K
ARG ERIFE 285 (1220
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RFEEEDEASFTHREER ®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 HFEEEH)
(e) New standards and interpretations not yet (e) [EFRIRMBIFTATERRZIE(E)

adopted (Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBEEFHZERRE B"
of what the impact of these developments is BERAERABENTE- ES‘E
expected to be in the period of initial application. BlE - AEESENERE fﬁé?
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them VAR #a] 28 Bl RAS BN » BR 4 5%
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the ZERIKNAIEH GGV FRE
consolidated financial statements except for the EXEATE
below new standards and amendments.
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 BB & BRI E 99 R BER
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement BHMEERETS (1520 [ BT
of Financial Instruments A SR ERIEK]
The amendments to HKFRS 9 clarify the recognition BERMBmEEREIR (B
and derecognition for financial asset and financial BETHEERSRABED ﬁ& e
liability and add an exception which permits an entity MR IEHR - W ABIINE
to deem a financial liability to be discharged before BE B 1%”‘ "aE TRy BT ’ /‘C
the settlement date if it is settled in cash using an FERBERE FTNREFIAR
electronic payment system if, and only if certain SHEENCRBEREANEHER
conditions are met. AR BR o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)
2.1 BAS

(e)

Landsea Green Management Limited

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

IS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The amendments also provide guidance on the
assessment of whether the contractual cash flows
of a financial asset are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. The amendments specify that
an entity should focus on what an entity is being
compensated for rather than the compensation
amount. Contractual cash flows are inconsistent with
a basic lending arrangement if they are indexed to a
variable that is not a basic lending risk or cost. The
amendments state that, in some cases, a contingent
feature may give rise to contractual cash flows that
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement both
before and after the change in contractual cash flows,
but the nature of the contingent event itself does not
relate directly to changes in basic lending risks and
costs. Furthermore, the description of the term “non-
recourse” is enhanced and the characteristics of
“contractually linked instruments” are clarified in the
amendments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)
2.1 BAS

(e)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

IS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7 in respect
of investments in equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income
are amended. In particular, entities are required to
disclose the fair value gain or loss presented in other
comprehensive income during the period, showing
separately those related to investments derecognised
during the reporting period and those related to
investments held at the end of the reporting period.
An entity is also required to disclose any transfers of
the cumulative gain or loss within equity related to
the investments derecognised during the reporting
period. In addition, the amendments introduce the
requirements of qualitative and quantitative disclosure
of contractual terms that could affect the contractual
cash flow based on a contingent even not directly
relating to basic lending risks and cost.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with
early application permitted. The Group has various
subsidiaries operating in jurisdictions where the
electronic payment systems are not instantaneous.
Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will apply the exception to derecognise financial
liabilities settled via such electronic payment systems
when the payment instruction is initiated. On the
other hand, for the settlement by the subsidiaries’
customers vis electronic settlement systems, the
Group can only derecognize the financial assets
when cash is deposited in the bank accounts of the
subsidiaries.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(e)

Landsea Green Management Limited

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on
presentation and disclosures in financial statements,
will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in
HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the
statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to
be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition,
some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to
HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings
per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, with early application permitted. The
application of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
disclosures in the future financial statements. The
Group is in the process of assessing the detailed
impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under commmon control by
the Group (refer to note 2.7).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.5 below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.4

2.5

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures
or joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.5 below), after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

EQUITY METHOD

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.5

2.6

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.14.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable
to the shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
might mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRS Accounting Standards.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

138 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or as
a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

2

&8

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

REEEREAXSTHTHRER @)

2.7

2.8

STHEEEERLT

BRSO #B)

ABRSEE - MZxFREERKREE
BRI B FEEN R AEE Al
HREENEEISHEBWE -

HRERETABONEEEET - A
BRENSHEURELBAHNRE -
ERANERERERNIEEERA X
BIERI B L BIER RGN T AIAE S
TR E ANEBBUERKEH R

RARESPAERRSREALE - DB
BERERORT R RN ER R
AR EBESHENHEASEE-

Eﬂ E\<

WMEBA GO EERET  WEH &
WA EE 77 758 IR A s U B HIRO BR
mE REBEARERAEAAEE
BT EELENTMEBEIRGER

B BMBHRE

SN NETE: O S 792N 11 G H =N
fR - A BRERENEREIGRA K
B RBMEERARBIRE W E WA
BARK -

fisf Y 2 Y B B IR B B B BB - PTIR AR
SHEANBARRERREHMNEHE
W HHZREREBYHHRE
NHREEEBREHURFEE (B
BE)NEaWBBRRANKREER
RIZESZ I EETTRERIE -

“E_NFEER 139



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

M B

140

=My sE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)
29 SEG

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

MENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal

financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of

the performance of those components. The business

components in the internal financial information reported

to the executive directors are determined following the

Group’s major business and service lines.

2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), Renminbi (RMB) and US
dollars (US$) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income within “other losses —
net”.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing date of that statement of financial
position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

142

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives
or lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 mMBEEERTASHBEER ®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 211 Y% - BMERKRE &)

(Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised as “other losses — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

2.12INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied
by the Group. It also include properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in fair value gains or
losses on investment properties.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.7. Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments (note 6).

2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

144

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT OR

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold or freehold
land payments, construction costs and borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

All land in Mainland China is stated-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual ownership right exists. Land
use rights are acquired by the Group for development of
properties. Land use rights held for development for sale
are inventories and measured at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets and included in
properties under development or held for sale, while
those out of the normal operating cycle are classified as
non-current assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties (note
2.12).

2.16 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

(a

(b)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”), or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will be recorded either in profit or loss or in OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “other income”
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other losses — net”, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

RAEERBEASTHEER #)

2ATRERHMESBMERE (&)

ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FrE(E)

Debt instruments (Continued) BT A (&)

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria e BAREBEFAEZ: WA
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured ENRHEREHEKATESL
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment BRARBESAEMEZEEK
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is mHIRE  FRAABES
recognised and presented net in profit or loss ABHEFTE - EEEAAE
within “other losses — net” in the period in Bt \BRFTENEEERE
which it arises. B U5 5 3 S 18 R HEE A B

REZHPERAREIATE
fhEsHEFRE] o
(d) Impairment of financial assets (d ZHEEHRE

Landsea Green Management Limited

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)
2.18 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management services.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value, and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value. Trade and other receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. See note 2.17
and note 3.1(b) for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

2.20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from
cash and cash equivalents.

2

BEEegRBRAT

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

RAEERBEASTHHERER &)

218 EHEMTA
BERAAANITENSGC RS EEH
YTHEBRFREEEEIRKEREE
L#EEAER SREERABTUE
# - WRERAMIERRRAFRRE -

2.19 FE N AR 3R I HL th FE IR
U R A EMERIBHERREM
FE U P HIFRIE o ik 8 Uk BR 3R R E e
W 3k FEER AT R — S SR A Y (S B P
FAEEBENETEERLD) WK
D BEAREEBE - HREER —FEHIA
MUK - BIZD AR EE -

RN R RV R EGRMRESRER -
HEBREEARENDERI  EFER
NABERER - M HE M EYGKRINGRIR
NI EERER o YR E it R
HBRABRME R ILBHXAGE
WAERBE R - BB A KB RAR
A E 5T A SRR & AN & B R (B BCR A1 R
ME—FER - FLHME217 R E

3.1(b) °
220 S RBEEEY

REERERERNZIIME - HER
ReEBYERFBETHRRS RITIBNTF
F o EMRIEA A=A HARIL AT
ERELRSCHNeBENES AT FEE
REEZPEBRNEHRRABMLERE
XREREIEFERESNASEEY
A o

“E_NFEER 149



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Zli“ AN
W /=3

B 75 R R MY 5

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

150

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

(Continued)

Borrowings are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation specified
in the contract is extinguished, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap),
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on

the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other
case,

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the consolidated statement of financial
position date in the jurisdictions where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Current income tax also includes Mainland China land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current income tax assets and income
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognized in
profit or loss.

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a

Landsea Green Management Limited

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
statement of financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally
funded through payments to schemes established
by governments or trustee administered funds. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions on mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis into a separate entity.
In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the People’s Republic of China, the “PRC”, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make
monthly contributions to these plans calculated as
a percentage, which is pre-determined by the local
municipal government, of the employees’ salaries.
The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and are not reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

(d) Housing funds, medical insurances and other

social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are
entitled to participate in various government-
supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plans. The Group contributes
on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject
to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable
in each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

2.26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
Share-based compensation benefit is provided to
employees via the share option scheme, restricted share
award scheme and stock incentive plan of subsidiaries.
Information relating to the share-based payment is set out
in note 34.

The Group operates above schemes and plans to
recognise the contributions by employees. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of options and restricted shares is recognised as employee
benefit expense.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RFEEEDEASFTHREER ®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 2.26 R+ (&)

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the value of the options and
restricted shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At each statement of financial position date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options and restricted
shares that are expected to be vested. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to other reserves.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes of
awarding shares to eligible employees under the share
option scheme and restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s cash
contributions and recorded as contributions to employee
share trusts, an equity component. The administrator of the
employee share trust buys the Company’s shares in the
open market for award to employees.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.27 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.28 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

158

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principals of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)
2.28 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)
The fair value of financial guarantees on initial recognition
equals the present value of the premium in an arm’s length
transaction.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION

(a The Group develops and sells properties, and
provides management services to its customers.
Revenues are recognised when the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws and rules
that apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of
the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(Continued)
If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue

(a)

Landsea Green Management Limited

is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,

revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

()

Property development and sales

The Group develops and sells residential
properties in Mainland China and United State
(the “US”). Revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the property is delivered to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
property in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provision have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue
is recognised over the development period
by reference to the costs incurred up to the
end of reporting period as a percentage of the
total expected costs to complete the contract.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by the Group.

Annual Report 2024

(a)

RAEERBEASTHEER #)

2.29 W AR (&)
(&)

W& EEHIREE - REHEE
BARREBERMEAZ2ED =
RENEENEZER - TR
WAREPFPEREEZEHIENE
BB o

(i)

VEERLIFE

AEERTEAM N EE
(TXRE]) FAEMEEEEY
X-EMERINTEPE
EFPREBEHEARZEY
X BRRBHBERR A
SEEEBERERAMER
WIRFEZER - Bl A
RE-—BHER - WKAEZ
REBEZHREHRTELEKAN
ERFATIEAKRANE D
L R EREER - W15
NEE - AEETEA K
ANk THEER G - A5t
U N B ARAS B S Rl & TR AN SR
BREERETNBREE
HiM R B R -



BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(Continued)

(a

(i)

Management services

The Group provides management services
to its customers at fixed or variable amount.
If the consideration is variable, revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. The Group recognises revenue from
management services over period of time where
the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group
or the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. Otherwise
revenue was recognised at a point in time.
For revenue recognised over period of time,
the Group measures the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligation
on the basis of the actual costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract
or on basis of direct measurements of the
value transferred to the customer. Where the
outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to
be recovered. Provision is made for foreseeable
losses as soon as they are anticipated by the
Group.

(b) Contract costs — costs of obtaining a contract

The costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are
immaterial and are expensed when incurred.

2
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Financing component

The Group adjusts the transaction price for the time
value of money where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payments by the customer exceeds one year
considering it provides a potential significant benefit.
The transaction price is adjusted by the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at
contract inception.

Multiple performance obligations

Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where these are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus margin.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

As agreed in the contracts, the customer pays fixed
or variable amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services or goods rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognised when the
Group’s rights to consideration are condition on the
Group’s future performance. If the payments exceed
the services or goods rendered, a contract liability is
recognised. Any unconditional rights to consideration
are presented separately as receivables.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 mMBEEERTASHBEER ®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.30 INTEREST INCOME 2.30 # B WA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
“other income”.

Interest income is presented as “finance income” where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 11.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

2.31 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at FVPL and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as “other
income” in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this
case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.32 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate. Government grants that become
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred are recognised as income of the period in which
they become receivable.

2.33 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to the shareholders of
the Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

° by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

164 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

RAEERBEASTHEER #)

2.32 AT BY

Wae A B R BT IR BI R AT B T A =@
38 18 PR B B A (G B - RIS BEERAT
MR AR BEER - B BRAOBRATH
B FE 2 A 4R B B L R B A R AR
B TRBREER  EEEL N
X kB T R M A E BT R Bh
AR 5 RE ) B R RSB A UL A o

233 FR W=
(a) BREXYR
FRIREA YT -

o  BERARRBRRSOFE(CH
BIE R B & A A SN (E AT AR
B hER MRS B LA

s NMBFEDHBITEBRAM
BRI GLERDEHTE
BERMEAROELRHBR
TEREEFERD)

(b) ERFBERE
EhHEASCHREEBRER
WaHEANBRFIELAR &
B

e HREBEELBRMBENKR
BAMSMEMBERAS - K

s BRMEMBEELBRN
BBRABEINETEBREE
BN F I8 -



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 REEEREASTHTHEER 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.34 LEASES 2347E

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets cannot be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.34 LEASES (Continued)

166

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 mMBEEERTASHBEER ®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.34 LEASES (Continued) 234 HE (%)

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are measured at fair value applying the fair value
model.

Other right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets which do not meet the definition of
investment property are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option. Low-value
assets mainly comprise IT equipment.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. The respective
leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.35 WARRANTY ACCRUALS

The Company’s listed subsidiary, Landsea Homes provides
home purchasers with limited warranties against certain
building defects and has certain obligations related to
those post-construction warranties for closed homes. The
specific terms and conditions of these limited warranties
vary depending upon the markets in which Landsea
Homes does business, but generally Landsea Homes
provides all of its home buyers with a limited warranty as to
workmanship and mechanical equipment and also provide
many of its home buyers with a limited 10-year warranty as
to structural integrity.

Estimated future direct warranty costs are accrued and
charged to cost of sales in the period when the related
homebuilding revenues are recognised. Amounts are
accrued based upon Landsea Homes’ historical rates of
warranty claims. Historical experience of Landsea Homes’
peers is also considered due to Landsea Homes limited
internal history of homebuilding sales. The adequacy of
the warranty accruals is assessed on a quarterly basis to
reflect changes in trends as information becomes available
and the amounts recorded are adjusted if necessary. The
warranty accruals is included in trade and other payables
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
adjustments to warranty accruals are recorded through
cost of sales.

2.36 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

168

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.37 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company.

Shares held by the company’s employee share trust are
disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity
attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

2.38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probabile, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

170

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According
to the Group’s risk management policies, the financial
risks shall be assessed continuously by the management
taking into account of the prevailing conditions of the
financial market and other relevant variables to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has not used
any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described as below.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

2 HEHEREASHBEER ®)

238HARBEBERAREE (4)

KABETTRAE  BERGAHBH
FU R B o MR AT A
BRETLERER  NERARAR
RS -

IREERRBESHAREELENE
E EFERGERERARESEL
—RAEZRAKE T LT 2 T
BASE (IR HERE o

KRBT RR - BRREER S
gmA Hﬁﬁ?%éﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂ%&ﬂﬁ -
%Z’X E /}IL)\HTﬁEu/L é%

:mbg&

IS

2,8

M ERER
3.1 MBERERE

AEBEBAZZBY KRR THRA
ke (REIERBREFERR) -8
RBRETBESRR - BREANEBRNHR
BREREER  BREERSEFHTBER
e - BBERRITEET R E 448
SBHUBERBRBEETR AEEIWLE
MR ERST AR E A T EIEE AR -
REEAZNZEANBRERBEMMAT -



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(a) Market risk

()

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates and
invests in Mainland China, Hong Kong and US
and with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in RMB, HK$ and US$ respectively.
Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from certain
borrowings and other current liabilities of the
Company (with functional currency of HK$) and
other subsidiaries located in US (with functional
currency of US$) which are denominated in
RMB.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk

at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
RMB, was as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents & MR EEEY

Other receivables H fth fE Y k1B
Other payables A B
Borrowings B
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5,689 616 1,669 113
1,684,120 915,954 1,244,291 1,032,015
(1,389,022) (2,514,721) (1,058,679) (2,513,166)
(897,355) - (909,620) =
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

172

()

(i)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and
US$, respectively, with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would have been
approximately RMB109,736,000 (2023:
RMB110,169,000) higher/lower.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits,
borrowings and other payables. Bank balances
and borrowings at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to bank balances
and borrowings which bear floating interest
rates. Management monitors the interest rate
risk and performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points lower/higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax
for the year would have been approximately
RMB4,818,000 (2023: RMB16,621,000)
higher/lower. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the statement of
financial position date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, contract assets, trade
and other receivables and deposits. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. In respect of contract assets,
trade and other receivables and deposits, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors.
These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate as well
as forward-looking macroeconomic data. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Group does not
obtain collateral from customers or counterparties
in respect of certain receivables. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverability of these
receivables at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

174 Landsea Green Management Limited

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks
in connection with the customers’ borrowing
of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during
the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 42.

The Group provides guarantees in respect of
related parties’ borrowings to banks jointly with
other investors of the related party. Typically, the
related party guaranteed by the Group is a property
development or property holding company which
could liquidate or sell some or all of its assets to
repay the borrowings immediately. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 42.

The following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables

° Contract assets

o Amount due from related parties

o Amount due from non-controlling interests

° Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, which could include:

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

176

3 HXERBRER®)
31 HM¥REKREZEE)
(b) EEREE)

() Contract assets and trade receivables ()  ARIEEREWERL
The Group applies the simplified approach to NEBFBIESR ST BHEE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed Al ot E AL 7 X Bt T8
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime A= B E B - 2
expected credit loss provision for contract Bl A s a RE E & IE W ER
assets and trade receivables. To measure the REREEFHNTEREH
expected credit losses, contract assets and BREE - RFTEREHBER
trade receivables were grouped based on B AREENEREZ
shared credit risk characteristics and the days BEARCZERREH LA
past due. HAH# 4 -
As at 31 December 2024, the expected credit RZBE-_WF+_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. H - JEH=ZHBEREBEN
The expected credit loss provision below also T o LATNTEHA{Z BBk BB
incorporated forward-looking information. INEFERIEMEE R o
Third parties
LY
Related  Less than More than
parties 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years Total
BEs S E 182% 223% SHIE &zt
—ECME RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
31 December 2024 t=ZR=+-H ARBTR  ARMTR ARWTR AR%TR ARRTR ARBTR
Expected credit loss rate BHERRAXR 3%-100% 2%-6% 6-15%  15%-40%  40%-100%
Gross carrying amount FESE
— Contract assets (note 5.9)  AREE (Hz5.2) 93,326 58,613 86,843 47,583 62,786 349,151
— Trade receivables (note 27)  FEYERFR (Bi3E27) 164,991 7,362 36,083 15,635 343,847 567,018
258,317 65,975 122,926 63,218 406,633 917,069
Expected credit loss provision ~ B E B % & &
— Contract assets (note 5.9)  AREE (H5.2) (32,361) (2,333 (8,289) (7,547) (38,846) (89,376)
— Trade receivables (note 27)  FEURER X (Fi3E27) (119,137) (287) (3,733) (2698) (238,034  (363,889)
(151,498) (2620 (120220 (10245  (276,880)  (453,265)
Total contract assets and frade & AEERENEHEE
receivables 106,819 63,355 110,904 52,973 129,753 463,804

Landsea Green Management Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERBREE®

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 HBEMBEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) =ERE(ZZ)
(i) Contract assets and trade receivables (i AEIEENEIES (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2023, the expected credit RZB_=F+_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. H - FEHERABXEEDN
The expected credit loss provision below also T ATTEEIE BB KRB E
incorporated forward-looking information. INEFERIEMEE R -
Third parties
E=h
Related Less than More than
parties 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years Total
B PR1E 1226 2835 SN3E @it
o= RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2023 +ZA=+-H ARETLE  ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Expected credit loss rate BRHERALE 3%-100% 2%-6% 6-15%  15%-60%  60%-100%
Gross carrying amount REAE
— Contract assets (note 5.2)  AREE (H5.2) 66,632 133,862 47583 55,235 24,442 327,754
— Trade recelvables (note 27)  FEURER3R (Fit3%27) 172,449 30,459 27,421 39,095 365,383 643,807
239,081 173,321 75,004 94,330 389,825 971,561
Expected credit loss provision ~ B E XKL
— Contract assets (note 52) A REE (M3E5.2) (15,794) (2,857) (2,874) (5,915) (19,594) (47,034)
— Trade receivables (note 27) YR 20 (3£ 27) (102,638) (1,017) (2,107) (12002 (259,763  (377,527)
(118,432) (3874) (4,981) (17,917) (279,357) (424,561)

Total contract assets and AREERENEREE
trade receivables 120,649 169,447 70,023 76,413 110,468 547,000
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Contract assets and trade receivables

(Continued)

The expected credit loss provision for
contract assets and trade receivables as at

31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
expected credit loss provision are as follows:

HMRERERERE &)
31 BERKEE#)
(b) =E@E(E)
() BREEREWEN(E)

EREENRBURERR -F
“HE+ZA=+t—HHAE
HIERIER R mEREDR

ERABRBENHENT
Contract Trade
assets receivables Total
EREE FE U BR X et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT ARETT

Opening expected credit A—E_=%—HF—H
loss provision as at HMUEHERELEE

1 January 2023

(37,034) (311,611) (348,645)

Additional expected credit RESNEHR(Z IR

loss provision

(10,000) (65,916) (75,916)

Closing expected credit A—_EBE-_=%5+—"AH

loss provision as at =+—HBHEKRFEH

31 December 2023 EREEARE (47,034)  (877,527)  (424,561)
Additional expected credit BINEHERIBREE

loss provision (42,342) (28,297) (70,639)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - 373 373
Written off i 85 - 41,562 41,562
Closing expected credit N-—ZE_-_MME+_—A4H

loss provision as at =+—BAHEREH

31 December 2024 ERBAEE (89,376)  (363,889)  (453,265)
Note: PffsE -

The increase in expected credit loss provision was mainly
due to an increase in past due balance over 3 years.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
trade receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortised cost

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk
and how the expected credit loss provision
is determined for each of those categories.
The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
both historical loss rates and forward-
looking macroeconomic data. A summary of
the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

Group definition

Category of category
HHl AEERERFMTESR
Stage one Customers have a low risk of default and

a strong capacity to meet contractual

cash flows

£
BYWEP

ENRRRENRENERRERERLS
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31 MERAKEE#)
(b) FE@EE)
(i) FEYCBIRE T 308 - FEFE1E
Wz R IB R A B B
e B EE
AEBEGEMERTIEA=
BER  ARRESERR
R st & B E B EE R
BREE AEBFEBER
HIEHERBRELEY B
o ABEEERBARE-
EEEREHBBLARE
AEBEZEFELEHEE LA
e RB S BEE - AEETE
HMERBABRENBRREE
mT

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BARBERARABENEE

12 months expected credit losses.
Where the expected lifetime of
an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime

12A A RHERER - WEENTRAF
HAOR12M@ A - BIFEHBEEERE
HEtE

Stage two

B BEER

Stage three

B =BEER

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition

B R ARG E R AR EFH
JE WK

Receivables for which there is credit loss
since initial recognition

B ¥ SRR ARG E B B 1R UK

BEEegRBRAT

Lifetime expected credit losses

FHERERRX

Lifetime expected credit losses

FHEREREBRE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortised cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other
receivables as follow:

31 December 2024 Category

“E_ME+ZA=1+-H &7l

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage one

FE MR BRE 75 500R it
Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage three
B 3R L
Amounts due from non-controlling  Stage one
interests
ahelzatiliz 4ot e 1
Other receivables Stage one
H it M3 E i1
Other receivables Stage three
Hit R F=FER
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3 HERRERE®

31 BERKEE#)

(b) =E@E(E)
(i) FENCBER T 3008 -« FERER 1
W2 R IB R A B B

e PEE (&)

R_ZE—mE+-—f=+—
B 7 5 B Bt E UK ET
IR ERBEABENT

Estimated Carrying

gross amount

Expected carrying Expected (net of
credit amount at credit loss impairment
loss rate default provision provision)
REE

RERER fhEHER BERER (BHR
RxE REAE REBE HERR)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTRT  AR®TR

1%-14% 390,627 (22,176) 368,451
30%-100% 771,735 (766,007) 5,728
28% 3,424 (1,573) 1,851
8%-15% 920,273 (255,676) 664,597
30%-100% 160,534 (85,352) 75,182

2,246,593 (1,130,784) 1,115,809




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-

controlling interests and other financial assets

at amortised cost (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other

receivables as follow:

31 December 2023

—E-=%4+-A=1—H

Amounts due from related parties

FE WA T TR

Amounts due from related parties

Fe M BRR 77 7R

Amounts due from non-controlling

interests

FEMCIE P M HE 2 TR

Amounts due from non-controlling

interests

FEM SRR Bt B R 5R

Deposits for purchase of land

BELMZS
Other receivables
H I

Other receivables

H it YR

Category

oR]

Stage one
FIEE
Stage three
F=FER

Stage one

FMER
Stage three

F=RE
Stage one
F—FEE
Stage two
FBER
Stage three
F=BR

Notes to the consolidated

= A
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3 HEERBREE®
31 BBEREEE)

Expected
credit
loss rate

1%-7%

10%-100%

1%-7%

10%-100%

3%

8%-10%

10%-100%

(b) EEREE(E)

financial statements
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(i)  FEMBIRETT SR - IRt
s RICHHK AT ERE

2 A 2 ()

R-BE-—=FE+=-fA=+—
B - ZN 5 B g A qth FE U SR ET
RIEHERBERBENT

Estimated Carrying
gross amount
carrying Expected (net of
amount at credit loss impairment
default provision provision)
FHEE

ERpCE RHER (B
REEE PR BIEERE)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETRT ARBTR
425,985 (17,941) 408,044
899,135 (746,597) 152,538
3,747 (236) 3,511
1,225 (1,133 92
683,609 (20,508) 663,101
888,076 (79,251) 808,825
435,717 (154,171) 281,546
3,337,494 (1,019,837 2,317,657
"R FFR 181
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERBREE

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 BERKEE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ER(E)
(i) Amounts due from related parties, non- (i) FEUEGEE 5 5008 - FEIEH1E
controlling interests and other financial assets W RIZHHE A AR ET B Y H
at amortised cost (Continued) fib 2 B A E (42)
The expected credit loss provision for amounts FE U BB 5 2008~ FE I
due from related parties, non-controlling R RIREBEK AT ENE
interests and other financial assets at amortised MEemEER_ZT _NF
cost as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the +—A=+—HBHNBEHER
opening expected credit loss provision are as BABERYEHERAE
follows: KEBEHFEOHEERAT -
Amounts
Amounts due from Deposits
due from non- for
related controlling purchase Other
parties interests of land receivables Total
El
e FiEsl BELH Hfh
BB AE BRE fEe T @zt

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVBI000 RMB'000
ARBIL  ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETL  ARETR

Opening expected creditloss ~ R=Z-=%-F-H

provision as at 1 January 2023 ~ BYRLBERELRE (756,673) (11,831) (20,912) (125,270) (914,686)
Recoveries e 11,506 10462 404 12,343 34,715
Adoltional expected credit loss BIELRERERER

provision (19,371) - - (133,743) (183,114)
Written off it - - - 13,248 13,248

Closing expected credit loss R=BZZ£+Zf
provision at 31 December 2023 =T—HHKXEH

ERELEE (764,538) (1,369) (20,508) (233,422) (1,019,837)

Recoveries o - - 20,508 - 20,508
Adoltional expected credit loss I ERERELER

provision (23,645) (204) - (109,973) (133,822

Disposal of subsidlaries HERBAR - - - 7 7

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries HEARLLFE AR - - - 2,360 2,360

Closing expected credit loss RZZ-MmE+=A
provision at 31 December 2024  =+-RHIREH
ERBAER (788,183) (1,573) - (341,028)  (1,130,784)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments of property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders, banks
and other financial institutes. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of reporting period to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2028.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

184

At 31 December 2024

Trade and other payables
Borrowings and interest thereon
Guarantee in respect of mortgage

facilities for certain purchasers
Lease liabilities

At 31 December 2023

Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Borrowings and interest thereon
Guarantee in respect of mortgage
facilities for certain purchasers
Lease liabilities

Landsea Green Management Limited

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
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3 HXERBRER®)
31 HM¥REKREZEE)
(c) #mEBELERE)

Less than
1yearor  Between Between
repayable 1 and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total
PR—ER
REXEER -Z@ME WMEREE IENLE @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
7,365,621 - 4,000 - 17,369,621
1,372,480 820,231 - 837,067 3,029,778
573,677 - - - 573,677
553 275 - - 828
7,740,089 351,662 - - 8,091,751
311,840 - 39,047 - 350,887
2,461,408 2,605,619 3,449,878 57,942 8,574,847
726,405 - - - 726,405
27,245 20,386 46,412 22,091 116,134




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB4,213
million and the Group’s current borrowings amounted
to RMB1,329 million. As disclosed in Notes 2.1(c)
and 31, the Group was in default of the Defaulted
Senior Note with principal and interest amounts of
US$33 million (equivalent to RMB240 million) and
interest of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million)
because of non-payment for over 2 years from its
due date. Apart from the Defaulted Senior Note,
the Group has other obligations arising from other
borrowings and guarantees. Note 2.1(c) explains
management’s plans and measures for managing
liquidity needs of the Group to enable it to continue
to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is not probable that any
amounts will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERBREE
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 3.2 AREEME

The different levels of valuation method for financial
instruments carried at fair value are as follows:

(@ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

(c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

Level 1
F1E
Note RMB’000
Wi AREFT
Financial liabilities at &2 A EEFA
fair value through BENERER
profit or loss
At 31 December 2023 R-Z =4
—A=+—H 30 39,047

TXENMBEEEDITIRASLEBEA
ENERTAZTRBAL

@ MHREEXABREEMSHR
B(REHRAE) (F1E) -

b BE1EREFENREN  BAE
S8 EA RN AR ER) %
R (DR & B 8) 8 A B8 (552
B -

© BEXBRIFKEAHEMS
FEpna ABE (B ABEREA
i) (F3E) -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
H2E HE3E #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTET

= 311,840 350,887

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERBREE®
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.2 AREHEME)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

The remaining financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and investment properties held by the Group are not
traded in active markets nor does the fair value determined
by using valuation techniques that use observable market
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and input used).

YHNERTHEENE R TA (Hlm
BOMITETR) AR BERGERN
AE o RFHERMED A EFH
ABEMSEHE  thEERDKEE
BORFBEMGBEE - ERANEBERFE
MTAMBOMBEEABABEAAKE
BRIS BIZATASWASE2RE -

BN HE AR A BRI I RRE
BETSHEET  AIREIASMHA
F3/E -

HEBRBE AN BEFABSNERTAR
AEEFENREENE T ERZED
LEE TEERABEEMSEENG
BERNEEAAEBE HtoBAES3
0

TEREAFHINEEEMABEARE
BERER LR MR/ EERMN &
BABE) -

Fair value as at
RUTBEHNAAEE
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
Financial liabilities 31 December 2023 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable input
“To=F ERAFTAER
tRARE TZA=T—0 2AARBEEER #HEAMRIEGAZE BARE

Redemption liabilities RMB311,840,000 Level 3 Discounted cash flow - Future cash Risk-free rate (note (i)

flows are estimated based on the

expected repayment, discounted at a Liquidity risk premium (note (i))

rate taking into account the risk-free

rate and liquidity risk premium

Boaf AR™311,840000 F=#HK BREERE — RRASREIR | R A= (FEE()
BRAENME - RERERRNE

ERDETRRGENL ZMR nBE 2R REE (M)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

188

3.2

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2023, if a) the risk free rate used
was multiplied by 95% or 105% while all the other
variables were held constant, the fair value losses —
net would increase by approximately RMB758,000/
decrease by approximately RMB751,000; b) the
liquidity risk premium used was multiplied by
95% or 105% while all the other variables were
held constant, the fair value losses — net would
increase by approximately RMB78,000/decrease by
approximately RMB78,000.

See note 19 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

As at 31 December 2024, fair value of the senior notes
2020 and senior notes 2022 are RMB72,662,000
and RMB203,684,000 (2023: RMB77,689,000 and
RMB218,971,000), respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

o to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

° to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash pledged for the Group’s borrowing. Total
capital is calculated as net debt plus total equity as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are
as follows:

Borrowings (note 31) B (FI7E31)

Lease liabilities (note 21)

Net debt B F R

Total (deficit)/equity

BB

Total capital

Gearing ratio BEEBELX
In 2024 and 2023 no restricted cash was pledged as
securities for borrowings of the Group and the Group
considers that such restricted cash should be included in
the calculation of net debt in order to reflect an appropriate
gearing ratio of the Group.

3

HEAE(FE21)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 28) i : 34 MR 4 ZE Y (Mi:£28)

(B4, e s
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AEERBEEABLREZEAR
B LR AEBFREBRIAE @R
B -EHFENEFREBERRE LIRS
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HIRESFE - ERBEIAE F RN
B BIR IR AR E e

—TE_NFER-ZFE_=ZF+=-A8
=t HWEEARBRLENT :

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
2,806,748 7,214,893
783 100,525
(553,065) (988,161)
2,254,466 6,327,257
(1,559,186) 2,072,284
(695,280) 8,399,541
-324% 75%
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates

and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(A)

(B)

CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with
these parties. The rights and obligations of the Group
and the other parties are stipulated by respective co-
operation agreements, article of associations of the
project companies and etc. Due to the complexity of
the arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
associate or joint venture to the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, associate and joint venture
as disclosed in notes 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
which is determined by independent professional valuers.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the statement of financial position date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

4

BA g = ot il 5t & M

AEBEELBRARKRBROHAE - Fat kR
ROBEEER SFAFERBIEERE
FAERGER - At REBRRAULEHEAHT
—EYBRFEENEERBEREEFLEKR

Bl

(A)

(B)

BT :

MEAR SELERBEANR
k|

R—REBEBES  AEEEEMBER
BB EBEZ TR LA FiH
Z HAREEWE AEEEEMS
MENRETRE A 2B FRE  HE
REZHBERMBRAIZFRTH - BERZF
RHEZ BN BEHBERRRETEBA
SEZHBAR BEQRIAELE
FREAHE - AKRENERZERH
ZEEMRKBAR BEQRHAE
RZERFEHHE  KMF22-23
K2.4-

REMYENETAREE

AEBNREEYE VB L XA ER
FBENRAREEINE ‘HEDERE
TERR HP PR IHEERER - Al
EREREEREE (FHAERATE
R BRI B IR LSRR R
FHAEER - ZF Mt AT HRER
MIFERRERRZ HERIELER -



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(€)

(D)

NET REALISABLE VALUE OF PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD FOR
SALE

The Group estimates the net realisable value of properties
under development and property held for sale held by its
subsidiaries, as well as its joint ventures and associates
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling properties and products of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a results of change
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimates at each statement of financial position date.

INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and US. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year when such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when the Group
considers it is likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates are changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

192

(E)

(F)

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to identify
any impairment indicator for interests in associate and joint
ventures. This determination requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the fair
value of an investment by taking into account a market
participant’s ability in such interests in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
invest in interests in its highest and best use. The Group
considers the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

The Group develops and sells properties to its customers
in different countries. Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised over time when the Group’s performance do
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The Group may not
change or substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use due to the contractual
restrictions with the customer and thus the property unit
does not have an alternative use to the Group. However,
whether there is an enforceable right to payment depends
on the terms of sales contract and the interpretation of
applicable laws that apply to the contract. To assess the
enforceability of right to payment, the Group has reviewed
the terms of its contracts, the relevant local laws, the
local regulators’ views and obtained legal advice, when
necessary, and a significant judgement is required.

For property development and sales contracts for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the buyer obtains the physical
possession or legal title of the completed property and
the consideration amount is collected. The Group seldom
provides long credit or payment terms to its property
buyers.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(G)

(H)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for expected credit loss for financial
assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the note
3.1(b).

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group performs goodwill impairment assessment
both annually and whenever there is an indication that a
cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been
allocated may be impaired. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. There was no goodwill at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB486,148,000). Further details are given in note 22.
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5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EFEREREMBFERIA

194

CUSTOMERS AND OTHER SOURCE

Revenue from contracts with
customers
Revenue recognised at a point in time
Property development and sales
— Mainland China
— US
Management services (note 5.1(a))
— Mainland China
— US

Revenue recognised over time
Property development and sales
— US
Management services (note 5.1(a))
— Mainland China

Revenue from other source
Rental income
— Office investment properties

Landsea Green Management Limited
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2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
44,024 57,799
1,287,503 8,385,216
65,463 92,366
2,352 2,443
1,399,342 8,537,824
5,167 173,565
318,774 325,680
323,941 499,245
2,639 2,728
1,725,922 9,039,797
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5 REVENUE 5 WA
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EFERAREMEBREA (&)
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER SOURCE (Continued)
(@) Breakdown of the revenue from management @ EERGKWABMAMDT
services is as follows:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue from development FAEEERBIEA

management services 243,315 248,422
Revenue from sales management SHE B ERFIA

services 65,463 92,366
Revenue from green product HEEMESRBEA

integration services 29,896 49,398
Revenue from brand authorisation on R B AR A A

services 47,915 30,303

386,589 420,489
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REVENUE (Continued)

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO

5 WA

CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognised the following assets and

liabilities related to contracts with customers:

Contract assets related to
— Property development and sales
— Management services
Less: provision for loss allowance
(note 3.1(b)(i)

Contract liabilities related to
— Property development and sales
— Management services

Landsea Green Management Limited
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52 BEFERABENEERERE

AEBECHANTEHEFERBEENE

EXAE:
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
- 42,170
349,151 285,584
(89,376) (47,034)
259,775 280,720
219,122 196,588
72,988 52,018
292,110 248,606




5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(a

(b)

Significant changes in contract assets and
liabilities

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting
from development management services when
revenue recognised over the service period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end
of reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract exceeds the
amount billed to customers.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.

Contract liabilities increased by RMB43,504,000
(20283: 47,338,000) mainly due to the pre-sale of
properties to buyers from a project company in
Mainland China during the year ended 31 December
2024,

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

mE B EmRRMNEE

5 WA
52 BEFAREBNEERARG (@)

(a) EFEEEREEEALE

ERRP R ERA KA (2 RE
EREHRMEERNIEER T
TREIEK AR B D LLETE) B8
AEFHENESHE GREES
BEREEEREHARFMERE -

AEERBEZTFRARBPATL
F) LA K By T R MCBRASF 3

AR A EE AR 43,504,000 7T
—T =% : AR®47,338,000
L) THREBEZZENF+=
A=+—BLEFEFERNM—HE
BERRIRAEFAEWEMN -

(b) FEEEREEZIKA

TRBRR AR E HI R A

recognised in the current reporting period relates to HoRBaER@ANEA -
carried-forward contract liabilities.
2024 2023
“EF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Revenue recognised that was included  F ¥zt A& B & &4 48
in the contract liabilities balance atthe 2 R U A
beginning of the year
— Property development and sales — B EMREREE 6,718 47,495
— Management services — BRIk 52,018 56,605
58,736 104,100
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e BRI
5 REVENUE (continuead) 5 WA
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO 52 HEFEEEHNEERERE (&)
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(c) Contracted amounts to be recognised in future (c) HBRAREBRYTHLEE
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TRENFREABRFENETF A
obligations resulting from contracts with customers in RESENRBITRER
existence at the reporting date.
2024 2023
—EIWF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
Expected to be recognised TEHIR —F NER
within one year
— Property development and sales — B EMBERHEE 33,054 69,640
— Management services — BRIk 72,988 52,018
Expected to be recognised after one year 78 i — F 14 HER
— Property development and sales — EHEREREE 186,068 126,948
292,110 248,606
(d) Contract cost (d EEEFE
Costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract 1S & R P B B EE AR WO A S (ZR ED
such as stamp duty and sales commissions are B RIHERE) RE £ AR
immaterial and expensed when they were incurred. A @B TERK

198
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The reports are prepared on the same
pbasis as consolidated financial statements.

The executive directors consider the business from services
perspective and have identified the following operating segments:

o Property development and sales in US;

o Property development and sales in Mainland China;

o Management services; and

o Office property investment.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of segment revenue and segment
profit.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned or loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of net finance costs and
corporate expenses charged in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. This is the
measure reported to the management of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

&8

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

S E R
EEERBLEHVITESZEHNLAERER
ENREBEELEN M - AARELERE
M HmEREBNEERE -

RFBAEZERER  LHRBAT

XEEMEREREE

o  HENMEMERELHEE
e EBERK: R

o HWIRYMEKRE-

WITESRED BWRARD B BT EFN A
CE D AR R o

A
,\\I

D EAE, (B 18) 355 2 BB AT BRER B0 FE
EEZER ETEREFAGERGE REAM
IEW SRNPBERARARERFEND

CAKBEERERBEABRENFEDRE
ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁi’%fﬁ °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for

6

the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2024

is as follows:

Segment revenue (from external
customers) (note 5)
— Revenue recognised at a point
in time under HKFRS 15

— Revenue recognised over time
under HKFRS 15

— Rental income

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (note 20)
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (note 20)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note 21(b))

AEBA CRESNSEF) (K 5)

— BER BB RE £
FIHRE—HREE
el ON

— BRI R A
F15HN—BEER
el ON

— HEWA

ME - B LR E (A520)
% - BE Rk ERE (FE20)
feREEERE (HE21b)

Fair value loss on investment properties R & MEMEN AL BEERE

(note 19)

(F5£19)

Fair value loss on financial liabilities at fair & A 7t BE ABZHN SR EE

value through profit or loss (note 30)

Share of net profit of associates

Share of net loss of joint ventures
(note 18)

Segment profit/(loss)

At 31 December 2024

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures (note 18)

Additions/(deductions) to non-current

assets (excluding financial assets,
deferred income tax assets)
Segment liabilities

Landsea Green Management Limited

AR EEER (F:E30)
FEfh B w E*.RT/?ﬂ i
EEaEtEFER

(WEB)

AEHE/ (BE)

RZB-ME+=A=+-H
/\4 éa}z
F%%QTW%E
B E b ERNER (M318)
%M/%Mﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁé
(TRELREE
ERMEHEE)
NHakE

D EER @)
BE-F-_MNE+-_A=+—ALFE A
PTEFRENBESPEAMT :

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-Z-ME+-A=+-ALEE

Property
Property development
development  and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland Management property

us China services  investment Total

FE R iy

ZEREHE B E
RERHEE HEREE EERE BANERE EHY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TR AR¥ETR ARETR AR¥TR
1,287,503 44,024 67,815 - 1,399,342
5,167 - 318,774 - 323,941
- - - 2,639 2,639
1,292,670 44,024 386,589 2,639 1,725,922
(698) (9,592) (3,778) - (14,068)
- (17,571) - - (17,571)
(4,287) (455) (1,334) - (6,076)
- - - (1,800) (1,800)
(7,422) - - - (7,422)
589,078 34,475 - - 623,553
- (208,922) - - (208,922)
(844,683) (533,606) 32,278 (2,434) (1,348,445)
2,712,689 5,763,582 780,572 66,449 9,323,292
809,560 788,845 - - 1,598,405
7,031 2,074,018 - - 2,081,049
(518,234) (338,591) - 1,800 (855,025)
3,294,351 6,905,337 665,240 17,550 10,882,478
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for

the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2023

is as follows:

Segment revenue (from external
customers) (note 5)
— Revenue recognised at a point in
time under HKFRS 15

— Revenue recognised over time
under HKFRS 15

— Rental income

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (note 20)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note 21(b))

Fair value loss on investment
properties (note 19)

DEBA CRESNSEP) (HEE5)

mE - B LR E (A520)

:d

&

Fair value loss on financial liabilties at fair 1

value through profit or loss (note 30)
Share of net loss of associates
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint
ventures (note 18)
Segment profit/(loss)

At 31 December 2023

Segment assets

Interests in associates (note 17)

Interests in joint ventures (note 18)

Additions/(deductions) to non-current
assets (excluding financial assets,
deferred income tax assets)

Segment liabilities

&
&

%)

R

~
A
N

N
okt

)
N
N

2

%)

— BEREN RS £
F15RR R KR
ERtal N

— BER BB RE £
F155HN—BHER

ElON

— HEWA

REEERE (ME210)

BHMENLLEBESSE
(F5£19)

A

AABEFARZNERAE

AR EBERSE (F:Es0)
NG g3
HEELEZ(BE),/FE
(BizE18)

HFE/(EB)

E-=f+-A=t-H
BE

B8 DR (M5 17)
AEDRNES (ME18)
m/ (R ERBERE
(TefEsREE:
BELMEHEE)

HAE

==
™=
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rE M B EmRMEE

6 oHER
HE-_Z-_=ZF+-_A=+—AHLFE M
WITESRHNBFESOHERNT -

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=4+_A=t-RIL=FE
Property
Property  development
development and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland ~ Management property

Us China services investment Total

A
ZEEME FiE

REREE HEREES ERERY BANERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT  ARBTT ARBTT ARETr ARETR
8,385,216 57,799 94,809 — 8,537,824
173,565 - 325,680 - 499,245

- - - 2,728 2,728

8,568,781 57,799 420,489 2,728 9,039,797
(30,677) (9,254) (5,984) - (45,915)
(32,067) (855) (2,651) - (35,573)
- - - (10,900) (10,900)
(19,079) - - - (19,079
- (94,087) - - (94,087)

(150) 152,441 - - 162,291
162,641 (582,246) (104,493) (17,870) (541,968)
11,701,008 6,092,024 1,236,248 324,310 19,353,585
- 1,074,737 - - 1,074,737

137 2,314,940 - - 2,315,077
(14,139) 63,926 (5,190) 1,000 45,597
7,759,413 8,480,813 981,835 59,240 17,281,301
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R B WRARMEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6
The Group does not have any single customer which contributed
to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s revenue

from external customers and non-current assets are divided into

the following geographical areas:

DEE R (&)

AEEL ETAEREEBA10% A EHE
—EP - AREXRBIIBEF WA RIER

BEETRATHIERIEES

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

SRR P IR FREEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—BoNE ZEC=F “E-ME —TC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARBEFT AR®T R AREFT
Mainland China A B A3, 430,900 478,573 3,332,479 4,208,012
us ES 1,295,022 8,561,224 934,334 765,426
Hong Kong (domicile) B (FE) - - 388 451
1,725,922 9,039,797 4,267,201 4,973,889

The revenue information above is based on the location of the

customers. Non-current assets information above is based on

the location of the assets.

Reconciliation of segment loss to loss before income tax is as

follows:

Segment loss
Finance costs — net (note 11)
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before income tax

202 Landsea Green Management Limited

o EBE R
BrisE R FRE (HiE11)
AOBEARER

BRFTS AT &S 1R

Annual Report 2024

AEBAERTDREFAEME ML ° A
FERBEEEANREEMEMEL -

D EEBRERMMEHABERNERDT

2024 2023
—EC-mEF —F_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
(1,348,445) (541,968)
(120,659) (213,102)
(63,228) (68,248)
(1,532,332) (823,318)




Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

OTHER INCOME 7 Hfttlhz
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Interest income from: FEMWARE :
— Amounts due from joint ventures — BRAEE IR
(note 41(g)(ii)) (B 5E 41 (9)i) 1,504 13,231
— Loan to third parties —AFE=ZAEX - 14
Government grants (note 7(a)) B Bh (F3E7(2) 5,010 5,440
6,514 18,685
(@) Government grants mainly consist of incentives awarded @ BN#EDETEEEETAEEWEAR
to the Group’s subsidiaries to support local real estate LA 35 8 5 H EE B R A0 B2 ) e P B IR
development and tax rebates granted by the PRC JF46 T VR o % 5w Bh I 8 (] R
government. There are no unfulfilled conditions or PR Bk S A FIE o

contingencies related to these grants.
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8 OTHER LOSSES — NET

Gain on re-measurement of existing

Loss on re-measurement of existing interest in
associates upon conversion to a subsidiary

Loss on partial disposal of a joint venture
Loss on partial disposal of associates

Gain on settlement of guarantee senior notes
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)
Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

interests in joint ventures upon conversion

to subsidiaries (note 38(a)(ii))

(note 38(a)(ii)

(note 40)

equipment

Net exchange gains/(losses)

Gain on disposal of investment property

Others

204
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8 HthEiaFHE

REREWNBAGKENRTE
NEERFERBEEN RS
(B 7E 38(a)(ii))

REREWBAGKFENTE
NN B R SR Fag: ) SF
(B 5 38(a)(i))

HodteE—MeaLrE¥NER

o e AR RNER

HEREELZENNE

& W B A R A 518 (M9 7E39)

MiEB QR IEERA AR EIR
(Ff7E40)

LEME  BERZENESR

B ezt (B51R) F 8
HERE MM EN KR
Hitp

Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBETF T
- 1,020

- (156)

- (22,183)

(547,134) —

- 9,309

(884,162) -
(97,375) -
(24,095) (4,839)
41,958 (49,445)
2,700 -
12,852 12,878
(1,495,256) (53,416)




9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses
Directors’ remuneration (note 15)

— Fees

— Salaries, allowances and bonus

— Contribution to retirement benefit scheme

and other benefits

— Restricted share award (note 34(b))

Other staff costs

— Wages, salaries, allowances and bonus
— Contribution to retirement benefit scheme

and other benefits
— Other staff benefits

— Restricted share award (note 34(b))
— Share incentive plan of subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

2024 2023
—SE-NE TR =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
EEBAMER
EZHM (HEE15)
— e 822 900
— ¥& R RIEA 1,979 6,315
— RIREFE BRI
HaF 155 172
— PRI A% 1 228 (B 3 34(b)) 1,181 1,460
4,137 8,847
HibB T &M
— I8 %o RAREA 146,179 485,245
— RIREFE SRR
H A EF 10,470 20,894
— HMBITEA 5,667 10,841
— PRI A 10 22 B (B 5E 34(b)) 6,968 6,817
— B AR &R G0 BB 5T & 3,817 21,788
173,101 545,585
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued)

Cost of property development and sales
— Mainland China (note 9(a))
— US
— Provision for decline in the value of

properties under development and

held for sale (note 23 and 25)
Cost of management services
— Mainland China

Rental and expense in respect of properties
Operating costs in respect of investment

properties
Other taxes
Advertising and promotion expenses
Legal and professional fees (note 9(b))
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment (note 20)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 21)

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment
Others

206 Landsea Green Management Limited

9 EMEISENERG#)

— PR (M EE9()
— XH&

— HEREMERFEHEN R
{EfE TRk (M1EE23 k. 25)

B RIS

— PERM
MEESNER
BREEMENZEEN

H iR
EREBEZXEM (HE9b)
W -~ BB M@ E (MfEE20)

EREEENE (HE21)
A2 BEM i B
M= - BE R EREER

Hitp

Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
74,494 47,052
1,092,883 7,382,042
(28,058) 190,051
264,527 305,292
7,542 5,660

242 1,086

10,966 81,758
32,628 480,303
77,604 149,278
14,068 45,915
6,076 35,503
2,800 2,800
17,571 -
119,728 167,950
1,870,309 9,449,192




9

10

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Representing: &

Cost of sales and services $HE KRS A
Selling expenses HEEH
Administrative expenses THEA

(@) Cost of property development and sales includes decoration materials used

of RMB925,000 (2023: RMB14,862,000).
(b) Legal and professional fees include subsidiaries’ audit services including

statutory and non-statutory audit fee to their respective auditors and non-
audit services of RMB7,522,000 (2023: RMB37,798,000).

FAIR VALUE LOSSES — NET

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

9 EMEIS>ENERG#)

2024 2023
—EWEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFIT
1,414,125 7,929,178

126,017 547,287

330,167 972,727
1,870,309 9,449,192

@) FHERERHEHEEAQECAEGUMARE
925,0007T (ZF = =% : AKR#¥14,862,0007T) °

) EERBEXEEROEWBARNEZRS SR
HEZEMIMOEERIEEEERERAURIKE
EZREARE 7522000 (ZTE-=F: AR¥E

37,798,0007T) °

10 2REEEEFHA

2024 2023
—ENE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Fair value loss on investment properties HEMEMEALBEER (H:E19)
(note 19) (1,800) (10,900)

Fair value loss on financial liabilities at fair BARBEG AEBZNESHEE

value through profit and loss (note 30) DR E-EEE (FEE30) (7,422) (19,079)
(9,222) (29,979)
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11

208

FINANCE COSTS — NET

11 B EREEE

2024 2023
—E-MF —ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Financial costs e R
— Bank borrowings — RITEX 140,222 459,030
— Loans from the Substantial Shareholder — REETEREHER
(note 41(h)(ii)) (M5 41 (n)(i)) 14,296 16,815
— Senior private notes (note 11(a)) — BELESER (FiiE11@) (17,632) 80,173
— EB-5 loans — EB5ER 4,262 5,414
— Borrowings from other financial institutions  — 3 B £ i & @l 4 15 19 £ 3¢ 55,692 68,051
— Borrowings from other non-financial — REHMIES BB ER
institutions 308 19,035
— Loans from joint ventures (note 41(h)(ii)) — REEELENER(MiE41()
(i) 7,271 16,870
— Loans from non-controlling interests — KRB FEIE IR B B K - 46,169
— Lease liabilities (note 21) — HEAaREHE21) 1,051 6,275
— Other finance charges — BB & A - 35,813
205,470 753,645
Less: interest capitalised o BEAMEFE (55,692) (521,546)
149,778 232,099
Finance income B RS U A
— Bank interest income — |RITFEHA (29,119) (18,997)
120,659 213,102

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the

RE-F-ME+-AS+-ALEE &

year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately 2.96% per MMEEBRERNEHENELNR2.96% (ZF
Z=%F :6.06%) °

annum (2023: 6.06%).

(@)

The overdue senior private notes have been granted an extension along with (@)
a waiver of the interest charged, resulting in the reversal of RMB17,632,000
of interest expenses in finance cost.

Landsea Green Management Limited

17,632,000 7T °

Annual Report 2024
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12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Current income tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax
(note 12(b))

Deferred income tax (note 32)

— Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 12(a))

— US profit tax (note 12(c))

BIERPR 1S 1

Tax expense for the year

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax is made since the Group has no assessment profits for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25%.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% except for one
subsidiary which is located in western areas of Mainland China engaged
in encouraged industries and is subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% in
accordance with relevant regulations.

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% (2023: 30% to 60%) on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including cost of land use rights and all property development expenditures.
The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

12 8% (&) EH

— BAENGH (M 12@)

Tax expense for the year FEMIEER

— Mainland China enterprise income — R A ZERTIE T
tax (note 12(b)) (MfEE12(0))
Tax expense for the year FEHIEBEEHR

— KBRS (FFE12(c))
FEVRER

BEIEFTISH (K FE32)

BEEegRBRAT

B A+ 3R (E R (P RE 12(0))

2024 2023
—ZE-_MmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
7,565 1,708

555 118,645

8,120 120,353
42,072 8,654
(69,055) (89,006)
(18,863) 40,001

EAFEBR AR EEREBEENFEZRF B
BE16.5% (Z T =4 : 16.6%) fFH & HE - B =
—ENERZE=F+-A=+—HLFE"
B AN S B 4 FE SR B s Il - MO AR BAFE
T -

BE-Z-_NF+=-A=1+—HLFE  AE£E®D
AP FTB A RIZE 1R 25% ROTE RN EFTERL o

BEZ_=F+_A=+—HLFE FTE£EHD
B A B A R AR 25% M TR RGN X RIS
B - HE— AR B A b 78 ER A 55 S D R E S O Y
B RRIBIBRSN - EARIRAE R AR P12 16% M E BT X
B -

AR B R i+ b IR E R A S E WS SIBER A AT
WX (BIE T RARERARIAENERERS)
B 1 3 E 3 F30% E60% (—F = =4 : 30%
E60%) MBERELHY - ZRBEBRYEMA RS
BREL-

_BFEFR 209
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12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

210

()

In accordance with US tax law, the statutory tax rate for federal and state
tax purposes was 27.66% (2023: 27.30%).

Under the Law of Mainland China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and implementation regulations of the EIT Law, a withholding tax at 10% is
imposed for dividends distributed by a Mainland China-resident enterprise
to its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings
generated beginning 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding company is established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between Mainland China
and Hong Kong. The Group controls the dividend policies of subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company confirmed that the remaining
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as at 31
December 2024 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2024, deferred income tax liability
of RMB148,539,000 (2023: RMB185,364,000) on the remaining unremitted
distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China attributable to its immediate holding company with the amount of
RMB1,485,388,000 (2023: RMB1,853,643,000) was not recognised.

Pursuant to the requirements of the US Department of the Treasury on
Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities, a withholding
tax at 30% is imposed on dividends distributed by a US-resident enterprise
to its immediate holding company outside the US. A reduced rate,
including exemption, may apply if there is a tax treaty between the country
of residence and the US. The Group controls the dividend policies of its
subsidiaries in the US. The directors of the Company confirmed that as at
31 December 2024, there were no unremitted distributable profits in the
Group’s subsidiaries in the US (2023: RMB294,891,000). Accordingly, no
deferred income tax liability was recognised in respect of withholding tax on
unremitted earnings (2023: RMB79,444,000 was not recognised).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax losses
RMB1,091,710,000 (2023: RMB1,716,950,000) available for offset against
future profits for certain entities in Mainland China which have not been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
in Mainland China would expire within five years.

Taxes on profit assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the

applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

12 BB (EE) EH @)

)

RIRE BRI AR - A B B RN B8 E E Fi R
527.66% (Z B =4 : 27.30%) °

REFBEANEMRSRE((EERABHRED K
HERGEN FERAMERMER-ZTNF—
B — B #BEE A /Ut as A H AP B 3R S R B B
B ARIRZERNRSBZN10%AITEINE - BIZF
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12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 12 FIBH (ER) B @)

Reconciliation between loss before income tax and income tax BRAETESRHRAIEIEEER (KR) BRENY
(credit)/expense is as follows: BRI

2024 2023

—ENF =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Loss before income tax bR FTIS A0 ES 1R (1,532,332) (823,318)
Mainland China land appreciation tax AR B b - 3R E R (42,072) (8,654)
(1,574,404) (831,972)

Tax on loss before income tax, calculated BRATISTL AT BB AT IE - LR X 25%

at the rate of 25% (2023: 25%) (ZE2=F:25%)5t & (393,601) (207,993)
Effect of different tax rates of the Group’s REMEEERBREENAER
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions )N B TRES= 0f =72 (23,487) 4,157
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR S BT 5 ‘E. (69,697) (11,582)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S S & 2,044 1,234
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERTIRE BN ; 415,256 18,940
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary difference 7 & 52 81 i 2= 58 2 Fi 75 57 2 54,519 105,824
Written off of recognised temporary differences & & 72 5 R 2= 58 [ B 75 &5 48 fifl £
and tax losses (663) 2,984
Others H A, (45,306) 117,783
(60,935) 31,347
Mainland China land appreciation tax AR s+ 3R (E R 42,072 8,654
(18,863) 40,001
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13 LOSS PER SHARE 13 BREE
(A) BASIC LOSS PER SHARE (A) BREXERE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BREREBEIIZEBNAAAIRFREA
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the BB A FE B BT T B A INKE TS
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FETE (PBEERR AR KD ZEEE
during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the TEENLTBR) -
Company for share award scheme.
2024 2023
—E-_ME e

Loss attributable to the shareholders FEBNAR B RE/NEE

of the Company (RMB’000) (AE®ETT) (1,509,333) (860,793)
Weighted average number of ordinary B BITE BRI T

shares in issue (in thousands) (FB&) 4,613,371 4,543,175
Basic loss per share (expressed HRREKNEE

in RMB per share) (ABRARKESIR) (0.327) (0.189)
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13 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
(B) DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company for
share award scheme) to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: restricted share award
scheme. The shares granted under the restricted share
award scheme are assumed to have been transferred to
the grantee. The effects of restricted share award scheme
were excluded from calculation of diluted loss per share as

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

13 BREE &)

(B)

BERHEER

BRBPEBBIBRILHERAKEY
EMBELTBERMARE BT ERERA
MEFHEE (TREARAREKH
REGETRAENLTAR) - AQFAA
—SAMBEYENEBEL L AR - RElE
iR {0 B2 EhET &l o PR B AR (5 22 Eh 5T 18
TEHOBRNDBRAERTEREA <&
EERmREBRT T EER G MERG 5E
Brrgmy e REAVEREE_Z
THERZFE=F+A=+—AH1

the effects would have been anti-dilutive during the years FERARWE -
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
2024 2023
—E-_MEF —E2-=
Loss attributable to the shareholders of the 53BN A AR B HY B 18
Company (RMB’000) (ARETFIT) (1,509,333) (860,793)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EBRANE
shares in issue (in thousands) 8 (TR’ 4,613,371 4,543,175
Adjustment for: KA B IBFAEE -
— Assumed distribution of shares under ~ — AR R Hl14E J {7 228D
restricted share award scheme a9k (FA%)
(in thousands) - -
Adjusted weighted average number of RIEETBRHERN ML BR
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per KRS (TR
share (in thousands) 4,613,371 4,543,175
Diluted loss per share SR EEE
(expressed in RMB per share) (AR ARESTR) (0.327) (0.189)
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14

The board of directors did not declare any distribution at the
meeting of the Company held on 28 March 2025 (2023: nil).

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15

214

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration of each director is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024:

For the year ended

31 December 2024
Executive directors
Zhou Kunpeng (note 15()
Tian Ming (note 15(i)
Huang Zheng (note 15(f))

Independent non-executive
directors

Xu Xiaonian (note 15(g))

Xie Cilong (note 15(k))

Chen Tai-yuan (note 15()))

Rui Meng

Non-executive directors
Li Huanbin (note 15())
Gu Jing (note 15()

Landsea Green Management Limited

BE-Z-WE+=A

=t-HLEEE
HITES

R 72 Ak (FtE 15())

F 8 (FT3E15())
HAE (B EE15())

BIFHITES

FFNE (B EE15(g))
s EE (M3 15(K)
Bz (e 15()
EE:

FHTES
i (s 15())
BE (MsE150)

iR =

EERYTER T -_RAFE=A -+ N \BE7T
WARBIAEESEMNIIK(ZE_=F )

EEEANRER
(A) ES=MS

EEZNME RN T

HE-T-MEFI A=+ BILFE:

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances and other Restricted
Fees and bonus benefits  share award Total
2 BT PR 4
He  REREL REAEN R ER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tr AR%®Tr AR®Tr AR%Tn
- 826 3 - 829
- 1,153 152 1,181 2,486
143 - - - 143
79 - - - 79
300 - - - 300
300 - - - 300
822 1,979 155 1,181 4,137
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EEEFEfINEZR &)

(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (A) EEME (A
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE_Z-=—F+-A=+—HILFE:
Contribution
Salaries,  to retirement
allowances and other Restricted
Fees and bonus benefits  share award Total
e R [5kE
we  ERREL  REMGEF B An 128 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETR
For the year ended HZE-Z-=%+Z8
31 December 2023 =t+-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Tian Ming (note 15(i) M EA (B3 15() - 5,291 16 - 5,307
Huang Zheng (note 15(f) E1E (K5t 15()) - 1,024 156 1,460 2,640

Independent non-executive BUEHTES

directors
Xu Xiaonian (note 15(g)) FNVE (FsE15(g) 300 - - = 300
Chen Tai-yuan (note 15() Bz e (PaE 15() 300 - = = 300
Rui Meng BE 300 - = = 300
Non-executive directors FUTES
Cheng Yuan (note 15(h)) e (R 15(h) = = = - -
Gu Jing (note 15() BE (M 15() = = = - -

900 6,315 172 1,460 8,847
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EEXEFEfINEZR &)

216

(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) A ESME#)
Aggregate emoluments
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by
paid to or receivable by directors in respect of
directors in respect of their other services in
their services as connection with the
directors, whether of management of the affairs
the company or of the company or its
its subsidiary undertaking subsidiary undertaking Total Total
ENFEERESER
ENFESRESERIESR EHEEAQNRRNAEMBEARHN
AARREMBARNESM EREBENERT
RUERBHMESHERE RENEMBRBEHIMESERE st EC
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-mME —E-=F —E-mE —E-=F —E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T AR®T T ARETF T ARBT ARBTTT
3,908 8,847 - - 3,908 8,847
(B) DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND B) EEMERAREBANRALEAER
TERMINATION BENEFITS
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement RAFEE - HEEEE WA S W ERE
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2023: nil). ARARBHHKRIEERAEN (2=
FiE) -
(C) CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD (C) MRERHEERBOE=FRHEMN
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE K&
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company BHE_Z_WWHF+_HA=+—8H1IF
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making B AAREIRMHES RS R EMA
available directors’ services (2023: nil). E=FERNRE(ZEZ=F : E) o
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)
(H)
0

W)
(K)

(L)

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOR

OF DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2023: nil).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2023:
nil).

Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive officer as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 and resigned as an executive
director on 31 December 2024.

Resigned on 21 June 2024.

Resigned on 28 April 2023.

Resigned on 31 December 2024.

Appointed on 31 December 2024.

Appointed on 21 June 2024.

Tenure of office expired on 21 March 2025.

Notes to the consolidated
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15 EEENRESR @)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)
(H)
()

W)
(K)

(L)

BEEegRBRAT

FHUES EXEEEREH
EERAZEANER  EEX
REMR S NER

BENES HRTZERAMEER
ARBANER BEFREMRH %
BH(ZF—=F8&) -

EERRZ  ZBISEAMEKX
R

AEEMETYRARBEEBAR M
AREESERIERAFTEAERL

RERIFRAEAERAFENERR
5 LTHERER(ZZEZ=ZF: &) -

HIEGEER T -_MER T =4
+-A=+—BAETRELH IN_=-F
“HFE+ A=+ —HBETWHTES -
R-E-_WNFENA-+—HBHEFET-
R-ZE-_=FWMA-_+N\BEIT-
RZZE-_WNF+=—A=+—HEE-
R-TE-_NE+-_A=+—BEZFE-

J—=S

MENAZ+—BERE-

AR T _RAF=—A=-+—HEm-

“E_NFEER 217



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

mEMBHRRMNEE

16 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Director E)
Non-director

The emoluments of the above five (2023: five) individuals during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share
options, other allowances and benefits
in kind

Discretionary bonuses

The number of the above employees whose remuneration fee
within the following band is as follows:

16 AERSFMATIRSREEE
HY 557 EA
BHE_ZE_WNFEFR-_ZE-_=F+=ZA=+—
HIEFE g MEENT

2024 2023

—ENEF —E—_=
FEE 5 5
5 5

B2 -_NEER-_FT-_=F+-_A=+—
BItFE: > FiAR (T =4 %)@
BIATE BT

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEF T
EAFE - EFE=EEL - BRE -
HAh)Z80 B =
4,365 33,135
BB TEAT 862 34,241
5,227 67,376

HETIAREEAN L EEEBMT

Numbers Numbers
of individuals of individuals
2024 2023
AE AE
—E-NE —ZE=F
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) AR (Bx)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T £ 1,500,000 78 7T 5

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000
HK$24,000,001 to HK$24,500,000
HK$25,000,001 to HK$25,500,000

Landsea Green Management Limited

7,500,001 % 7T 2 8,000,000 75 7T -
8,000,001 % 7T 2 8,500,000 75 T -
9,000,001 7 7T £ 9,500,000 & 7T -
24,000,001 7 7T 2 24,500,000 7% 7T -
25,000,001 7 7T 2 25,500,000 7% 7T -

—L U ]
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17

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Interests in associates

None of the Group’s associates has quoted price available.

Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as follows:

Place of
Paid-in  registration Ownership
Name capital  and business interest
B ED
A8 BEARE ¥ FEgER
RMB’000
ARETR
Nanjing Xueheng Real Estate Co., 349,300 PRC 49.90%
Ltd. (“Nanjing Xueheng”)
HREEEXERAA e
((ER28E))
Wuxi Xinkun Langxu Real Estate 57,960  PRC 45.00%
Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Xinkun”)
BHNHANERERAR e
G370
Landsea Homes Corporation 511,682  US 16.88%
Landsea Homes Corporation %

Note 1:0n 8 March 2024, the Group disposed of 2,434,783 shares, representing
approximately 48.0% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LHI's
listed stock. Immediately after this disposal, LHI ceased to be consolidated
in the results of the Group and was accounted as an associate of the
Company using the equity method. After further disposal of LHI's listed
shares during the year, as at 31 December 2024, the number of LHI’'s
listed stock held by the Group has decreased to 6,135,151, representing
approximately 16.88% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LHI's
listed stock. Despite the reduction in shareholding, the Group remains the
largest shareholder of LHI and continues to have board representation.
Based on these factors, management has assessed and determined that the
Group still has significant influence over LHI. As a result, LHI was continued
accounted for as an associate of the Company using the equity method as
at 31 December 2024.

Notes to the consolidated
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17 REBEQTNER

RERE DR AR

&8

2024 2023
—EZNF ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
1,598,405 1,074,737
RE B S QA EAFHRE -
REEEARBERAANFBAT
Percentage of
BAL
Voting Profit
power sharing  Principal activity
REED FESE TEEH
49.90% 49.90%  Property development
NERE
45.00% 45.00%  Property development
MERE
16.88% 16.88%  Property development
(note 1)
MERE (K1)
MizE1: RZZ-ME=A/\A ' AEEH 2,434,783 %

£ 4

SHeeEBRALT

A& - AELHI E T B9 B 317 R BT EINR D 48
H#48.0% - ZREEREER  LHITFBERAEE
EENREAR  MERABEREARIERR
RAIMEEE AR - FRE— P ELH ETRGDE -
R-ZZE-_WNE+_A=+—B A&EEHRFHE
LHI £ iR 7 89 21 B R 2> £6,135,151 %8 + {h LHI
TS B BT REITIEINRD 42 8147 16.88% ©
BREFREFD  AEEDALHBOZARKRE -
WHEBTEFSHRANKRE ERZERX B
BEEFAITHREASEH HMBEATES -
Hit IHR =T -—mE+ A=+ —R#ER
FARERAARIERRRNEE QR -
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17 REEATNER @)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRAPEAERBERNTNTBELRE
in respect of material associates, adjusted for any differences in EMETHRENEM = ZELARE  PELg
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the A BHRERNRMERE
consolidated financial statements:
LHI Wuxi Xinkun Nanjing Xueheng
LHI B BREE
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F —EomE “E-=F —EomE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT ARETR AREFT ARETR ARETFT
Cashand cashequivalents ~ BERFEELZEEE 411,486 846,772 167 236 200,474 251,535
Other current assets HEREEE 9,628,369 8,782,556 760,169 759,980 1,155,878 1,698,207
Current assets nBEE 10,040,355 9,629,328 760,336 760,216 1,376,352 1,949,742
Non-current assets FnBEE 2,189,536 790,970 382 366 8 34
Current liabilities mEaE 2,155,614 1,346,823 366,548 366,429 266,726 311,663
Non-current liabilities FnPaE 5,214,135 4,198,084 113,913 113,914 - =
Net assets EERE 4,860,142 4,875,391 280,257 280,239 1,109,634 1,638,113
Reconciliation to carrying ~ BREEHE :
amounts:
Opening net assets 1 January —A—BHEE
FE 4,875,391 4,947,088 280,239 291,566 1,638,113 1,636,764
Profit for the year FERE 131,900 230,379 18 (11,327) 71,521 1,349
Other comprehensive income £t 2 iz 40,689 60,227 - = - =
Equity movement En¥ (187,838) (362,303) - - - -
Dividend Paid BERKRE - - - - (600,000) -
4,860,142 4,875,391 280,257 280,239 1,109,634 1,638,113

220
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17

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cContinuec)

Non-controlling interests of

subsidiaries

Closing net assets

Group’s share in %
Group’s share in RMB

Goodwil

Carrying amount

Revenue
Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

BRI RN
i

HREEFE

ARERERD L
AEBNARK
aHERE

[k

RE(E

0N
FERE/(B])
At 2EYE
FHENEREE

Notes to the consolidated

= A
=g

17 REE DN TINERS &)

financial statements

175 R I 5T

LHI Wouxi Xinkun Nanjing Xueheng
LHI BHH HREH

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZBIRE “BCCF g o £:3 “BCCF “BCQE i Sy:3
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT ARBTR AEBTT ARBTR ARBTR
(64,171) (251,252) - - - -
4,795,971 4,624,139 280,257 280,239 1,109,634 1,638,113
16.88 54.17 45,00 45.00 49.90 49.90
809,560 - 126,116 126,107 553,708 817,418
- - 3,296 3,296 - -
809,560 N/ATE R 129,412 129,403 553,708 817,418
11,033,219 8,537,157 - 18,419 7 43
131,900 230,379 18 (11,327) 71,521 1,349
40,689 60,227 - = - -
172,589 290,606 18 (11,327) 71,521 -

LHI was accounted as a subsidiary of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023, and its results were consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for that year. On 8 March 2024, the Group
disposed of 6.76% of LHI's equity interest, and the Group accounted for LHI
as an associate from since the completion of disposal (note 39).

BEEkaes

IHRBE-ZE-_=F+-A=1+—RIFEEAE
IEAEBENHBAR  HEBTMRANEBERZE
ENGAEVBBREANGEAR RZTE-_NF=A
N\H  REEFELHENG.76% % - A HETK
R AEE G LHIABRS (R & A 7] (I3 389) -

EERLT

_BFEFR
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

17 REE D RINVER )
TR AR E BT EA RS R 7 0 E
TS AR:

Aggregate carrying amount of individually B BIFEE KB & A 7] R E 4218

immaterial associates

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share N5 [ fE {8 51| FE = KB & A &)

of net loss of individually immaterial el ik
associates

(A) UNRECOGNISED COMMITMENTS TO
ACQUIRE ASSOCIATE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group has commitments
to acquire certain associate partners’ ownership interests
in associates at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

These unrecognised commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognised by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

(A)

RBRFEEBRAA KRBRFEXRBRAA

Chengdu Chenshi Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

English translation is for identification purpose only.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®ET T

105,725 127,916

(1,222) (87,791)

BWisBEBHRERERNRER
S

R-ZE-_NE+_-_A=+—H A&EH
AEBBEEDETHERIGHEERATE
UG B 72 TR A R OB 2 B AR B s o

AERERAHRBEOT  ARARK—
TRk Z IR AN K B FrREE G EE M
B NHEE 1 - AN BUORTER % T o

% of % of
ownership ownership
interest interest

held by committed to

the Group acquire
(A E AEE

BE® s W B
FiERER RS
Bat BI

25.00% 35.00%

R REE AT -



17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(B) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

ASSOCIATES

The Group applied the equity method in recognising
its respective shares of net profit or loss of associates.
After the Group’s interests in associates is reduced to
zero, additional shares of losses of associates were not
recognised if Group has not incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Notes to the consolidated
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17 REEE QTN RER &)
(B) KRFEFFELEE NREEE

AEBERARDEERASEREBZER
BIEVFAB AR - ARBREZ AR
MR ETR  WARELEELSE
ESEEE ERRBE R NHE
AT S HERBEINELBZE ARIERE -

2024 2023
—EmEFE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ET T

Aggregate unrecognised share RIERE(LE AT FEEER

of net loss of associates

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

)k

np

Interests in joint ventures REELENES

None of the Group’s joint ventures has quoted price available.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no joint venture is
considered to be material to the Group individually.

5,720 =

Y

18 REELENER

2024 2023
—E-lmF —FB=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

2,081,049 2,315,077

AEEAZLRYEAISRE -

HE_Z
AN
=

“HET A=t -HLEFE ¥
@SSR

LEEHAEEBEK -
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

Aggregate carrying amount of individually
immaterial joint ventures

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share
of net (loss)/profit of individually immaterial
joint ventures

(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT

VENTURES

Commitments
— Commitment to pay up the
subscription capital

224

Landsea Green Management Limited

18 REBPEENER »)
TITAEEENTEALNS L0 EMHE
RIS ERL -

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
FRIZEERAEEXEREAAR
2,081,049 2,315,077
AEBEEREEREE
2% (BB FHeE
(208,922) 152,291
(A) BAREELENAERRAERE
2024 2023
—EWEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
EHE
— BRI E ARNAY AR
373,216 375,582
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(B)

(€)

UNRECOGNISED COMMITMENTS TO
ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has commitments to
acquire certain joint venture partners’ ownership interests
in joint ventures at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

These unrecognised commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognised by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

FEAERMEREBRAR

Shanghai Langju Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
PR EBEAME (B EEIR R A A

Chengdu Langyue Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*

*

English translations are for identification purpose only.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES PLEDGED
AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2024, certain equity interest in joint
ventures held by the Group with the carrying amount of
RMB1,112,512,000 (2023: RMB980,597,000) are pledged
or temporarily registered to financial institutions for joint
ventures’ borrowing arrangements.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

18 REBPEENER &)

(B)

W ERHRERREDNRER
3

R-ZBE-_NE+-_A=+—0 ' K&£H
A B RAEDE THERIGEEATE
WEETALELENA B BAER -

SZERERABN T XHE  HAEAX
SERER  REASASEEXZES N —
HRLZBEARRBESHER I EERAR

% of

% of ownership
ownership interest
interest held committed
by the Group to acquire
rEEREDN AEWEBN
EEREREIL BEEZE AL
51.00% 49.00%

50.00% 50.00%

RXBREHRER

C) EERERERRNESELERE

BEEegRBRAT

i

HE-_FT-_ME+=-_A=+—H0 &&
EiFE TAECERERRMEARE
1,112,512,000 T (ZE =% AR
980,597,0007T) EE MK EREL T2
B - EETAE D ENBRTHE -

“E_NFEER 225
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(D) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

19

226

JOINT VENTURES

The Group applied the equity method in recognising its
respective shares of net profit or loss of joint ventures.
After the Group’s interests in joint ventures is reduced to

zero, additional shares of losses of joint ventures were
not recognised if the Group has not incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

joint ventures.

Aggregate unrecognised share
of net loss of joint ventures

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18 RNEBPENER &)
(D) AERELEELEFEER

AEBFARDEERATEREAZD
ERFFNHENER AKERGERE
MEDRETR  WARELEELSE
EREERFIRALLEINKEA
AT SERBEINELALERLEEE -

AEREEAEEEFBEREHE

2024 2023
—EomF —EI=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBT T
56,573 66,664

19 REMYE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held certain properties I

located in Mainland China. Changes to the carrying amount of
investment properties in the consolidated statement of financial

position are summarised as follows:

At 1 January

Fair value losses — net (note 10)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)

Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(note 20)

Disposal

At 31 December

Landsea Green Management Limited

nw—H—H

AR EEBEFE (fHE10)

& T B 2 A (BT £ 39)

BREYE  BEREE
(MFzE20)

k=

R+—BA=+—8H

Annual Report 2024

ZE_MFE+ZRA=+—H xEEREE
RPBANE TYE RS B BIR
RONBREMEMEFRIEZSHAMT

2024 2023
—EE o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
321,600 332,500
(1,800) (10,900)
(84,900) -
(139,000) =
(29,500) -
66,400 321,600




19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024, rental income and
operating expense arising from leasing of investment properties
are as follows:

Rental income e UA

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

19 BEMYE®)
BE_Z_NWE+-_A=+—BILEE W
EREHMEEANESWARELEE RN
T

2024 2023
—E-_MmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

2,639 2,728

Direct operating expense from properties REEEHSWANDERN

that generate rental income BEEKEER

The Group’s rights on investment properties at its carrying
amount is analysed as follows:

In Mainland China, held on: EREAMFA :
Lease of 40-70 years 40E70FHIHE

(A) Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2024
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
who is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties.

(B) As at 31 December 2024, investment properties
with carrying amount of RMB66,400,000 (2023:
RMB97,700,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings (note 31(a)(ii)).

(C) The valuation of the Group’s investment properties are level
3 fair value measurement.

242 1,173

AEBERREEMENERZERRES T
LI

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTR ARBTT

66,400 321,600

(A) REMYMER-_ZT-_NMF+_A=+—
HHBILEXSEROEMPEHTE
E¥THEBRERARETHE H2
BT EFERERAEBR AT ABEA
EMMZEees  WEFABEEARKEMA
HEYFEEITHERNT LR -

B) R=ZE=—mWFE+=—A=+—H KE
A A R¥66,400,0007t (=T ==
& AR #97,700,0007T) K I% & £ )
XEERERAREEERNER D (M
FE31()(i) °

(C) AZERAMENEHEEREIRAA M
EEHE -

BEEegRBRAT “E_NFEER 227
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

228

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties were performed by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all of the Group’s
investment properties were within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as valuations were arrived at by reference to
certain significant unobservable inputs. There were no
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by an independent professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experiences in the
locations and segments of the investment properties being
valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results were held between the finance
department and the valuer at least once every six months.

At the end of each reporting period, finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation
report;

° Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

19 REMY=E &)

(D)

DNREBEER
AEENREMMECHBLIEXAE
RIGEMETBLEE  NREEREMN
MER_FT_MER_FT_=F1+_H
=t+t—HHORREE-

AEE2EETEATABEEHAR
BREL R-_T_MOFR_FT_=F
T-A=t—8 AKERBEREEY
XUBARBEERNEIE -FAE
18 F2EHREIF MU mER -

AR @A 1L E T2
AEENREUEMER T _MFER—
=+ -_A=t—HBBIEXS
BRAEMETHE REEMAFR
BARAIEXER  HAGENIREEY
EMBRMUEMMBRMNEOIHGHEL
B BRITATAREMEDMEHE EZH&RE
P& ©

AEBEMBEPIE B ERHB LG ERM
B fEME - AMBVEL B 75 R R - BA 75 B0 P9
FiEEMEREAZRDERIT—
ARt am it EmiE RAER o

7 L A
RS

MGEFARNE

& &= B

s REBUMEHRENZD
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MEEEH

o HfEMEMEEAR L —FREEE
HENRD
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation techniques

In valuing the properties, discounted cash flow analysis
(“DCF analysis”) (2023: income approach and discounted
cash flow analysis) was adopted by the Group. DCF
analysis involves discounting future cash flow of the
property to its present value by using an appropriate
discount rate with due allowance for the reversionary net
income of the property, which is capitalised with a terminal
capitalization rate. In the course of valuation, the Group
assumed the property is available for lease. With regards to
the existing market conditions, the incomes and expenses,
stabilisation period and rental growth for each component
of the property are estimated to reflect the property
performance in the market. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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19 BEMYE®)

(D)

BEEegRBRAT

RREBERRE)

1 18 75 3%

HYEETHER  AERERARTSR
FEE(RERFTERED (T =5
WANERBRERITTE) - RERIFTH
FESERAENRERNERRES
MEMREZHRE  URMENERE
WAFBIFHBEERE  EAKKER
Ll RETERE - EEERET - K
SERRMEAHLE - ZHTEMHE
ERIMSAR WX RBREREMES
HoMHESER  ARRYELETS L
MERE - ARERFNGL2EREMS L
MRTLESHER B ©
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 REMY=E @)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) 2REBEERE)
Information about fair value measurements using significant EAEAERTIERE ASUBRETH
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows: AREBEAE(EIB)NERMT :
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
FURERANE FUBEGANE
g MREE fhiER % FUREBANE (T aH=) HARBENER
2024 2023 2024 2023
13 it S “BIpE “BoCf
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARBTT

Building Block No. 5 of Note 19(d)(i) 139,000 Term and reversionary  Term yields N/A 4.50% The higher the term yields,
Landsea Green Center HEEE19(d)(i) method FHlGXR TER the lower the fair value
R ERRERE EBNEERER  MEEME
Reversionary yields N/A 5.00%  The higher the reversion yields,
EEkaR% TEH the lower the fair value
RENERER  MEEME
Vacancy rate N/A 14.00% The higher the vacancy rate,
ZEX TEH the lower the fair value
ZEEHR MAEEME
Average daily rental N/A RMB2.30  The higher the average
per square mefer TER  ARB2307T  daly rental per square meter,
SEHxEHAR the higher the fair value
STHRTYERES
MMEBEER
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 66,400 68,200 DCF analysis Discounted rate 6.00% 6.00% The higher the discounted rate,
HRERAR ReMAE GRS the lower the fair value
TREER AALEERE
Vacancy rate 5.00% 500% The higher the vacancy rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
ZEEHR MAEEME
Average daily rental RMB1.33 RMB2.40  The higher the average
per square meter AR¥E133T  ARM2407T  daily rental per square meter,
SEHxEHAR the higher the fair value
STHRTYERES
MMEBEER
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

19 BEMYE®)

(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) AREEEB&KE)
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
TIREBRAYE FUBRERAYE
it AREE fhER % TURERAYE (METHEE) HAAEENER
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-ME Sy —EomE “F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
Landsea Neighbour-hood Note 39 84,900 Termand reversionary  Term yields N/A 5.50%  The higher the term yields,
Union R method FHlnX TER the lower the fair value
E R EBRERE ERkHERR  MEBHE
Reversionary yields N/A 5.50%  The higher the reversion yields,
EENEE i8R the lower the fair value
EEMEEER  MEEME
Vacancy rate N/A 25.00% The higher the vacancy rate,
TEX i8R the lower the fair value
FEXHR MEEHE
Average dally rental N/A RMB1.58  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter FER  AREA587T  persouare meter, the higher
BEARTYER the fair value
STHRTHERES -
MEEER
Second floor of International Note 19(d)(ii) 29,500 Termand reversionary  Term yields N/A 4.50%  The higher the term yields,
Business Park B & 19(d) i) method FHlmnX TER the lower the fair value
BRERIEE % EBRESE EHRRERR  MEBHE
Reversionary yields N/A 5.00% The higher the reversion yields,
EHhEE TER the lower the fair value
EEkEZER  MEBLE
Vacancy rate N/A 15.00%  The higher the vacancy rate,
TEX TER the lower the fair value
FEXHR  MEEHE
Average dally rental N/A RMB3.72  The higher the average
per square meter FER  AR®3727  daiyrental per square meter,
BEARTYER the higher the fair value
SESAFHARMLE
DARERE
0] On 15 July 2024, the investment property transferred to property, [0) R-E-MELA+ABE  ZREEDEDS
plant and equipment. HEEBEYE - BE MR -
(ii) On 6 June 2024, the investment property was disposed. (ii) RZZTZWMFARANE  EHEZKRENEY
EX
R BRBERANT “B_FEFR 231
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20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

232

At 1 January 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Year ended 31 December 2023

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)
Additions

Depreciation

Disposals

Exchange differences

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Year ended 31 December 2024

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)

Additions

Depreciation

Disposals of subsidiaries (note 39)

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
(note 40)

Disposals

Transfer from investment property
(note 19)

Impairment loss

Exchange differences

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2024

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

Landsea Green Management Limited

R-E8-=£-A-H
A

ZitE

REFE

BZE-B_=F
+t-A=t—-RLEE
UK B A7) (55 38)
i

e
&

fEH =5
ERREFE

W-E-=f+=-A=1+-H
B
e

FREFE

BE_Z-_N&
+ZA=+—-HILEE
%?WEQE(W%%)
£m
e
HEHB A A (H339)
HBARK HRE AR
(P 40)
k==
EREREEDE
(Pt zE19)
RERR
ERZES

ERREFE
R-B-N&+=-A=1—H
kA

ZATERAE

FREFE

20 %X BEKRRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor

Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

BRET KB 48 ‘ )

BF % RBARE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AREKTT ARETRT ARETR
175,883 79,101 149,249 4,491 408,724
(37,570) (68,735) (111,646) (4,454) (222,405
138,313 10,366 37,603 37 186,319
83,510 - 11 - 83,521
4,869 9,438 47,436 1,865 63,608
(10,108) (2,227) (33,379 (201) (45,915)
(7,979 (4,529) (23,148) (445) (36,101)

- 128 338 - 466
208,605 13,176 28,861 1,256 251,898
256,283 84,138 173,886 5,911 520,218
(47,678) (70,962) (145,025) (4,655) (268,320)
208,605 13,176 28,861 1,256 251,898
13,683 - - - 13,683
5,052 23 2,502 1,035 8,612
(10,217) (162) (3,196) (493) (14,068)
- (9,707) (21,733) - (31,440)
- - (14) - (14)
(128,902) - (389) (56) (129,347)
139,000 - - - 139,000
(17,571) - - - (17,571)
- 29 59 - 88
209,650 3,359 6,090 1,742 220,841
267,545 74,483 154,311 6,890 503,229
(57,895) (71,124) (148,221) (5,148) (282,388)
209,650 3,359 6,090 1,742 220,841
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e BmMRNEE
20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20 Y% - BEERRE#)
(Continued)
(@) As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no property, plant @ RZZEZWMF+_A=+—H K&

21

and equipment pledged as collateral for borrowings (2023:
RMB130,534,000), this change is due to the sales of the
pledged asset during the year (note 31(a)(v)).

ElmyE BERRKEBEEERER
BEROERR(ZT_=F: AR
130,534,0007T) - & & TR F AT
EOEIPEE (H5E31(@@)V) °

LEASES 21 HE

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a Y FREAEASBEEARAANEERES
lessee.

(A) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE A AREEHBERARBEINEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office properties — WA
— Furniture, fixtures and office — RE - RERMAEZE
equipment
— Motor vehicle — RE
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current mEh
Non-current EREB

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2024
financial year were RMB1,544,000 (2023: RMB11,731,000).

?/m\ﬁﬁkﬂk/ﬁﬁﬁﬁrlfxTEﬁifﬂhﬁFﬁ Y
Gk

2024 2023

—E-WE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEF T

484 84,786

- 539

421 =

905 85,325

264 26,646

519 73,879

783 100,525

R-ZE_NGREE FREEERE
ABAREAB44000TT (ZE-=F: A
K #11,731,0007T) °
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21 LEASES (continued)

234

(B)

(€)

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

21 HE )
B) REcBEEEMEEKWERE
RNEHE

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other rEBEEREMEERERERA T H
comprehensive income shows the following amounts HERBENERE :
relating to leases:
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Depreciation charge of FREEENTEEA
right-of-use assets
— Office properties /N 5,848 35,126
— Furniture, fixtures and office —RE - KBERPHAZE
equipment 35 447
— Motor vehicle — RE 193 -
6,076 35,573
Interest expense FMEER 1,051 6,275
Expenses relating to short-term leases ERAESHEENER 13,108 7,407
Total cash outflow for leases HERS AL A% 20,100 41,756
Gain on lease modification MEEET W= - 177

During the year ended 31 December 2024, cash payments
for the interest portion of the lease liabilities amounted to
RMB1,051,000 (2023: RMB6,275,000) and was included in
the interest paid of operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, while the principal element of
lease payment was included in financing activities.

THE GROUP’S LEASING ACTIVITIES AND
HOW THESE ARE ACCOUNTED FOR

The Group leases various office properties and furniture,
fixtures and office equipment. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of one to ten years.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

%zifzfmiJr A=+—B1t#F
B HEBGHNEIMONHRENRBA
EML%LWWﬂ_f——i AR
6,275,0007T) ' RéraH & mERTA
%«é.-é/ﬁﬁmeﬁfrug i #8 & 5 KA AR
BED BIGF AR E TGS o
(C) XEEMHEETEHRINMAR
AEEHESERAEWERRA
EEERRAZRME HESRBEIR
BEEFH—E+FF]L o
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financial statements

rE IR RNEE
22 GOODWILL 22 HE
Goodwill
mE
RMB’000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2023 R=-ZBE-=F—-—A—H
Cost Bk 7R 478,041
Accumulated amortisation REFrEEH =
Net carrying amount R FE 478,041
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z-_=f+-A=t—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYIREFE 478,041
Exchange difference & 5 =5 8,107
Closing net carrying amount FAREMFE 486,148
At 31 December 2023 R=-B=-=5+=-A=+—H
Cost [B# 486,148
Accumulated amortisation R _
Net carrying amount IREFE 486,148
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z_NE+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 486,148
Exchange difference bE 3 = & 1,038
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEKTE R A (FiE39) (487,186)
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE -
At 31 December 2024 R=ZB-_WNFE+=-A=+—H
Cost BN -
Accumulated amortisation R EEH -
Net carrying amount R FE -

BEEegRBRAT “E_NFEER 235
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22 GOODWILL (continued)

236

@)

22 BHE &)

Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: @ BEEIEEUNTHSELSAM:
2024 2023
—E-WNEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Arizona: TR BBM
— Pinnacle West Homes Holding Corp. — Pinnacle West Homes
(“PWH”) Holding Corp. ([PWH ) - 37,644
— Garrett Walker Homes (“GWH”) — Garrett Walker Homes ([GWH ) - 109,002
- 146,646
Florida: HEREMN:
— Vintage Estate Homes (“Vintage”) — Vintage Estate Homes
([Vintage |) - 26,573
— Hanover Family Builders, LLC (‘HFB”)  — Hanover Family Builders,
LLC ([HFB]) - 312,929
- 339,502
Total #Et - 486,148

As at 31 December 2023, management performed
impairment testing on goodwill based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent budgets and
estimated future cash flows for the followings five years as
approved by the management and using a pre-tax discount
rate of 13% per annum. The cash flows beyond five-year
are extrapolated using a 4% per annum growth rate.

The recoverable amount of the Arizona CGU is estimated
to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU at 31 December
2023 by RMB290,114,000. The recoverable amount of the
Florida CGU is estimated to exceed the carrying amount of
the CGU at 31 December 2023 by RMB287,140,000.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

R-ZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H EEE
RIE ST TR E RS E R EREH TR
RAFFBTARREREMSRERE
TERIE R ATRE IR R T 13% ¥ B
TRENR AFHERERERER
REGF4%HEL -

HETEAERAMBEEEEM TR
E4BEBE —_E-—=+=_HA=+—
BB ecELEENEEEARE
290,114,0007T ° fh 5T & BE MR €
EEBMNAKESEBRE -S4
T A=+—HMBcELABENERE
AR # 287,140,000 7T °



22

23

GOODWILL (continued)

(@  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: (Continued)

The directors of the Company have considered and
assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that
could cause the carrying amount of the Arizona CGU and
Florida CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Analysis of properties held for sale is as follows:

@)

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

22 BHE &)

BEEOREENTREELEN - (B)

ARBEFCERLAAHEMTIEZRR
AR s WAREREMAIELE
HEMEBNMNASELEM R FERZE
JNIR & E A B A M RREEE L H AT K]
TR FEMF o

23 FEHEEME

FEHEMEN DT -

2024 2023
ek i ———
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Properties held for sale: FEHEME
— Mainland China — FERH 603,113 679,666
—Us — =% 283,701 -
Less: provision for decline in the value of B FEEHEMEEBE T REE
properties held for sale (67,535) (74,125)
819,279 605,541
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23 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 23 FHESHEYE &)

Movements of properties held for sale are as follows:

As at 1 January

Transfer from properties under
development (note 25)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)

Disposal of subsidiaries

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 40)

Cost of property development and sales
(note 9)

As at 31 December

All of the properties held for sale are within normal operating
cycle and hence included under current assets. The amounts of
properties held for sale expected to be recovered after more than

FEHEMEMNE ST ¢
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
R—HA—H 679,666 747,669
HEaEEPEE (Ki5E25)
1,410,573 7,283,720
U BE BT B8 2 &) (B9 £ 38) - 77,371
HEHTE R A (1,081) =
BB R a4 IEAR A AR (FTFE40) (34,967) =
B EREE R EERA (i)
(1,167,377) (7,429,094)
W+=-—HA=+—8H 886,814 679,666
FIEREHEWENNEESELBABEANTES -

WHEREEE - EHBN BB —F& YD
I EHE W EHFE A AR 550,635,000 7T

one year is RMB550,635,000 (2023: RMB448,971,000). —T =% : A\R¥448,971,0007T) °
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23

24

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, properties held for sale with the
carrying amount of RMB283,701,000 were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (note 31(a)(vi)).

Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties held
for sale are as follows:

As at 1 January Rn—A—H
(Reversal)/provision during the year FA(BE), BEE
As at 31 December R+t-—A=+—H

INVENTORIES

Decoration materials o e R

The cost of inventories included in cost of property development
and sales amounted to RMB925,000 (2023: RMB14,862,000)
(note 9) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

23 HESHEWHE &)
R-ZZE-_WE+-_A=+—8 FEABEAA
R # 283,701,000 7T B+ E 35 & 1 55 2 R E
RASEBEROER R (FHEE31@)V) °

FIFHEMXBETHKBEZS T

24 EfF

2024 2023
—E-_MmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
74,125 48,337
(6,590) 25,788
67,535 74,125
2024 2023
—EME —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
30,319 30,448

BHE_Z-_MNME+-_A=+—RI-EE "
FABHMERERIEEXNANEFTERA
ARBO25 000 T (CTE-=F: AR
14,862,000 7T) (FizE9) °
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25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

240

Properties under development located in:

— Mainland China
— Us

Less: provision for decline in the value
of properties under development

Amount comprises:
Land payments
— Leasehold land, Mainland China
— Freehold land, US

Development expenditures and
improvements
Finance costs capitalised

Landsea Green Management Limited

25 FEPEIE

2024 2023
—ENF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
FAESFh B AR
— P AH 2,281,008 2,201,764
— X[ - 7,831,700
2,281,008 10,033,464
B REREMESE T BREE
(879,281) (937,914)
1,401,727 9,095,550
FIEBLE
Tt R
— PFERMTEE i 917,691 1,441,295
— EBIKAERE LI - 3,056,661
917,691 4,497,956
2 S M B AR 7S
336,391 3,780,047
HEERERNL 147,645 817,547
1,401,727 9,095,550
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25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
Movements of properties under development are as follows:

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

25 FAEPEME®)

HE R EHENEDOT ;

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

As at 1 January n—HA—H 10,033,464 9,737,047
Additions #En 2,221,651 7,513,863
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A A (8,513,813) =
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 23) B = #5 {E 15 & ¥ 2 (K #£23) (1,410,573) (7,283,720)
Exchange differences P& ZRR (49,721) 66,274
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 2,281,008 10,033,464

All of the properties under development are within normal
operating cycle and hence included under current assets.
The cost of properties under development expected to be
completed after more than one year is RMB2,246,930,000 (2023:
RMB7,991,172,000). The remaining balance is expected to be
completed within one year.

FIEREZEREMELINESLEBHAFE -
HEERBEE - HHENBR—FRET
Y 5 2 P M EE R R R A R 5 2,246,930,000
T(ZE==F: AR¥7,991,172,0007C) °
R RTEE —F AT AIFKIE ©
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R B WRARMEE

25

242

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25 HBHPEME#)

(Continued)
Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties
under development are as follows:

As at 1 January ®n—HA—AH
(Reversal)/provision during the year FR (BB, B
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEN B R R (FEE39)
Exchange differences MEH =5

As at 31 December R+=—RA=+—H”H

As at 31 December 2024, properties under development with
carrying amount of RMB751,091,000 (2023: RMB749,574,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings (note

31(a)(i)-

As at 31 December 2024, properties under development with
carrying amount of RMB568,735,000 (2023: RMB445,106,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s loans from other
financial institutions (note 31(e)())).

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

FMEREEEE NTKBEEZSHMT

2024 2023
—ENF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

937,914 777,813
(21,468) 160,101
(37,237) -

72 -

879,281 937,914

R-_ZE-_WE+—_A=+—HB EEEAA
R#751,091,000c (ZEZ=F: ARK
749,574,0007T) WA EHR EMED B AR
EBRITEROE R &R (FIFE31(0)) °

RZE_WNFE+-_A=+—H FEEAA
K #568,735,000c (ZEZ=F: AR%
445,106,0007T) MR ZER EHEE ER R
AEBBEMERMEBERNERD (M
31(e)i)) °



26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26

The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the

respective statement of financial position date as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Amounts due from non-controlling
interests

Other receivables

Deposits for purchase of land

Restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables*
Borrowings
Lease liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Excluding non-financial liabilities

THEE

BREHERAGTEZERMEE
& UK R 3K

& Y5 ARt 77 BB

JRE MK ¥ 11 M e 2 R

Hfth & Wk
BEIunZe
ERHREARRE R
ReEED

THEeE

REMAAG R SRAE
LOEEVETY Gy
8%

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the

financial instruments is disclosed in note 3. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

BoEEINERMIA

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

AEERATEMBRAKBBRFE TIE

RTA:

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ T ARETF T
27 204,029 266,280
27 374,179 560,582
27 1,851 3,603
27 739,779 1,090,371
27 - 663,101
28 616,207 1,087,476
1,936,045 3,671,413
29 7,357,346 7,731,676
31 2,806,748 7,214,893
21 783 100,525
10,164,877 15,047,094
30 - 350,887

TRIEECHERE

AREFATANEBIANSERARNK
SRE - WEMARENHEEABR LR A L
BREBEENREE -
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

244

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS k&

Included in non-current assets:

Other receivables
— Deposits for building construction
— Deposits for property maintenance
(note 27(d))

Less: provision for loss allowance
(note 3.1(bj(ii))

Landsea Green Management Limited

SHASRBAE -

H {th & W3k
— BFEERS
— WEEERS (HEE27(d)

B B R R (B RE 3.1 (b))
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27 BWERRKREMERR - BN

2024 2023
—EE —EC=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
18,461 30,000
5,580 5,580
24,041 35,580
(5,647) (5,977)
18,394 29,603




27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Included in current assets:
Trade receivables (note 27(a))
— Related parties (note 41(c))
— Third parties

Less: provision for loss allowance
— Related parties (note 3.1(b)(i)
— Third parties (note 3.1(b)(i)

Prepayments
— Prepayments for purchase of land
— Prepaid value added tax (“VAT”)
and other surcharges (note 27(b))
— Prepaid taxes (note 27(b))
— Other prepayments

Amounts due from related parties
(note 41(a))
Less: provision for loss allowance
(note 3.1(b)(ii))

27 BWERRAKREMERRR -

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

EREN

)58 A D)
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEF T
STARBEE
JE U BR FR (M 7E27(a))
— BEE T (F13E41(0) 164,991 172,449
— =5 402,927 471,358
567,918 643,807
W IR
— B8 5 (KY5E3.1(0)) (119,137) (102,638)
— B=7 (KF5E3.1(b)() (244,752) (274,889)
(363,889) (377,527)
204,029 266,280
FEF
— EBEIENMR 442,513 442,513
— FEfTIEER ([EER]) &
Empng (Max27)) 97,678 102,438
— AN T E (B 27(0)) 14,802 23,266
— HEfbFEER 72,347 157,410
627,340 725,627
e U A B 7 3R IE (MR 41(a))
1,162,362 1,325,120
W BB (M EE3.1(0)i)
(788,183) (764,538)
374,179 560,582
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 EWRARAKREMEWE BAR
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) ) & AC )

2024 2023

—EE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Amounts due from non-controlling interests & Uz JE 422 51| 14 4 25 71 18 (B 3£ 27(0))

(note 27(c)) 3,424 4,972
Less: provision for loss allowance B B (P EES.1(0)i)

(note 3.1 (o)) (1,573) (1,369)

1,851 3,603

Deposits for purchase of land BE THHIZS - 683,609
Less: provision for loss allowance B B (P EES.1(0)i)

(note 3.1 (o)) - (20,508)

- 663,101
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Other receivables

— Lendings to third parties (note 27(j))

— Deposits for land bidding

— Escrow receivable

— Deposits in housing fund

— Deposits for building construction

— Deposits for apartments rental

— Consideration receivables

— Warranty and general liability insurance
receivables

— Others

Less: provision for loss allowance

(note 3.1(bj(ii))

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

27 BWERRKEMERRR - AN

)58 A D)
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
H b i LR

— ME=ZHEE (KizE27() 910,761 466,128
— T HRES 54,511 45,000
— RUEEE - 357,162
— EER LS 5,849 6,382
— BFEEZRS 15,100 16,100
— ABHESES 1,822 2,004
— BWRE 4,000 1

— RIEBRANK RS TRE
B U R - 194,106
— Hi 64,723 201,330
1,056,766 1,288,213

B E IR (P EE 3.1 (o))
(335,381) (227,445)
721,385 1,060,768
1,928,784 3,279,961

The amount is interest free and repayable on demand. (i)

At 31 December 2024, an amount of RMB420,145,000 in
lendings to third parties is included in the trade and other

payables related to the deconsolidation of subsidiaries.

BEEegRBRAT

Jil3
R
e

AR B KB E K

§

R-BE-NE+-A=+—8  AFE=
HEE A R 420,145,000 7T 51 A B2 ff
BRARKRIEEAEANREBNENER KL
H A ERR
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

248

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) RiE& @)

(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables from property
development and sales

Trade receivables from management
services

Less: provision for loss allowance
(note 3.1(b)(i)

Landsea Green Management Limited

(A) FEUWERK

27 BWERRKREMERR - BN

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T

B EE R B K 5 5 R U BR 3R
270,226 271,319

BB AR TS R W AR X

297,692 372,488
567,918 643,807

B IR (FEES.1(0)())
(363,889) (377,527)
204,029 266,280
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
At 31 December, the aging analysis of the current trade
receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

Related parties 28 B
— Less than one year — PR —%F
— One to two years — —EWF
— Two to three years —WME=F
— Three to four years — =ZENF
— Four to five years — mERF
— Over five years — AFNE

Third parties EF=5
— Less than one year — LRR—F
— One to two years — —EMF
— Two to three years —ME=F
— Three to four years — ZEMF
— Four to five years — NERF
— Over five years — AFENE

The credit terms granted to customers of purchasing
properties are generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days,
while for the customers to whom the Group provides
management services, decoration services and sales of
land, the credit terms are around one year.

Information about the impairment provision of trade
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in note 3.1(b)(i).

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

27 EWRARAKREMEWER BAR
) & AC )
(A) FEWBRR (&)

RTZA=1t—8 " REZEZBHOH
Hi R R BRI DT ZA T

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

7,325 10,541
6,264 44,645
43,177 27,881
27,849 20,709
20,311 22,321
60,065 46,352
164,991 172,449
7,362 39,459
36,083 27,421
15,635 39,095
9,568 11,635
11,310 294,466
322,969 59,282
402,927 471,358
567,918 643,807

BRTEFPBEVENEEHR -—MRNF3I0
HZ60H  rMASEMEFPREHEEER
B EHREERLHEEI ERTER
WEEHRNAE—F -

EHEWERFRERERAEBEEFEER
BRHE R 2B MRS 1(0)() °
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

250

(B)

(€)

(D)

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which develop
properties for sale are subject to prepayment of VAT at the
rate of 3% on advance collected from customers. Such
prepayments are recorded as “prepayments — prepaid
VAT and other surcharges”.

These subsidiaries are also subject to prepayments of EIT
and land appreciation tax on expected profit margin and
land appreciation tax based on advance collected from
customers together. Such prepayments are recorded as
“prepayments — prepaid taxes”.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Deposits for property maintenance are repayable within 2
to 7 years from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December, the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits (netting off
provision for loss allowance) were denominated in below

currencies:

RMB ARE
uss$ ETT
HK$ BT

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair value of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

27 BWERRKREMERR - BN

) & AC )
(B) A&EEBBBENENTANEBATA

(€)

(D)

FRUCER 35 P O B R TR A 3% HY SR (E A
HERBARRENR — BIRER
REMHNE]

A= PNCID Y CE SR PER Y G1aE 3
PIEH R L HIBER - RIRERKES
R FRIRTE B L 3B (EH - ZFBARA
RAIEMAR — BAREA] -

RBHRREER  RERBAREKEE -

MEERREARREPRETMFER

TFEREE -

RTZA=1t—8 BYERRLEME

Wk - BN R MRS (FORREIREE) &
FREEU T ERGE -

2024 2023

—EmEF =4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETF T

1,611,045 1,783,273

335,999 1,525,841

134 450

1,947,178 3,309,564

R-E-_NFEFER T -_=F+_7

=t+—H8  BEREXRKEMERZKOA
AEAEERAEEES -
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rE M B EmRMEE

28 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHAND CASH 28 ZRFHBEURBEERAEEE

EQUIVALENTS ¥
2024 2023
—E-WEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Restricted cash IR 3R &
— Restricted for project developments — RHIAIEER ER 35,597 87,585
— Others — Hitb 27,545 11,730
63,142 99,315
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEY 553,065 988,161
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash ZBREHEeUARBEERReEEYHEREAE
equivalents approximate their fair values. HEANABERESE °
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28 RESTRICTED CASHAND CASHANDCASH 28 T MR4|BEELURKRENAEEE

EQUIVALENTS (Continued) Yl ()
At 31 December, the carrying amounts of restricted cash RT+-_A=+—"H8B XRHIIRESUKIIRE R
and cash and cash equivalents were denominated in below ReFEYHNRMBELEATERS|E :
currencies:
2024 2023
—E-MF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T ARET T
RMB AR 95,904 158,171
US$ ETT 519,059 926,205
HK$ B TT 1,244 3,100
616,207 1,087,476
Cash and cash equivalents held in Mainland China are subject RABEAFE 2R KR ZEEYXINE
to exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions EFIROIMBAE  SFHREESHOARH
on exporting capital out, other than through dividends. The (TBRERE) - REMBHRENEAZER
cash balance included in the consolidated financial statements Bl IR & & sr A AR 101,274,000 T (= F
to which these restrictions apply is RMB101,274,000 (2023: — =% : AR¥158,718,0007T) °
RMB158,718,000).
29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 ENRMREAMENK
2024 2023
—E-WEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Included in non-current liabilities: FFASEREBE
— Warranty accruals — B RIERES - 346,662
— Other payables — H b fER 4,000 5,000

4,000 351,662
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in current liabilities:

— Amounts due to related parties
(note 41(b))

— Payables for construction materials
and services

— Deposits received from rental and
construction services

— Interest payable

— Amounts due to non-controlling
interests (note 29(a))

— Funding from third parties (note 29(b))

— VAT and other tax payables

— Dividend payable (note 14)

— Accruals for staff costs

— Notes payables

— Consideration payables (note 29(c))

— Other payables

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

290 ENRIAREMESR @

2024 2023
—SE-NE B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
FAREBIBE :
— FETEAES 7 58 (M 41(0)
2,836,547 3,097,933
— B IR R RS KIE
982,714 1,875,348
- HERIRRBELRIZES
365,841 822,790
— AR 517,295 458,827
— ISR R IE
(MF5E29(a)) 280,871 280,871
—REE=FHE 2 (FE29()) 1,573,207 515,527
— RE R H M ENTIE 112,118 122,295
— EIRE (H5E14) 13,439 13,155
— BB IER 46,571 233,952
o - 2,513
— ERRE (FHEE29(0) 5,936 4,626
— HAbFERK 777,496 655,084
7,512,035 8,082,921
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

254

@)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, amounts due to non-
controlling interests include RMB198,606,000 bearing
interest at 4.65% per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free.

All amounts due to non-controlling interests are unsecured
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2024, fundings from third parties
include RMB1,500,000 bearing interest at 4.64%, due on
29 June 2025.

As at 31 December 2023, fundings from third parties
include RMB18,000,000 bearing interest from 4.64% to
10% per annum, due on 19 June 2025.

As at 31 December 2024, an amount RMB1,151,086,000
is in funding from third parties is included in the trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits related to the
deconsolidation of subsidiaries.

Other fundings from third parties are interest free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2024, consideration payables are
mainly related to payables for acquisition of investments, of
which RMB4,626,000 was due to the former shareholder
of Wuhan Langhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E%Z 8850 & ¥
BRAA]).

The remaining RMB1,310,000 was due to the acquisition
of a subsidiary Shanghai Shishu Trading Co., Ltd.
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29 BNRRREMEMNRK @

@ MRZE-_NFRER_ZE-_=%F+=A
=+—HB ERIFEZEHMER
BRENFRRL65%FEMARE
198,606,000 7T * & T IERI% 8 °

P FE A R4 1 1 4 25 SR IR 15 /5 R 4K

RBREREE -

by RZE-_WMF+=-_A=+—H KEF
=HNESBIERFNEALCA%T B
AR ®1,500,000c R - RHF N

AZ+hBAEH-

RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H8"%E8
FZFNECBRERFFNERL64%E
10% 5T B 89 A R # 18,000,000 7T * ;A —

TRFARNATNABEEIE-

R-Z-—mWE+—_A=+—H8 %kB85F
= HHE e ARK1,151,086,000 7T 5+
ANEKBRRKLIERAE ARE BN ER
IRA R EMERR BRRRES -

HibRBFE=TNELREE
RAREREER -

0 MZE-_mMF+=-A=+—H
BEESRKBIEENENT

K ¥4,626,000 TENEERALEER

RABRRTALR ©

Tl &2 A K #1,310,000 7T J5 B 75 U BE B

BARLBLFEZARATR -



29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
At 31 December, the aging analysis of the payables for
construction materials and services based on invoice date is as

follows:

LLess than one year
One to two years
Two to three years
Over three years

At 31 December, the carrying amounts of trade and other

payables were denominated in below currencies:

RMB
Us$
HK$

AR¥
e
BT

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

290 ENRIAREMESR @

R+—A=+—B HREZEZEHNENT
RYWH MR HRIBRRE DT

2024 2023
—ZE-MmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
61,502 871,837
84,070 243,166
154,336 332,839
682,806 427,506
982,714 1,875,348

RTZA=1t—08 BNHERKXREMEMNK

RAREEI T EEEHE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
7,078,338 6,429,133
405,948 1,957,085
31,749 48,365
7,516,035 8,434,583
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30 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

256

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

At 1 January 2023

Fair value loss/(gain) (note 10)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024

Fair value loss (note 10)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)
Repayment

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2024

30 RAREBEFAESENEHEE

Non-current Current

58] k)

Public Redemption
warrants liabilities Total

(note 30(a)) (note 30(b))
DRABRAEE BEHEE ]

(B&£30(a)) (BF&E30(0))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
W-_ZT-_=%—HF—H 10,272 315,931 326,203
AREEEBE/ (W) (HEE10) 28,491 9,412) 19,079
bE = 284 5,321 5,605

RZZE-=F+-A=+—AHK

—ZT-MNFE—F—H 39,047 311,840 350,887
AR EEEBE (KF10) 541 6,881 7,422
HEHTB AR (HFE39) (39,588) - (39,588)
BR - (319,549) (319,549)
b 2= 28 - 828 828

RZE-_NF+-_A=+—~H -

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024



30 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2023, Landsea Homes had
15,525,000 outstanding public warrants. Each public
warrant was exercisable at US$1.15 into one-tenth of a
share of Landsea Homes. The public warrants were set
to expire five years after 7 January 2021 or earlier upon
redemption or liquidation. The warrants were presented
on the consolidated statement of financial position as a
liability recorded at fair value, with subsequent changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income at each
reporting date as a fair value gain/(loss) on remeasurement
of the warrant liability. The public warrant liabilities were
valued using quoted prices. Upon disposal of Landsea
Homes during the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group derecognised all related warrant liabilities, leaving no
warrant liabilities as at 31 December 2024.

In May 2022, Landsea Holdings Corporation (“Landsea
Holdings”), a subsidiary of the Group, and 1103849 B.C.
LTD. (“1103849 B.C.”), an independent third party, entered
into a credit agreement for a period of 12 months starting
from the date of the credit agreement (the “initial maturity
date”). According to the credit agreement, 1103849
B.C. agreed to provide a loan with a principal amount of
US$45,000,000 (equivalent to RMB303,242,000) at an
interest rate of 10% per annum to Landsea Holdings,
which is secured by 4,838,710 shares of Landsea Homes
and guaranteed by Landsea Group. The loan included
an extension option and a conversion option allowing
conversion into shares of Landsea Homes under certain
conditions. The Group designated the loan, along with
the embedded options, as a financial liability at fair value,
with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income at each reporting date. As 31
December 2023, the loan had been extended for an
additional 12 months beyond the initial maturity date.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Landsea
Holdings fully repaid the loan of US$45,000,000, and all
related obligations were fully settled.

30 #%

(&

@)

BEEegRBRAT
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AIREBEFABEENERER

Landsea Homes f & 15,525,000 {7
TEARRRER -SHARARKE
BAHZ1.15K TL1TF A % Landsea
Homes + 5 2 —& IR 7 - A RABRIEE
BERZEZ—F—HtBERFEK
fE O] 35 AR PR HR AL JE W © SRR R VAR
EMBRARAZINRRALBEA
AR HEAAEBEEHNSRE
AR eEa kA2 EmKkaR N
HREENTERREZABENLAR
BEKE (BB ARRAREZEE
HAHREGRE RBEEZT_NF+=
A =+ —H IEF E 1 & Landsea Homes
& NEEK IR A EERREE
A MRZZEZWmF+=ZA=+—H
WERREZEE -
RZEZ=—_FRA AEEKNBE
‘A B] Landsea Holdings Corporation
([ Landsea Holdings |) (858 5 = 75
1103849 B.C. LTD. (/1103849 B.C. |) 7T
Y EERE BEERZEH(E
REEB] REFABE12EA - RIEE
E # % * 1103849 B.C. [ & [A] Landsea
Holdings 42 #it A< & 8 /& 45,000,000 3
7t (F8% K A R #303,242,0007T) & &
M FEFEE10% * 7% E 3% M Landsea
Homes 4,838,710 ik & 3 {EHE # - I
HAFEBREER ZERBELH
BEENEREERE AT Es TEHRY
T #  & | andsea Homes H) i% {5 » AN 5=
EzERERNTEEREERARA
nBEEFENSRAE HEAAEE
PPN EMEANEREERREMS
ARERABR - R_E-_=F+_-A8
=+—H ZEFREREXRIHBRET
RREIM2MEA

HE_T-_NF+_A=1+—HI%F
& » Landsea Holdings B & (& & B &
45,000,000% 7T - MAABHEBAEETRE
2EUEE -
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258

BORROWINGS

Secured
— Bank borrowings (note 31(a))
— Loans from other financial
institutions (note 31(e))

Total secured borrowings

Unsecured
— Bank borrowings
— Senior notes 2020 (note 31(c))

— Senior notes 2022 (note 31(c))

— Loans from the Substantial
Shareholder (note 31(b))

— EB-5 loans and contributions

from EB-5 investors
(note 31(d))

Total unsecured borrowings

Total borrowings

31 &

2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
B *RE e k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET R AREF T AREFT
BEA
— RITER(HIFE31(0) 635,424 - 258,385 2,766,863
— REEMEREED
ER(E31() 450,653 - 437,930 =
BEMEREE 1,086,077 - 696,315 2,766,863
e
— RITER - - = 1,672,532
- ZZTEEEER
(fizE31(c) 230,887 - 240,599 =
- T ERRER
(fi=E31(c) - 657,468 669,021 =
- REXEREMEX
(H 3£ 31(0)) 3,085 - 367,043 =
— EB-5EFH K EB-5
BEANHER
(H=E31(d)) - 820,231 = 802,520
B EREE 242,972 1,477,699 1,276,663 2,475,052
EE L 1,329,049 1,477,699 1,972,978 5,241,915

Borrowings carry interest ranging from 0.10% to 12.30% (2023:

0.10% to 12.30%) per annum.

Landsea Green Management Limited
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December, the carrying amounts of borrowings were

denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
uss$ ETT

As at 31 December, the Group’s borrowings are repayable as

follows:

Within one year —FR
Between one and two years —EWF
Between two and five years ENa:S
Over five years AELE

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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31 B &)

RT-—A=+—B EXHEEERTIE

HEHE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARETFIT
945,738 1,368,493
1,861,010 5,846,400
2,806,748 7,214,893

RT-ZA=+t—8 AKE{

BEE -

FER T 51 B

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
1,329,049 1,972,978
820,231 2,234,251

- 2,960,144

657,468 47,520
2,806,748 7,214,893
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

Bank borrowings are secured by:

260

(A)

M

(i)

(vi)

properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB751,091,000 (2023: RMB749,574,000) (note
25);

investment properties with carrying amount of

RMB66,400,000 (2023: RMB97,700,000) (note 19);

guarantee provided by the Substantial Shareholder;

equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group
(note 44(c));

no property, plant and equipment was pledged (2023:
RMB130,534,000) (note 20);

properties held for sale with carrying amount of
RMB283,701,000 (note 23);

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 5.50% to
11.69% (2023: 4.45% to 11.69%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2024 and up to the approval date of
these consolidated financial statements, RMB60,000,000
of the Group’s bank borrowing, bearing interest at 5.50%
per annum was overdue and unpaid.

Landsea Green Management Limited

Annual Report 2024

31 B &)
(A) BRITEZA TS SIBIELRE R -

() BREEAARE751,091,0007T (=
T—=F: AR¥T749,574,0007T)
BBREE R E A (H5E25)

(i) BRMEEAAR66,400,0007T (=
T - =44 : AR¥ 97,700,000 7T)
I E Y ZE (FHEE19)

iy EBREFATIREAER

(v) AEBEHETHBRRMRE (T
44(c)) ;

v BEDE BELRESEE(Z
T—=4F: AR¥130,534,0007T)
(FtzE20) :

vi) BREEA A R¥ 283,701,000 7T H)
FHEHE W (FI5E23) ¢

RITERIZFEFEN T 5.50% = 11.69%
TEC=F  445% F11.69%) 5B o

RZZE_WE+_A=+—BE#H#HZE
ZEGEMBRERMAED  REBMR
778 A R # 60,000,000 7T (3% F F| =&
5.50% &t B.) B EA KA o



31 BORROWINGS (continued)

(B)

(©)

THE LOANS FROM THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

The loan from the Substantial Shareholder is unsecured,
bearing interest at 5.65% (2023: 5.65%) per annum and
repayable on demand.

SENIOR NOTES

Senior notes 2020 issued by the Company were listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
on 21 January 2020 with interest at 10.75% per
annum paid semi-annually in arrears and fell mature in
October 2022. In October 2022, the Group successfully
exchanged senior notes 2020 of US$132,216,000
(equivalent to RMB947,962,000) with a new senior note of
US$118,994,400 (equivalent to RMB853,166,000) due on
20 October 2024 (the “Maturity Date”) (the “senior notes
2022”), which is at 90% of the aggregate principal amount
of senior note 2020, and cash payment of US$13,883,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB99,538,000), which is at
10.5% of the aggregate principal amount of senior note
2020 (the “Exchange”).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group was in default of the
senior notes 2020 with principal amount of US$33,370,000
(equivalent to RMB239,887,000) and interest amount of
US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) because of non-
payment over two years from its due date. The events
of default provisions under senior notes 2022 carve out
any cross-default events and final judgements and orders
arising directly or indirectly from any defaults of events of
occurrence under senior notes 2020.

31 &R

&8

(B)

(C)

STHEEEERLT
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K ()
KEFERRNERK

REEBRENERAEIRT  IZFFH
I565%<—i—_¢ 5.65% ) 7T 8. -
WBIREREE -

BERE

ARARIBITH_ZS_SFEEEZER
—ECEF A+ —BEFMEE
AR GERAR LT  FEFREF
075N NHE - IR T ==
TAIH -R_T=-_=F+A ~&H
AT #5 132,216,000 7t (HHE R AR
947,962,0007T) M —E T F B R ER
HR=ZZ-_mNFE+A=+8(2HA))
B HIE118,994,400% 7T (FE R AR
#853,166,0007T) KW B X ZE (=
E__EBEREB) (R-ZZE=-ZTF
BAEAZEAESBEREHNI%) KIRE R
5£13,883,000% 7t (FHE R AR
99,538,0007L ' WA T T FEHLE
BEASETEN10.5%) B ([&x#k]) -

RZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H  £&5H
E B FI HA B 8 i /M F & R 5 3R i R
Kéﬁsssmooo%nwa%‘%/\ﬁﬁz
239,887,0007T) K& F 5 € #1008 = 7T
<$ﬁ“‘7§A/\Eeﬁ%7oo%ﬁ)a’J_7_7¢
BERE —T_FELEEETE
HEHEEERE S _SFEBAEE
BTEHNEENEMNENTAMEREK
MEEENENRINENSTERRKH
RRAEL ©
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

262

(€

(D)

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Senior notes 2022 were listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited on 21 October 2022 with interest
at 10.75% per annum paid semi-annually in arrears. Senior
notes 2020 and senior notes 2022 are guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Company. On 23 December
2024, the Senior Notes 2022 were extended, with the
maturity date revised to 23 December 2033. Following
the extension, the interest rate was adjusted to 3.00% per
annum.

As at 31 December 2024, the remaining outstanding
principal amount of senior notes 2022 was US$94,458,000
(equivalent to RMB657,468,000).

EB-5 LOANS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
EB-5 INVESTORS

Contributions from EB-5 investors with the amount of
US$114,104,794 (equivalent to RMB821,231,000) was
accounted for as financial liability. The Group may, in its
sole and absolute discretion, to avoid repayments to EB-5
investors until 25th anniversary from the fund establishment
day. The financial liability is unsecured and bears effective
interest ranging from 0.10% to 1.00% (2023: 0.10% to
1.00%) per annum.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

31 BF
(C)

(D)

()

BEEE #)

R CFEBAREN T =_=F1+A
T+ BEFNEEFISMAERA
Al L™  B¥FERFFNE10.75% 2
ME - T _EFEARER=_T=—
FEAZRBAARRE THEBRRE
ER -RZT-_NMF+=—A=+=8"

T FEAREERERE  BEAE
AT ==F+-A-+=A-H
& FREFEESZ.00% °

—m¢+—ﬂi+—5'
=T = BAZEBERNBAEHE
ﬁ94A58000%7EHHEﬁéAE%%
657,468,0007T) °

|I77'>’

EB-58F REB-5REAHER
EB-5#& & A & 5 114,104,794 % ¢
(FHE B A R#821,231,0007T) A BRI
EepBE AEET2ENBRERH
RENTFEBSREAN BEEESKY
HERAFEB BFRAIL-2RAER
EET WIREBREMNENF010%E
1.00% (ZZ = =% : 0.10% £ 1.00% )
B



31 BORROWINGS (continued)
(E) LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS

Loans from other financial institutions carry interest with
12.30% (2023: 12.30%) per annum. In December 2024, a
contract of assignment guarantee was signed for the loan
from other financial institutions, with the guarantee period
lasting until the full repayment of the loan.

As at 31 December 2024 and up to the approval date of
these consolidated financial statements, the entire balance
of loans from other financial institutions with principal
amount of RMB450,653,000 and interest amount of
RMB87,828,000 were overdue and unpaid.

Loans from other financial institutions are secured by:

(i) properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB568,735,000 (2023: RMB445,106,000) (note
25);

(i) guarantee provided by Nanjing Langming Properties
Group Limited (B R EA &4 E & B A R A Al), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Landsea
Group;

(i) equity interest of certain subsidiary of the Group (note
44(d)).

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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31 R @)
(E) REHMERMBBENER

REHMWERMBEBENERNFER XA
12.30% (ZE - =4 :12.30%) - R =

R_E-_mME+_—_A=+—HREHEZ
EREMBHRIUER  AEEAAR
¥ 450,653,000 T K| B2 R AR
87,828,000 7T ) E th & Bh i 18 S AR RR
P EARLNT o

KEEMESRBBNETIATIIREE
HRFEM

() BREEAARY 568,735,000 T (=
T—=F: AR¥445106,0007T)
BRI EE e E i E (M 5E25)

(i) A E) NS A R R A R
EEBEBRRARNMAFEEMRE
HAVER

() AT B 2 A0 (3
44(d)) °
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

32

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled
after one year

Deferred income tax assets:
— to be recovered within one year
— to be recovered after one year

Deferred income tax assets, net

Landsea Green Management Limited

BN —FREENRLT
FIsHAR

BRI EE -
— R —FARKE
— R —FR KO

BEFFSREEFR

Annual Report 2024

i FIE PR 1S B

ERAAN B ATRNSRAEHAEESR
RAERRAGERE BEEREHERE—
MBHE AR SEEREHEERARBE

PRIREH o JFEWMT ¢

2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
130,778 190,497
12,112 6,770
269,095 402,731
281,207 409,501
150,429 219,004
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 RIEFAEB (2

As at 31 December 2024, deferred income tax assets were offset
against deferred income tax liabilities with the amount of RMB

71,433,000 (2023: RMB92,317,000).

The movements in deferred income tax assets, net are as follows:

At 1 January

Credited to profit or loss (note 12)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 40)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)
Exchange differences

At 31 December

R-E-_NE+—A=+—H BELERESH
BEEBRBERLEMSH&EARKET1,433,000

T(ZZE=Z=F: AR¥092,317,0007T) °

BEFASMEEFRESHMT ¢

2024 2023

—ENEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARET T

®n—H—H 219,004 92,036
EEmEER (M3E12) 69,055 89,006
&M B A R (M EE39) (145,678) =
MR R4 IE4R & AR (BT5E40) 7,777 =
U BB BT B A Al (KiE38) - 36,227
PE 5 =% 271 1,735
Rt+t-—A=+—8H 150,429 219,004
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to
offsetting, are as follows:

32 LLFE ﬁ(fﬁ)

Change in
fair value
of identified
Revaluation ~ Accelerated Re-  assets upon Unearned
of investment tax measurement  acquisition of interest
properties  depreciation gain  subsidiaries income Others Total
KEHEARE
REH i Bff  FANEEN RED
NEEMH RENE iTEAE  AABEZE FEWA At @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2023 RZE-=%-A-H 20938 13,861 4072 75,704 91,162 41,051 246,788
Charged/(credited) toprofitorloss AR/ (%)

(note 12) (Rt 12) 752 7807 (4.408) 87% 2.557) 18,989 27,874
Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 38)  WERHIB 231 (£ 38) - - - 7,071 - - 7071
Exchange difference EiEE - 265 407 - - 409 1,081
At 31 December 2023 gt St

tZB=1+-A 20,186 21983 n 91,570 88,605 60,449 282,814
At 1 January 2024 R=2-RmE-A-A 20,186 21,983 n 91,570 88,605 60,449 262,814
Charged/(credited) toproftorloss ~ EBRRH/(H8)

(note 12) (B3t 12) (287) (19,513) (528) (8,294) - 3,070 (28,136)
Disposal of subsidaries (note 39) HERBAR (Hz30) - (2,466) - - - - (2,466)
Deconsolidation of subsiciaries HBARRILEGE AR

(note 40) (Btt40) - - - - - (51,099) (51,099)
Bxchange difference EiEE - 46 465 - - 587 1,098
At 31 December 2024 RZBZDE

tZB=1+-H 17,315 - 8 83,276 88,605 13,007 202,211
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
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32 ELEFABH &)

175 R I 5T

The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to EIHATELEMSHEEZENT :
offsetting, are as follows:
Temporary
difference on Temporary Provision
unrealised difference on for loss
profit of recognition of allowance  Revaluation
intercompany revenuesand  andaccrued  of investment
transactions Taxlosses  cost of sales expenses properties Others Total
AREREM BARAR
RERREN HEERN  BERER Rk
ERER REES ERZE EEREG NEER At Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2023 WZBZ=%-f-A 11,49 84,762 4,883 220,242 2,444 14,997 338,824
(Charged)/credited foprofitorloss 183 (X8)/ 88

(note 12) (BsE12) 6,388 (43,614) (19 108,083 - 46,142 116,880
Acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 38 WERHIB 2231 (£ 38) - - - 43,298 - - 43298
Exchange difference EiEE - - - 2,509 - 307 2816
At 31 December 2023 N=%=2

TZA=1-H 17,884 41,148 4,764 374,132 2,444 61446 501,818
At1 January 2024 R-E-MmE-B-A 17,884 41,148 4,764 374,132 2,444 61,446 501,818
(Chargedoredited toprofitorloss 8% (%%)/£%

(note 12) (H312) (8,529) 41,451 17 (31,873) (2,444) 42,207 40,919
Disposal of subsidfaries (note 39) HERBAR (Hz30) - (16,600) - (103,026) - (28,518) (148,144)
Deconsolidation of subsidfaries MELRALHGA AR

(note 40) R0 - 24 - - - (43,298) 43,322)
Bxchange difference EiEE - - - 1317 - 52 1,369
At 31 December 2024 RZBZQE

tZA=1-H 9,355 65,975 4,781 240,550 - 31,979 352,640
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33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 A
AUTHORISED SHARES EE R A
The Company has authorised shares of 6,000,000,000 shares ARBIRZE_=F—A—H -ZF==%
of HK$0.01 each as at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, 1 +ZA=+—RB -ZEZ@EF—-A—ARKRZ=
January 2024 and 31 December 2024. T - F+ = A =+— B %A 6,000,000,000 %
BHREE0.01 BITHATEMRD ©
Issued shares ERITRG
Equivalent
Number of Nominal value nominal value
ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
EBER
ZEREE EEREE LHEmEE
’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
TR THETT AREFTT
Issued and fully paid: BETREAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ &M E&E0.01 B TH)
TR
Balance at 1 January 2023, RZTEZ=%—H—8"
31 December 2023, 1 January —E-=F+_A
2024 and 31 December 2024 =+—H ZZT=-/\F
—A—BR-ZT_WF
TZA=+—HB&&ERR 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_PF
+=—A=+—H 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012,
the old share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme
2012”) was adopted by the Company. The Company
operates the Share Option Scheme 2012 for the purpose of
providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
Share Option Scheme 2012 has been valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption on 25
April 2012 and expired on 25 April 2022. On 1 April 2022,
the Company offered to grant an aggregate of 53,300,000
share options (the “Share Options”), to a director of the
Company and certain employees of the Group. As at the 31
December 2023, all of the Share Options were cancelled
and there were no outstanding options granted under the
Share Option Scheme 2012. These Share Options are
valid for ten years from the date of grant on 1 April 2022
and vested on 1 April 2023. The Share Options were out-
of-the-money, as the exercise price of the Share Options
exceeded the average market price of the Company’
common stock.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2022,
the new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme
2022") was adopted by the Company. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme 2022 is to enable the Group
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme 2022 shall be valid and effective until 10
years after the date adopted. There was no outstanding
share options under the Share Option Scheme 2022 as at
31 December 2024.
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34 EERESE

(A)

BEEegRBRAT

ERESE
BER-_ZE——FMNA-—t+RBLETH
AARIRFEBAFREG BB ETER
BmE AR FIBRMERBRETE (=
E-_FEREFE] - ARFRFLZ
T FHRRETE BEERRRBH
HBAREEEBKINNEERDEE -
I HEREFEE T4
A +THBRMBBARER  EXHER
10F TR E-_—_FMNA-+HAE
MR _TE-_—_FMWA—H  AQAM
ARA—REBEZRAEEETEERY
& #£53,300,000 17 fE Akt ([BBRRAE D) -
BHE_Z-_=F+-_HA=+—H0 " RE
—E-—EEREGESINMAEERED
SEP I R I ER L RITE R - %
THEREE T __FMHMA—AKHAB
HER+FRER YR=2ZE==FN A
—HBEE @B ERENITEEBRRAR
ANRIEBERHOFHTE  HEREER
BIMREE

BER-_ZE-_FNA=Z+HRTHAR
RAIRFBEFAS LBBHLERE
B AREEEMFEREFE(=F
TEBRESE]) - —FEK
B EEEEAKBE R MG ERBEE
REOBRE FARSHASEELER
Bh B SREER o —F = — R
ERRMBBRRIOFRAERRER -
HE_Z-_M&+-_A=+—08 =%
T oFEREASTEERTENER
T o
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

270

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) to recognise
employees’ contributions, incentivise retention for the
Group’s ongoing operations and development, and attract
suitable talent for future growth.

As the 2014 Restricted Share Award Scheme expired on
1 July 2024, the Group adopted the 2024 Share Award
Scheme for a ten-year term commencing on 2 July 2024.
The new scheme continues to recognise employee
contributions, enhance retention, and attract talent to
support the Group’s long-term development.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased or new shares
will be subscribed for restricted shares “Restricted
shares”) by a trustee appointed by the Company and be
held on trust for the relevant grantees until such shares
are vested with the relevant grantees in accordance with
the rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The
Restricted Shares will be awarded with reference to the
performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria determined by the board of the directors from time
to time.
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

(i) The movements of shares held for Restricted Share

Award Scheme by the trustee are as follows:

Restricted shares

At 1 January Rn—H—H

Acquisition of shares g1 8h)

Dividends received (a) B U AR B (a)

Distribution to employees X AD KR TIEE
by the trustee

At 31 December R+=—H=+—H

(@)

Dividends of granted Restricted Shares received by the
trustee are payable when these shares are transferred to the
relevant grantees. Other dividends received by the trustee
become part of the trust fund and are treated as a deduction
of employee share trust reserve.
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() SFEATLR S ER D 2R At B #F

BHRGHEZHMAT ¢
PR i 14 A% 17
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
Employee Employee
Number share trust Number share trust
of shares reserve of shares reserve
EE R EE KRG,
vl 4= Ertf#E &t 28 SRS
’000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000
FBR AR®TR T ARETT
214,106 114,989 212,374 114,780
- - 1,732 209
- (1,440) - -
(203,106) (113,428) - -
11,000 121 214,106 114,989

(@) E%)\HSZHXEF&I‘E%U T R £ B B

R % E B BB = AR AR

J?EH ZEAME S B S &K A

EREEN—FD

R E

SRMNEEFEREE -

BEEegRBRAT

“E_NFEER 271



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Zli“ AN
N /=

B 75 R R MY 5

34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

272

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, 94,600,000 shares of Restricted
Shares, with market price of HK$0.81 per share, were
granted to certain employees of the Group according
to the rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
adopted on 2 July 2014, among which, 61,600,000
shares (“Gift Shares”) were granted for free, another
33,000,000 shares (“Discount Shares”) were granted
at a cash consideration of HK$0.66 per share. Discount
Shares were fully vested as at the grant date and will
be transferred to the grantee at the date of 5 years after
grant, Gift Shares can only be vested while the grantee
serves the Group continuously for 5 years since the grant
date and Gift Shares will be transferred to the grantee
upon vesting. Share-based payment expenses with the
amount of HK$5,336,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,868,000) (2023: HK$9,186,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB8,277,000) were recognised as staff
costs and share based compensation reserve respectively
for the year ended 31 December 2024. As at 31 December
2024 and 2023, there is no cash consideration received
from Discount Shares grantees were recognised as other
reserve.

As at 25 June 2024, 138,505,750 shares of Restricted
Shares, with market price of HK$0.054 per share, were
further granted to a director and 15 employees of the
Group according to the rules of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme adopted on 2 July 2014. These Restricted
Shares were fully vested upon the grant and transferred
during the year. Share-based payment expenses with the
amount of HK$7,479,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,823,000) were recognised as staff cost and share
based compensation reserve respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(Continued)

Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company ARARFRERSIERODOFBET
are as follows:
Outstanding at Granted Transferred Forfeited  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2024 the year the year the year 2024
R-2-RmF R-g-mE
-A-8 t2B=t+-8
Name of employees EEHS e EREH FRE% FERRY Ei:d
Directors B2
Huang Zheng (resigned on B (RZZ-mF
31 December 2024) TZA=+—HE{E) 20,000,000 26,912,030 (46,912,030) - -
Other employees HfhES
In aggregate @z 70,989,750 111,593,720 (156,193,720) (15,389,750) 11,000,000
90,989,750 138,505,750 (203,105,750) (15,389,750 11,000,000
QOutstanding at Granted Transferred Forfeited ~ Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2023 the year the year the year 2023
RZEZ=F i ——
i t2A=t-A
Name of employees EEHS HATTE FRR FRER FRRN RARTE
Directors B
Huang Zheng (resigned on B (R=T-mF
31 December 2024) TZA=T—HEH) 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Other employees HiER
In aggregate gt 70,989,750 - - - 70,989,750
90,989,750 - - - 90,989,750
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

274

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Landsea
Holdings, a subsidiary of the Group, created a long-term
incentive compensation program designed to align the
interests of Landsea Holdings, LHI, a subsidiary of Landsea
Holdings, and its executives by enabling key employees
to participate in the company’s future growth through
the issuance of phantom equity awards. The value of the
phantom equity awards was not based on the shares of
comparable public entities or other equity, but was based
on the book value of Landsea Holdings’ equity. Landsea
Holdings measured the value of phantom equity awards
on a quarterly basis using the intrinsic value method.
In connection with the spin-off and separate Listing of
Landsea Homes, all of the phantom equity awards vested
and were either paid out in cash or were converted to stock
of Landsea Holdings and the program was terminated.
The Company granted 179,038 shares of Landsea Homes
with a grant date value of RMB12,316,000 at the time of
the spin-off and separate Listing and recognised such
expenses in the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Landsea
Homes adopted the Landsea Homes Corporation 2020
Stock Incentive Plan (“2020 Stock Incentive Plan”)
which provides for the grant of options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock units, long term performance share
unit awards and restricted stock, any of which may be
performance-based, as determined by Landsea Homes’
compensation committee. Landsea Homes reserved a
total of 6.0 million shares of its common stock for issuance
under the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan. On 8 March 2024,
the Company disposed Landsea Homes as an subsidiary
and the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan no longer accounted to
the consolidated financial statements.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

34 EERREE (@)
(C) MBARzKREBBE

HE-ZZ—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
£ ANEE W B A Al Landsea Holdings
BI—TERAHUBHRMNGE - EEE
BERY FRE=RE TFXEZEEZ
B QB ARRERE - £ < Landsea
Holdings  Landsea Holdings &9 {1 /& 2 7]
LHIRETBABMFRERFE—H - &
TRAEENEETIFERTELRA
HEBS Az - M= ER Landsea
Holdings &) # % B AR [ 1A ° Landsea
HoldingsBZEF AN EEEEFT 2
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 3.3 million shares
of common stock remained available for issuance under
the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan.

Landsea Homes did not grant any shares (2023: 297,809
shares) of long-term performance share unit awards and
restricted stock units to certain executives under the 2020
Stock Incentive Plan. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group has no expenses (2023: RMB15,935,000)
in relation to the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, of which
no shares (2023: 375,352 shares) was vested upon
satisfaction of above conditions.

Movements in the number of long-term performance share
unit awards and restricted stock units outstanding are as

follows:

Beginning of the year FH4E

Granted B

Transferred to employee (note 35) EREES (ME35)
Forfeited BRI

Disposal of subsidiary & BB A R

End of the year FARER

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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34 EERREE (2
C WEBARA2REXE & (&)

R-B_=%+_A=+—8 RE=
Z_TFEREZZEFAEDENIIEE
P& AR AT 3R AT -

Landsea Homes I #E AR 1 — =& — TF g
ﬁﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ%¥7ﬁAa&ﬁEﬁ
R HA4E A% 17 B8 (i H2 B R BR I 1 AR 2
B (ZF — =4 : 297,809 % fX 1) °
HE_ZT-_MF+_A=+—HILHF
B AEBVEBRBA_T_TFRE
HEFENER (T =% AE%
15,935,0007T) * AR HEAR () (= F
T =4 : 375,352 %) IS Ll G HiEMK 1B
mﬁ

frd AR 7T {58 B0 = BR AR R 1) BE o 2R 8D ] &2
BRBIA D BB BT

2024 2023
“EF —E=F
Number of Number of

shares shares

ROHE M1 8 B

1,487,957 1,625,613
- 297,809

- (375,352)

- (60,113)
(1,487,957) -
- 1,487,957
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EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued) 34 EERESE (&

(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES (C)

(Continued)

Landsea Homes did not grant any share options (2023:
228,117 share options) to certain executives under the
2020 Stock Incentive Plan of which no share options (2023:
222,286 share options) was forfeited. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group has no expenses
(2023: RMB5,854,000) in relation to the 2020 Stock
Incentive Plan. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
share options were out-of-the-money, as the exercise price
of the share options exceeded the average market price of
Landsea Homes’ common stock.

Movements in the number of share option outstanding and
their weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

MEBARA 2RERBE (&)

Landsea Homes I AR IE — T — T F %
ZHETERETITRASREEME
BEHE (—ZT - =4 : 228 117 1D RERRAE) -
HEiEmRkE (T == : 222,286
MERE) HRK - BE-T_WOF
TZA=ZT—HLEFE AKELES
AT _TFEREFBFENER (=
T =44 : AR¥5854,0007T) e R
T NEN T _=F+-_A=+—
B AR ERERNTHEE R B Landsea
Homes &R &) FI9 T E - WIERIERE
FME IR BE o

RAOTEES BB B B AR T 4977 6 (8
MEBMT

2024 2023
“E-mE “T-=F

Average Number of Average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

THTEE  BREHE THOEE  BREHE

Beginning of the year FER US$8.08 £ T 684,422  US$8.82% T 684,413

Granted K - - US$6.46%TT 228,117

Exercised 78 - - US$8.83%TT (3,877)

Forfeited et - - US$8.68%TT (222,286)

Expired JE - - US$8.83%TT (1,945)

Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR US$8.08 % 7T (684,422) = =

End of the year FREHR - - US$8.08%TT 684,422
Vested and exercisable EEBRATE
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35 RESERVES 35 {#¥E

Revaluation
gain on the
property
transferring
from
property,
plant and
Share based Capital equipment to
Merger Share  Translation ~compensation  Employee  redemption Statutory Other  Contributed  investment ~ Accumulated
resere premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve  reserve(d)  reserve(e)  surplus(f)  properties losses Total
ERES
HER
REEEE
R &8 ax RERDRN
ARE  RREE  FEBE  BMEE  BBEX  BEER  RERRO  AHRRE REBHGO DREGAE  2ER i
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTZ  ARBTR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARR¥TR AR¥TR

A1 Januay 2024 R-EZmE-A-7 B9 24365 (16548 18 (14989 BB SEI8 (525 445 BE R (979)
Loss fo the year FERE - - - - - - - - - - - (1500333 (1,509,339
Other comprefensive loss: HH2EEE:
Exchange diference arising fom AR ERELNES 28

translation of foreign operations - - - (91,008) - - - - - - - - (91,008)
Total comprehensive oss for tieyer ~ R 2AERLE - - - (91,008) - - - - - - - (150933 (1,600341)

Movement of employee share tust BB EHEEH

account 34b) - - - - 1,440 - - - - - - 1,440
Employee share based compensation £ B R 34p) - - - (11,691) 113428 - - - (93,568) - - 8149
Revaluation suplusreleased upon i EMEARRHERRS

disposal of property - - - - - - - - - (1,289) - 1,289)
Release Bk - - - - - - - (12217) - - - (12217)
Approprition of statutory resenve () ARZETEE() - - - - - - 2670 - - - (22,670) -
Disposal of asubsicares HENEAR - - 30625 - - - (60,321) 145,017 - - - 115,321
At 31 Decerber 2004 R=B-ME+=f=1-A (83,396) U (45864 - (129 BB OBBWT @45 908 W55 (1767890  (15%666)
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35 RESERVES (Continued)

Tranglation
[ESE

EET
RVB00
ARRTT

(160637

35 #E )

Share based Capita
compensation Employee  redemption Statutory
Teserve share trust Tesenve reserve (c)

i 2 ax
#MEE  BOER  RORE  rERR0
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARBTR  AR¥TR

6310 (14780) 23185 512,643

Retained
eamings
(accumulated
Josses)

Bl
(RitER)
RVB000.
ARBTT

688,061

Total

&3t
RUB00
ARRTT

678,158

Merger

Tesenve

afEE

Note RMB'000

W ARBTR

A1 davary 2023 A-BozE-3-7 8339

Lossforthe year EEEE

Other comprehensive loss: Ap2EES:

Exchange diference arising from REBNERELNELZE
translaton of foreign operations

(481)

(860,799)

(860799)

484

Totd comprehensive loss forheyer ~ £E2EEALE

(484)

(860,798)

(885,637)

Movement of employee sharetust ~~ EBR(EHELEH

aooount 34b)
Employes share based compensafion £ SRR 34p)
Tinsler e sharestoemployess ~~ FAERESMAES

related o share based 23R

compensation (g) 34(c)
Disposal of hares of asubsiclary ~~ EREXEHIENERT

vithout losing control (o) HERBARR
Release #h

Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary (¢) EIEBHEAFR(A ()
Appropriation of stautoryresene o) SERZAERE(

- 209 - -
8am - - -

28%) = . .

63159

)
81

28%)

221,43
28747
8266

(185.481)

1,691 (114989 23

85 575,798

(235.887)

9729

At 31 December 2023 RZB=5+ZA=1-A (83,3%)
278 Landsea Green Management Limited
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35 RESERVES (continued)

(@)

In connection with the 2020 Stock Incentive Plans
stated in note 34(c), during the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group recognised RMB3,817,000 (2023:
RMB21,788,000) expense, of which no shares (2023:
375,352 shares) was vested upon satisfaction of certain
conditions and transferred to employees, thus the non-
controlling interests had no changes during the year ended
2024 (2023: decreased by the amount of RMB2,012,000)
with share based compensation reserve remained
unchanged (2023:
representing these employees’ proportionate shares of

increased by the same amount)

the net assets of Landsea Homes. In addition, the share
based compensation reserve did not have changes (2023:
RMB4,908,000) due to recording the tax effects upon the
vesting of shares.

As at 12 June 2023, Landsea Homes entered into an
underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”)
with Landsea Holdings and B. Riley Securities, Inc.,
as representative of the several underwriters named
therein (the “Underwriters”), pursuant to which Landsea
Holdings agreed to sell to the Underwriters an aggregate
of 2,956,522 shares of common stock of Landsea Homes
(“Common Stock”) at a price per share of $7.50 (before
underwriting discounts and commissions) (the “Offering”).
Landsea Holdings also granted the Underwriters a 30-
day option to purchase up to an aggregate of 443,478
additional shares of Common Stock owned by Landsea
Holdings. In addition, through participation in the Offering,
Landsea Homes repurchased from the Underwriters
443,478 of the initial number of shares sold by the Landsea
Holdings at a per share price equal to the public per
share Offering price. Upon completion of the transaction,
Landsea Homes remained a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, while the non-controlling interests were
increased by the amount of RMB369,206,000 with other
reserve decreased by RMB221,435,000 representing the
difference between proceeds received RMB147,771,000
and non-controlling interests’ change in the proportionate
shares of the net assets of Landsea Homes.

Notes to the consolidated
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STHEEEERLT

MM FSS )T T FRE
BB EmE Eti_g_m¢+:
A=+—HIEFE AEEERAAR
3,817,000 (ZE =% : AR¥
21,788,0007T) & A - ﬁﬂtﬂrﬁﬁxf
—ET - =4 : 375352 AR 1p %JF
BHEEREZERBIYSEETES -
ut@i_?_mimiﬁ Iz %IJIH%E
mWEEE (T _=F : BPARK
2,012,0007T) - if AR R B % 5 Bl 4 55
T (ZEZ=F  BNERESE) ' 8
BN % % & 8 7 Landsea Homes H)3F &
EFFTELEB] o ol - B AR R B B
BEBETE  WRMERMEELES
g (ZE =% : AR®4,908,0007T) °

RZEZ=F;"A+=H ' Landsea
Homes £ Landsea Holdings & B. Riley
Securities, Inc. (1E & & # %I B 1) £
BiEE((BHEE]) HRRK) 5T H
e ((E#Hm=E]) - B - Landsea
Holdings Al & & & iz 7.50%& 7T (R & &
HITH kA HERRABHEPEHE
& 2,956,522l Landsea Homes &
Ak ((EER]) ([#€]) - Landsea
Holdings 71 #% T £ 5 7 30 B #Y & 4% -
7] B% & Landsea Holdings AT # A & %77 /I:l\
443,478 IRFEINE WAL o LL S

2 H % & Landsea Homes LA#HQ *E
ERPAHEREESENERL  REIH
% B [@ Landsea Holdings & #] & H &9
443,478 Ik Bt © 22 5 58K 1& - Landsea
Homes Tl AAREBHIEZEMBE QR -
FE 122 il 14 4 25 2 0 A R %5 369,206,000
7T H i R A R % 221,435,000
T HEERATEBMEREAR
W 147,771,000 7T 52 JF 2 AR 1L #E 2 0
Landsea Homes #Y )% & & # P71k bt 1 &
BE)EHE o
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35 RESERVES (Continued)

280

(©

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s
subsidiary, Landsea Homes acquired 454,286 (2023:
3,187,678) shares of Landsea Homes from the open
market at a total consideration of US$5,527,000 (equivalent
to RMB39,728,000) (2023: US$31,054,000 (equivalent
to RMB220,325,000)). In connection with the acquisition,
the non-controlling interests were decreased by the
amount of RMB27,511,000 (2023: RMB304,591,000)
with other reserve increased by RMB12,217,000 (2023:
RMB84,266,000) representing the difference between
consideration paid and non-controlling interests’ change
in the proportionate shares of the net assets of Landsea
Homes.

In accordance with the Laws of Mainland China on
Enterprises Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and
the Articles of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China, an appropriation to
statutory reserves has to be made prior to profit distribution
to the owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve of
these foreign investment enterprises shall be no less than
10% of the net profit until the accumulated appropriation
exceeds 50% of the registered capital.

Other reserve was resulted from the (i) the spin off and
separate listing of US operations and subsequent disposal;
(i) the contribution from non-controlling interests and (jii)
acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary without
changes in control.

Contributed surplus arose from the transactions related to (i)
share based compensation and (i) employee share trust.
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S ) -
B 8400 £ 5R() AR A R . 1) 0 B PR

NETEENRS



36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

At 1 January

LLoss for the year

Disposal of shares of a subsidiary
without losing control (note 35(g), 35(b))

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)

Transfer the shares to employees of
subsidiaries (note 34(c))

Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary
(note 35(c))

Exchange differences

At 31 December

R—H—H

FEBRA

EREREHENBERATHE
B8 A |l A% An (P 3£ 35(g) ~ 35(0))

&M B A R (FisE39)

bt B A Al E B B EAR D
(Bt 5 34(c))

= BE Bt 8 2 R Akt (B 3% 35(c))

PE N E R

R+=—A=+—H

BEEegRBRAT

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements
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36 FFIEHtEER

2024 2023
—ENF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
2,083,311 1,976,498
(4,136) (2,526)
383 369,206
(2,116,148) -
- 19,776
(27,511) (304,591)
4,879 24,948
(59,222) 2,083,311
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37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 37 REREER
(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A KERBHRE
Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash generated FRATSH A S EELSEMSEHE MWK
from operations is as follows: LU
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART R ARET T
Loss before income tax Br PSR AT B 1R (1,532,331) (823,318)
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income (note 7) FEBUWA (HE7) (1,504) (13,245)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERERETE
equipment (note 20) (Mg 20) 14,068 45,915
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 21) 1% Fi#£ & & # 84 (M 5E21) 6,076 35,573
Fair value loss on investment properties KREEMERARBERIE
(note 19) (FftsE19) 1,800 10,900
Fair value loss on financial liabilities at far R AR EEABEZNERMEE
value through profit or loss (note 10) AR EEEE(WH:E10) 7,423 19,079
Interest expense (note 11) MEER(ME11) 149,778 232,099
Late payment fine and other losses on land =3 U B85 3% #9381 B 51 70
acquisition/construction (note 8) N HE AthE518 (FizE8) (41,959) =
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries (note 8)  H &M B A RIHYEE (Fi:E8) 981,536 =
Loss on partial disposal of a joint venture o HE S & XM EE (FiEs)
(note 8) 547,134 22,183
Share of net loss/(profit) of associates FEAE B & N R F AR, (FE)
(note 17) (fg5E17) (623,553) 94,087
Elimination of transactions with associates  E2H & N A1 ¥ 8532 5 (Ki5E17)
(note 17) 310 (1,120)
Share of net (profit)/loss of joint ventures B & & 2% (FIE), 1B
(note 18) (MFEE18) 208,922 (152,291)
Elimination of transactions with joint HELEPEHERS (HiE18)
ventures (note 18) (4,807) 10,070
Employee share based compensation 1E B AR (P31 34)
(note 34) 6,078 8,277
Employee share based compensation of /& A &l (& 8 A% 4E =k B
subsidiaries (note 35(a)) (Mf5E35(0)) 3,817 21,788
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - BERRENESE
equipment (note 8) (Fff5E8) 24,095 4,839
Gain on disposal of investment properties  H &R & E ¥ £ U E (BFEE19)
(note 19) (2,700) -
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37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Continued)

(Gain)/loss on re-measurement of existing
interest in a joint venture upon conversion
to a subsidiary (note 8)

Loss on re-measurement of existing
interest in associate upon conversion
to a subsidiary (note 8)

Gain on settlement of guarantee senior
notes (note 8)

Provision for decline in the value of
properties under development and
held for sale (note 9)

Reversal of provision recycled to cost of
sales (note 23)

Provision for decline in the value of property,
plant and equipment (note 8)

Provision for impairment of financial assets

Operating (loss)/profit before movements
in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in properties
held for sale
(Increase)/decrease in properties
under development
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
payables
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash

Net cash generated from operations

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

37 REeREER &)
(A) BEFRBRE#E)

2024 2023
—E-MEF —FB_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
REREHBRARREHNE
REETEBEFERN
(Yezs), 518 (Mf5E8) - (1,020)
REBREHBARBETTE
REEE A RIR A EENER
(fF5E8) - 156
HERBELZENFE
(MFE8) - (9,309)
R R E RIS IEHEYHE
BE T BB (KisE9)
(27,794) 190,051
[B] Uk Z= §5 £ AR 2N /O 8 48 B B
(Ff7E23) (263) (4,162)
M BB RREEETK
e (sEs) 17,571 =
TREERERE 183,953 194,315
BReEG S FHATHLE
(&518), /M (82,350) (115,133)
HIEHEMERD (GEM)
1,167,377 145,374
B b E (3 0), R
(2,165,959) 291,403
EF (), 129 (389)
R LSt B % R L A R MR RR ~ TR IR
K&, (35 m) 39,509 130,840
BREE &M, R (21,398) (12,024)
JEAFBR IR R H A FE A 3R
&,/ G ) 186,012 122,827
ARAEEMN CR) 43,504 46,392
SRR w3 & (38n), Rk 36,171 (87,725)
REMBHRELTFE (797,005) 521,565
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37

284

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flow
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

37 REeEREER &
(B) MEEBFFELEEBEHWEHIR

TR AEEHERETHMELAR
MED (BRERERIFRSEE) 15 -
BRERPMELENABERARERNE
EHERNERDVBEA/BRETHAFERE
MEMNBEREXRIRERE -

Amounts Amounts
due to non- due to
Lease  controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
A FEES EABRBA
EE HESE MEZNE N @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR%¥Tx
As at 1 January 2024 R-E-m&E—A—H 7,214,893 100,525 280,871 3,097,933 10,694,222
Cash flows REME (249,283) (6,992) - (630,441) (886,716)
Acquisition — leases g — HE - 1,563 - - 1,563
Cancellation — leases HE - HE - (2,015) - - (2,015)
Decrease from acquisition of W BB BT B A A i e >
subsidiaries - - - (8,992) (8,992)
Increase from disposal of HENB AR
subsidiaries - - - 378,047 378,047
Decrease from disposal of HERB AR MR
subsidiaries (4,305,578) (94,768) - - (4,400,346)
Exchange difference arising from B &SN ERE LR
translation of foreign operations [ 5 Z= %8 146,716 1,419 - - 148,135
Accrual of interest JEETFIE - 1,051 - - 1,051
As at 31 December 2024 R-F_WF
+-RA=+—H 2,806,748 783 280,871 2,836,547 5,924,949

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 37 BEREER (#®)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continueq)

(B) MEZBFFELEBNHIRGE)

Amounts Amounts
due to non- due to
Lease controlling related
liabilities interest parties Total
FERFERER AR
MERE WESNE eE | st

RVB'O00O ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTTL

120,771 278,560 3215262 10,945,668

(34,349) - 819200 (158,188)
11,731 - - 11,731
(5,732) - - (5,732)

- - (213508)  (218,505)

- - (2,550) (2,550)
- - - 9,309
1829 - - 100,715
6,275 2311 16,806 25,392

Borrowings
f&5
RMB’000
AREFTT
As at 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—Hf—H 7,331,075
Cash flows ReEnE (205,759)
Acquisition — leases g — HE =
Cancellation — leases i - e =
Decrease from acquisition of U BB BT B A A i e >
subsidiaries —
Deduction of collection of MG R B AR R
investment of associates and RELRENRE
joint ventures =
Gain on settlement of quarantee A RBEEZEDN
senior notes (note 8) F5E (MrEE8) (9,309)
Exchange difference arising from #8575 E A )
translation of foreign operations  [& i, = %8 98,886
Accrual of interest FEEHFIS =
As at 31 December 2023 RZB-=F
+=ZA=1+—H 7,214,893

100,525 280,871 3,097,933 10,694,222

(i) The cash flows include financing cash inflow of RMB22,807,000
(2023: inflow of RMB77,811,000) and operating cash inflow of
RMB607,634,000 (2023: inflow of RMB4,109,000).

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2024, cash payments for the
interest portion of the lease liability amounted to RMB1,051,000
(2023: RMB6,275,000) and was included in the interest paid of
operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows, while
the principal element of lease payment amounted RMB5,941,000
(2023: RMB28,074,000) to was included in financing activities.

@) BeRepRERERan AARK
22,807,000 L (ZE-_=F: RAAR
#77,811,00070) R ER & MAARE
607,634,000 L (ZE-=F: HAARK
4,109,0007T) °

(i) HE-FT-_NF+-_A=+—HLFE"
HEERFERINBEEHARABARE
1,051,0007C (=& = =4F : 6,275,0007T) °
REABEERERTALEFTHNEMAH
B MEENTNAEES AR 5,941,000
TL(ZZE==% : AR¥28,074,0007T) Bl 5t
AREES -
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

286

M

Landsea Green Management Limited

In February 2024, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Shanghai Shishu Trading Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Shishu”) at a total consideration
of RMB15,500,000 and its identifiable assets are
trade and other receivables and property, plan and
equipment. This acquisition has been account for
as an acquisition of assets. After the acquisition,
Shanghai Shishu became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

Purchase consideration

— Cash consideration
— Trade receivables

Total consideration

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the
acquisition are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Property, plant and equipment (note 20)

Trade and other payables

Total acquired net assets at fair value

Cash outflow on acquisition:

Total consideration settled by cash
Cash acquired in the subsidiary acquired
Consideration payable

Cash inflow on acquisition

Annual Report 2024

38 UWiBHKE 2 Al
(A) ¥EBEB

() M-ZBE-_UF_-F ANEFZKE
KRB AR# 15,500,000 488
BREESBERAR ([ LEELEF])
M 100% B2 - MEATZFIEE R
JFEE Uk AR R R L Ath B U R A R 3
MEREE B IERKESR
EAR-WER  LEREKA
AEENZEWBRF -

RMB’000
BEXRE ARET T
—BERE 2,000
— EURR 13,500
HwAME 15,500
RAWEMEIZNEERBEDOT
Shanghai
Shishu
gt
RMB’000
ARET T
HeRREEEY 8
JE LA AR SR % EAth U R
BN MRS 10,867
VI - BE K (FPEE20) 13,683
FEASTBR SR R HAth FE - 3k (9,058)
BARBEFENDWESE
FEBRE 15,500
W BB R FOIR €
LIRS #EMRNRE 2,000
RETUEE B A R BENIE S ©®)
EARE (1,310)
W RIR SR A 682



38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(i)

In March 2023, the Group acquired 50% equity
interest of Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Ltd.
(a joint venture of the Group before the acquisition,
“Chengdu Shanggao”) at a total consideration
of RMB1,020,000. After the acquisition, Chengdu
Shanggao became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

In February 20283, the Group acquired 72.86% equity
interest of Hangzhou Langning Investment Co., Ltd.
(an associate of the Group before the acquisition,
“Hangzhou Langning”) at a total consideration
of RMB585,000. After the acquisition Hangzhou
Langning became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

38 WEMBLQR @
(A) EKEBt#E)

(i)

BEEegRBRAT

RZTZ=F=A AEERERK
B AR ¥ 1,020,000 7T 4 B 5k AT 14 =
BEBR AR (A5 B UEE TR
AENE  [REEB]) #150% %
o WEEE  KBEEKAAEE
WEEHRBAA -

RZZTZ=F=F  rEEZRENK
8 A R #585,000 7T U BE 171 M BA 22
KEBRAR (REBRIKERTR
g naE  [FNBAZE]) /)72.86%
IR HE o Y 1& - MM BAZEERK AR S
EHNEEMBAR -
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38 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(i)  (Continued)

Purchase consideration BERE

— Cash consideration - BeRE

— Re-measurement of interestsin = — EFAEASREN
ajoint venture and an associate NS

Total consideration BRE

(i) As at the acquisition date, the interests in joint ventures

of these company has no carrying amount. The re-
measurement of interests in joint ventures resulted in gain
RMB1,020,000 (note 8).

(ii) As at the acquisition date, the carrying amounts of interests
in associate of these company was RMB375,000. The re-
measurement of interests in associate resulted in loss of
RMB156,000 (note 8).
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38

WEEHI B~ B (&)
(A) ¥Ka6t#E)

@i (&)
Chengdu Hangzhou
Shanggao Langning® Total
B =0 BB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT ARBETT

1,020 585 1,605
1,020 219 1,239
2,040 804 2,844

[0} REBH - Z ARG SR RS
EREE SHTEa80EERY
B zs AR ¥ 1,020,000 7T (FEES) ©

(i RUEBH  ZARHE QA
BREMEAARK3750007T ©
AEBEAREREBBERARE
156,000 7t (Mi7E8) °



38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Properties held for sale (note 23)

Property, plant and equipment
(note 20)

Deferred income tax assets
(note 32)

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Current income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
(note 32)

Total acquired net assets at fair value

Cash outflow on acquisition:

Total consideration settled by cash

Cash acquired in the subsidiary
acquired

Cash inflow on acquisition

ReRREEFEY

TR M B 0 B L e P MK

SELNE- Y8 s
FEHE M (MT523)
ERN

(FfzE20)
ERFMBEHEE

(FF3ES2)

& 1< BR SR % A JE A 3R
EREE
BNEAFTS R B &
EEFMBHRARE

(ff7E32)

BARBERMKEN
FEEMRE

WREMBRE R

NHRE S RERE

W B P YRR 8 2 B A
Re

BEHRERA

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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38 WEEKE QT (#)

(A) EBEGtE)

R EmERNEERBEWNT

Chengdu Hangzhou

Shanggao Langning Total
B &R i HNBAZE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBT T
1,114 1,097 2,211
2,636 224,714 227,350
42,404 34,967 77,371
83,510 11 83,521

- 43,298 43,298
(108,715) (141,201) (249,916)
(946) — (946)
(10,892) (162,082) (172,974)
(7,071) - (7,071)
2,040 804 2,844
1,020 585 1,605
(1,114) (1,097) (2,211)

94) (612) (606)
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38 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

290

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB870,000 and loss of RMB5,330,000 to the Group for
the period from their respective date of acquisition to 31
December 2023.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2023,
consolidated pro-forma loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have RMB13,490,000 lower. These
amounts have been calculated using the subsidiaries’
results and adjusting them for:

° differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries, and

° additional cost of sales that would have been charged
assuming the fair value adjustments to properties
under development had applied from 1 January
2023, together with the consequential tax effects.

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

38 WEEKE QT @)

(A)

(B0t
BWBEAREE _ZST_=4+_A8
=+— BB FEEERARNEE
2 BB B U A A R #870,000 7T & E518 A
R #5,330,0007T °

HMkBEBRN—_FE-_=F—F —HBE %
£ Bz -_=F+-_A=+—H
FFEMGZEHEZEBRABRDOARKE
13,490,0007T ° % F & BB LU T HE
BRMBAREETEST

o  FAEENMBRRZENEHBR
=8 Kk

s BREHU-T-_=F—F—HRBYHA
BHRREMWELETANBERE A
FJREIE DA RSN E AN - A K AE
JER DR



39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 2 April 2024, the Group entered into agreements with the
Xinjun Enterprise Management (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. and Xinjun
Enterprise Management (Wuxi) Co., Ltd., independent third
parties, to dispose its 100% equity interests of Wuxi Minglang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (388 & £ AR A 7)),
(“Wuxi Minglang”) at a consideration of RMB12,000,000.

On 19 April 2024, the Group entered into agreements with the
Landsea Holdings Group to dispose its 100% equity interests of
Shanghai Langkun Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. ( E/88AE
EEIE AR A F) (“Shanghai Langkun”) at nil consideration.

On 8 March 2024, the Group disposed of LHI, by reducing
equity interests from 54.80% to 47.03% at a total proceeds of
RMB230,725,000, and retained LHI as an associate.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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39 HEKBAQF

RZEZWNFMA-H AEEEBLE=
75 Xinjun Enterprise Management (Suzhou) Co.,
Ltd. & Xinjun Enterprise Management (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd. 7T Z &% - HEH#FHE K& 5 AN
BEXARDA(TEBAR]) 100% I - KB
7 AR # 12,000,000 7T ©

R-ZT-WEWMAB+HAE - ANEEERRFE
BREEH# EEREEBEN LG
EEEEARAR ([ LEEE ) 100% I -

RZE-_NF=ZANB  AEEHELH ' #&
J% HE L 3 B8 54.80% 8 > £ 47.03% © AT 15 3K
TH 48 %8 B A R 230,725,000 7T » I 4R & LHI
EREEE NE] o
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39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal loss and cash

inflow are as follows:

Properties held for sales
Properties under development
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Deferred income tax assets (note 32)

Investment properties (note 19)
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill (note 22)

Property, plant and equipment (note 20)

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss (note 30)
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32)

Group’s share of net assets disposed of

Release of exchange reserve

Recognition of interest in an associate

Consideration from disposal
Non-controlling interests (note 36)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARMNEE
Total consideration BwRE
Other receivables LA JE WK
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A BEREHBAR
in the disposed subsidiaries MIRE KIRE
ZEY
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising HEELENBREERA
on the disposal (i) F58
292 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

FEHE MR
P EIE
RekBReEED

IR W B 33R e LA P UK

BAREIES
BEFTBMEE
(fIzE32)
wEMEWE (BE19)
FREEE
E2E (fsE22)
) E S
(FizE20)
JE 1< BR R M EL b FE A+ 3Kk
BARBEFTABZDN
& aE (MsE30)

=R

HEARE
ELEHRBRE (HE32)

AEBERGECHE
BEFE

FRRRIE S iR

FER B & N B
HERE

FEFE I 1ERE 2 (FHRES6)

39 HEME AR (&)
DHEFEERTEBBRESAANYE

U

Wuxi Shanghai
Minglang Langkun LHI Total
BEHH LEHE LHI #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,081 - - 1,081
29,318 - 8,447,258 8,476,576
7 2 633,379 633,388
67,571 233 637,419 705,223
4,363 - 143,781 148,144
84,900 - - 84,900
- - 85,514 85,514
- - 487,186 487,186
1 6 31,433 31,440
(154,984) - (1,544,169 (1,699,153
- - (39,588) (39,588)
- - (4,150,659 (4,150,659
- - (93,308) (93,308)
(2,460) - - (2,460)
29,791 241 4,638,246 4,668,278
= = (30,625) (30,625)
= = (1,394,806) (1,394,806)
(12,000) - (230,537) (242,537)
- - (2,116,148 (2,116,148
17,791 241 866,130 884,162
12,000 - 230,537 242,537
(4,000) = = (4,000)
7 2 (633,379) (633,388)
7,993 ) (402,842) (394,851)




40 DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40

The management considered that control over the following
subsidiaries had been lost as they were taken over by the
liquidator during the year. The Group resolved to deconsolidate
subsidiaries Suzhou Luculent Real Estate Co., Ltd* (& B &
¥ B[R A7) on 4 September 2024 and Hangzhou Langyou Real
Estate Co., Ltd™ (fi/HEA & & ¥ B R 2 &) on 21 June 2024.
The net assets of deconsolidation subsidiaries with reconciliation
of loss are as follows:

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

MEARRLEGE AR

HRTIMBARNFARBTRARE &
EEBR BT REHZEFNE QR REHHE -
REEZADIR_ZT-_MFEAATB ER
“ECMFERAZ T HRIEEHE R R
MEARERBRAF RMMABEXRERA
AtEA AR  ERIEFEARMBARNE

EFEREEHERET

Properties held for sale (note 23) e E YR (M5 23)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReFEY

Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Deferred income tax assets (note 32)

Property, plant and equipment (note 20)

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax liabilities (note 32)

Net assets deconsolidated

Loss/(gain) on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the
deconsolidated subsidiaries

Net cash outflow arising on
the deconsolidation:

T M B 5 L e PR MK

BNRRES

ERFETREE (H32)
WE - BB RS (FFRE20)
R 1< B 50 % 4t B £ 5K
EREFHIEAE (MT32)

BERIGREARNEERE

B QR LR A ARRR

BR/(Kas)

B ERIEESARNMB AT

Re kR EEY

BitEE ARMEENR SR

i
it

Norg
/7

4 Limited liability company registered in Mainland China

English translations are for identification purpose only

Suzhou Hangzhou

Luculent Real  Langyou Real

Estate Co., Estate Co.,
Lid Ltd Total

B N BA 420 HUN R
BXARAR BEARAHF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
= 34,967 34,967
1,196 19 1,215
1,121,860 254,268 1,376,128
24 43,298 43,322
4 10 14
(961,903) (345,269) (1,307,172)
(51,099) — (51,099)
110,082 (12,707) 97,375
110,082 (12,707) 97,375
(1,196) (19 (1,215)
(1,196) (19 (1,215)

# KRR EREERF]
- HXEEEHRHET
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party balances and transactions
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant balances and transactions:

41

BB S AR S

BRI mRE My AR ER BT &
BERZIN  REBBEATERGEHRERS

(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (A) FEURBAEE S KB
2024 2023
—E-MF —ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Included in current assets (note 27): FTARBEE (FI5E27) -
— Associates (i) — B A Al () 454,335 258,306
— Joint ventures (ii) — BETE (i) 694,333 1,063,577
— Substantial Shareholder and its fellow ~ — F EZA& R K& E [ X[ E A T
subsidiaries 13,694 3,237
1,162,362 1,325,120
Less: provision for loss allowance W B (P EES.1(0)i)
(note 3.1(b)(ii) (788,183) (764,538)
374,179 560,582

(i) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, amounts due from associates
are interest-free. The amount included dividend receivable amount
of RMB299,400,000 (2023: Nil) and interest receivable from previous
years amount of RMB38,510,000 (2023: RMB38,510,000).

(i) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB76,290,000 (2023: RMB76,290,000) bearing
interest at 10% (2023: 10%) per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free. The amount included interest receivable amount of
RMB66,867,000 (2023: RMB205,495,000).

All amounts due from related parties are unsecured and
repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties
approximate their fair values.
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RZBZMER_TE_=F+=_A=+—
B EBRUBERARELARE - ZANER
FEE W AR B & 58 A R #299,400,000 7T (=
T=F B RBAEFERKFESE
AR¥38,510,000C (ZE=Z=F: AR
38,510,0007T) °

REZBZWFER T =F+=A=+—
A EBREGECERDREBERTR
EK10% (ZE=Z=F : 10%) st EMAR
76,290,000 L (B =% : AR¥
76,290,0007T) * H#HRIE AR B ° RN E
BT B £ 58 AR K 66,867,000 7T (=
T =4F: AR¥205,495,0007T) °

P FE YR BR B 5 BB  m EAEH RR IR

FEM ARt h AR REEEAE AR EE
EE=
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 41 BBEERERS #)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (B) FE(SEARES E
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

— Joint ventures (i) — & B - =
Included in current liabilities (note 29): sFARBAE (FfFE29) :
— Associates (i) — Bt N A (i) 1,150,913 1,198,085
— Joint ventures (ii) — BB () 1,499,086 1,880,806
— Substantial Shareholder and —FEREK
its fellow subsidiaries (iii) E 7 Z BB 2 7 (iii) 186,548 19,042
2,836,547 3,097,933
0} As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, current amounts due to 0] R-B-_WER-_T-_=F+-H=+—
associates are interest-free. H: BNBERARRBRERLE
(ii) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, non-current amounts due to (ii) R-ZT MW ﬁ&,z: =F+-A=+—
joint ventures are interest-free. Current amounts due to joint ventures H ENEERARFRBDRELEE B
include RMB200,000,000 (2023: RMB200,000,000) bearing interest A& PERSZESRE A R 200,000,000
from 6.60% to 15.00% (2023: 6.60% to 15.00%) per annum and the T (ZZE=-=%: AR#¥200,000,0007T) *
remaining amounts are interest-free. ZEHME6.60%E15.00% (ZT==F:

6.60% £ 15.00%) 51 8 EfprE 8 -

(iii) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, current amount due to (iif) RZE_MER_E_=F+_A=+—
Substantial Shareholder and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free. B ENEZRIREFRKERARER
BRER -
All amounts due to related parties are unsecured and BT/ FE{- BB 75 SIE Y R E IR AR
repayable on demand. EBRIEE
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES

4 BEBEERRRS &)

(C) AR

2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARBTIT
Included in current assets (note 27): FFAMBIEE (FsE27) !
— Associates — BN A 24,860 35,890
— Joint ventures — BEE 131,576 132,196
— Substantial Shareholder and — FTEBREREX
its fellow subsidiaries HRAZXME QT 8,555 4,363
164,991 172,449
Less: provision for loss allowance o BEEE (HEES3.10)6)
(note 3.1(0)() (119,137) (102,638)
45,854 69,811
(D) CONTRACT ASSETS (D)
2024 2023
—E-MEF T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARBTT
Associates /N 11,091 4,473
Joint ventures EELE 62,359 56,909
Substantial Shareholder and its fellow FERRMERZRMMBA A
subsidiaries 19,876 5,250
93,326 66,632
Less: provision for loss allowance A B R (B EES.1(0)())
(note 3.1(b)(i) (32,361) (15,794)
60,965 50,838
296 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024



41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(E) BORROWINGS

Substantial Shareholder (note 31)

(F) TRADE PAYABLES

Substantial Shareholder and its fellow
subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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41 BEBEERRRS &)

(E) f&=K

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
FERE (FFFE31) 3,085 367,043
(F) ERERX
2024 2023
—E-NEF TR =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
FTEBRREERXME A A
54,557 59,088
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41

298

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(G) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i)  Funding with related parties

Associates

Joint ventures

Substantial Shareholder
and its fellow subsidiaries

Associates

Joint ventures

Substantial Shareholder
and its fellow subsidiaries

Landsea Green Management Limited

BEAR

AELE

EERRR
KAZKBAA

IERER
HRAZMBLA

Annual Report 2024

4 BEBLEERERS ©®)

(G) BBAXRS

() BHEBAIEXRES

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_B-_NE+-A=+-HLEE
Funding to Collection of funding to
related parties related parties
OEBEIRLES MBI REES
Operating Investing Operating Investing
gg RE Re RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®BT R AR®T T AR®T T
515 - 353 103,162
210,925 - 584,103 19,615
7,908 - 5,852 -
219,348 - 590,308 122,777

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_Z-_mFE+-A=1t-HLEFE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties

o B 5 A & mBHLEEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
gE g Re e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRn AR%TR AR¥TR
3,855 - 30,727 20,300
239,937 - 621,879 16,429
1,121,421 - 1,320,241 -
1,365,213 - 1,972,847 36,729




41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(G) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(i)  Funding with related parties (Continued)

Associates NG
Joint ventures RERE
Substantial Shareholder TERER

and its fellow subsidiaries HRAZRMEAA
Associates kYN
Joint ventures BERE
Substantial Shareholder TERRR

and its fellow subsidiaries HARMNBAA

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

rE M B EmRMEE

41 BBEERERS #)

(G) BMAEXRZ (&)
() HEBSIEFXEE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=Ft_A=1t-HLFE

Funding to
related parties
MEB L RREES
Operating Investing
oy RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR

Collection of funding to
related parties

B e m & 2
Operating Investing

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRL

431 = 4,416 =
900,772 15,500 899,050 252,761
9,576 = 12,687 =
910,779 15,500 916,153 252,761

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-=F+_A=+-HLEE

Proceeds from
related parties
A S WE &
Operating Financing
g BE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR

Repayment to
related parties
mEKLEREES
Operating Financing
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETFR

220,018 102,101 207,169 20,422
881,637 = 886,213 3,868
254,015 = 258,178 =
1,355,670 102,101 1,351,560 24,290

BEEegRBRAT
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

B 75 R R MY 5

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(G) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i) Management services, other income and (i)

300

finance cost

Management services income from REBERAIRGEDEL
associates and joint ventures (a) B AR U 2 (a)
Management services income from KEFEBRRARZR
fellow subsidiaries of the Substantial DY RN] Il =i Tt (o)
Shareholder (b)
Rental income from fellow subsidiaries of 7K B & Z /% H &) [/ %
the Substantial Shareholder (c) DY =RN] i e el (o)
Rent income from the entities under R B B AR A FE 8
common control with Substantial ERcHSWE
Shareholder

Construction design service fee paid to a3 2 A% 3R # [&] BB A 7
fellow subsidiaries of the Substantial Tt 2 EERET RIS E (d)
Shareholder (d)

Property management service fee paid A1 Z R R R ZH B A A
to fellow subsidiaries of the Substantial 15 7 ¥12% & 1B R 7 & (d)
Shareholder (d)

Purchase of green architecture m) £ 3 22 iR BR L [E 4 A
technological products and services EREESCRERMNER
from the entities under common X AR (d)
control with Substantial
Shareholder (d)

Interest income from amounts due from JEURA &1 E B 2 F B A
joint ventures (note 7) (H5E7)

Interest expense on loans from REFERRZ
the Substantial Shareholder (€) (note 11)  E 2. & A (o) (£ 11)

Interest expense on loans from REGELECZEFNEER
joint ventures (note 11) (fFzE11)

Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

4 BEBEERRRS &)

(G) BMAEXZ (&)
EERE - Atz REEHKA

2024
—E-MF

RMB’000
AR¥T T

64,775

11,206

2,639

2,815

482

1,504

14,296

7,271

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARETIT

50,220

3,608

2,770

1,339

2,610

11,426

28,646

13,231

16,815

16,870
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41 BEBEERRRS &)

(G) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (G) BHMARS (&)
(i) Management services, other income and (i) EERY - BftilhasREEKK
finance cost (Continued) (%)
(@) During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the (@) BE-Z-_MER-_T-_=F+=

Group continuously provided management services to its
associates and joint ventures. The prices of these services
are based on the prevailing market prices of similar services.

Pursuant to the management services agreement entered
into between the Group and its Substantial Shareholder, the
Group provided certain development management services,
sales management services and green product integration
services to fellow subsidiaries of the Substantial Shareholder
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Pursuant to the rental agreement entered into between the
Group and its Substantial Shareholder, the Group provided
certain services to fellow subsidiaries of the Substantial
Shareholder during the years ended 31 December 2024
and 20283. The prices of these services are based on the
prevailing market prices of similar services provided by the
Group to independent third parties.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group purchased certain green architecture technological
products and services, decoration services, property
management services and properties consulting services
from the entities under common control with Substantial
shareholder. The prices of products and services were
based on the prevailing market prices of similar products and
services.

The Substantial Shareholder provided interest bearing loans
to the Group during the year. The interest expense on loans
is based on prevailing market interest rate and is exempted
from the reporting and disclosure requirement pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

xEEEERLT

A=+t—BLFE AEEFER
B R A R A E R EREEIERY
ZERBABURBZRITHER
JEERAE-

BEAEEREIERFTLZE
BR&HS 82T -_NER-F
=+ -A=+t—BHLEFEEXE
HREZRENR RN B R R R
ETHEEERE  HEBERE R
HEERBARE -

BEASEREEFEZRAT L 2M
EWE BHE T _NER-_T_=
E+-fB=+—BLFEXREERA
FEREHNRRMBARRESE T
R o ZEREAAREERBLE=
FREZEURB ZBTTERTE
B

HE-ZT-_NFR=-ZTE-=F+=
A=+—BLEFE AEEMHEFE
BREAREHHNERBEES THE
FRERAMTE M MIRT - HERE D
XEBREEMELARSE - XZE
o KR AL E S KR 2 BT
MEREBEAE-

FR-EFERBANEBREFBE
;oo BRF S BB VIRRITIIBF R
FHE - WARE £ AR RIS 14A.90 1§
R RETHRRBERE

_BFEFR 301



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Zli“ AN
N /=

B 75 R R MY 5

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(G) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

302

(ii)

(iii)

Landsea Green Management Limited

Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensations which
comprises the following categories:

Short term employee benefits

Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

Restricted share award

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Apart from the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions disclosed in the section
headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Directors’ Report, all
the other related party transactions did not fall under
the scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2024

REIEB BT

BB E
PR 1) 14 P £ 22 R

4 BEBEERRRS &)

(G) BMAEXZ (&)
(i) EERH - Hfkas REE KK

(&)

EBERINERLEREATER

ZEEEE ASMHIE
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2,801 7,215
3K 155 172
1,181 1,460
4,137 8,847

(iii) FEIBIEX S H LR A8 EH
i3
REERWMET BEIHRIFER
BRI —HERNEEIIR
SEBER SN B H M@
ARSI ER LA ZE14A
EETAEXZ IS HEBER
SIMEE  EmAEBT EMRAE
VUAEIE THEMEBER - A5 E
SRR EHEBERRTE ©



42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
GUARANTEE

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities

The Group cooperated with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgaged loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and provided
guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligation of repayments. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon earlier of the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate and the satisfaction of relevant mortgaged loan.
In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is not significant.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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42 HAEE

ER
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

ETERZRIBRE

for certain purchasers (a) REER@)

573,677 726,405

@) AEEEZREBMEEEIE REMEERRHR
BEFREYRZEERCERRERHIER -F
BERENEREIERE R L ERZBER (A
REERE)KARTRG -ARREERA ¥
BEREBAZAABELTEK -
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43 COMMITMENTS 43
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group — As lessee

The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles

under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within

six months to five years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the

terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group — As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one
to twenty years, and with an option to renew the lease
terms at the expiry date or at the date as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective tenants. The terms
of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —F R
Later than one year but no later —FRETBEBRF
than five years

304 Landsea Green Management Limited Annual Report 2024

I

(A)

RedHERH

rEE — EREBA
AEBRBENAIBHLEHEERET
WMAE - RERE - BERAEAE
hFERER - HERTATRGR - HE
R R BEEN - B - HEKRKA
EMER -

AEERZSHERRAERREE K
RHMMEEEEER -

FEE — ERHBEA

AEBERBEERERFHBEEKRE N
ME - HANF—E_ 1+ AEER
JEm A R AR EEEESERBE
REEM - HEHRK—RAEBRP A
FREZ LRBEERBRITTRE BHAEME

S
& e

RFEAH  AKREANUTRBFFTA
ZARREAR AR -

2024 2023
—E-mF i ——
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®ET T

1,381 12,937
4 4,776
1,385 17,713




43 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(B) DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had the following
development expenditure commitments:

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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43 RIE (B
(B) BIE:x HAIE

R-ZEBE-_NE+-A=+—H K&E

2R HAENT
2024 2023
—EEF —E_=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Contracted but not provided for: BRI B R B

— Development expenditure — A8 22,589 221,060

— Purchase of freehold land — BEKAE#ELH 542,500 5,238,703
565,089 5,459,763
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44

306

FEHNBAF
R-ZTE-WE+—_A=+—H8 KAE@ETE
MEBAREIMT - BRBEHBEIN  ZE
ARRIMRAEHAEBRERZREN S BRA
B TS mERERNL RSN AEEF
EMRERE IR IS EMERNEZS
NAMEBEEME -

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44
The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the
voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business.

Place of

incorporation/

establishment Registered capital/
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~issued share capital

AL/ HRx/
B4R HYREESY EERRER £
(athay Holdings Limited (0) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 2 shares of HK$1 each
BRSEERAR) (2 EREAAR 2R BRIET
China Information Industry Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 2 shares of HK$1 each
hEEEEXARAAD) (2 EREAAR 2R BRIET
Green Future Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 1 share of HK$1
FERRERAB LA (2 EREAAR 1R 8R1ET
Green Homeland Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each
HEFEARAAD) (2 EREAAR 1R 8R1ET
Green Theme Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each

B EREAAR 1R k1AL
New Phenomenon Technology Limited (b) British Virgin Islands Limited liabilty company 1 share of US$1

(the “BVI")
AB4RARES EREEAH 1 BR1%T
([XBEERHE)

Easy Shine Global Limited (b) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 1 share of HK$1 each
RAFRERAR D) & EREAAR 1R 8R1ET
Green Era Limited (o) BV Limited fiabiity company 1 share of USS1

ZB4ARES EREMAT 18Rz
Power sky enterprises Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 1 share of HK$1 each
RREEERARD) & EREAAR 1R 8R1ET
Prosperous eagle Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 1 share of HK$1 each
EZERAA(D) B BREfAR 18R BR1ET
Landsky Investment Holdings Limited (0) Hong Kong Limited liabiity company 1 share of HK$1 each
PRREBRERAR D) & EREMAT 1R 8R1ET
Shanghai Landsea Investment Management Mainland China Limited liiity company ~ US$5,000,000

Limited**

AR AERERAR REM ERERRA 5000000£TC

Landsea Green Management Limited

Annual Report 2024

Ownership interests held
by the Group
As at 31 December

Directly owned or
indirectly owned

Principal activities

RT=A=t-R4%E  ERER
frEgagRs IEEEE IEEH
2024 2023
ZBI@E CROCF
% %
100 100 Direct Investment holding
BH REER
100 100 Inalrect Investment holding
% REER
100 100 Direct Investment holding
BH REER
100 100 Direct Investment holding
BH REER
100 100 Direct Investment holding
BH REER
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B% REnRK
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B RERR
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B RERR
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B RERR
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B RERR
100 100 Direct Investment holding
B RERR
- 100 Indirect Investment holding
% REER



44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of entity

KR4

Shanghai Langming Property development Limited**
LEBERHEREERAR

Beihai Langyue Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
TARELE ERARERAA

Nanjing Xubohui Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd*
BRIEBRLEERARAD"

Nanjing Landsea Investment Management Limited™
BRnRAERERAA

Nanjing Langtong Commercial Real Estate
Operation and Management Co., Ltd.*
BRI AR HEREERARAR"

Xi'an Jiapeng Real Estate Development
Co, Ltd*
EZEREEREERAR

Nanjing Langming Properties Group Limited™
ARSI EEERRAR

Nanjing Xinzhousheng Investment Management
Co,, Ltd*
BRENERAEEARAD"

Znhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
higlE (R2)EXARAT"

Tianjin Langyue Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd*
REEEHERSARAD

Ningbo Landsea Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
ERHO S ERNARAT

Chengdu Deshang Rongda Real Estate
Co, Ltd*(c)
RSERREREARAT

Chengdu Landsea Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
RBMHOFEREARRAR"

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
AL/
HIREEHY

Mainland China
ERH

Mainland China
HE R
Mainland China
hERY

Mainland China
HEM

Mainland China
HER
Mainland China
hEN

Mainland China
HEmH

Mainland China
HEM

Mainland China
HEM

Mainland China
HER
Mainland China
HE R
Mainland China
hERY
Mainland China

REM

Kind of legal entity

EERREA

Limited liability company
ERERDA

Limited liability company
BRERRA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company

EREMAT
Limited liability company
ERERDA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRERRA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
ERERAT

Limited liability company
ERERRA
Limited liability company
BRERRA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company

ERERAT

44

Registered capital/
issued share capital
iRE/
BIRA

RMB50,000,000
AR 5000000070

RMB10,000,000

AR 1000000070
RMB100,000,000
AR 100,00000070

RVB200,000,000
ARH200000 0007

RMB106,116,346
AR 106,116,346 7
RMB20,000,000
AR 52000000070

RMB?2,000,000,000
AR 2,0000000007

RMB350,000,000
AR¥ 350,000,007

RMIB100,000,000
ARE100000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR %50,00000070
RMB10,000,000

AR 1000000070
RMB25,000,000
AR 2500000070
RMB200,000,000

AR 200,00000070

&8
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TENB QT

Ownership interests held
by the Group
As at 31 December

RTZB=t-B4%E

fsRaRESR
2024 2023
—ECmE 3=
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
60 60
100 100
100 100
100 100
75 75
100 100
- 100
60 60
100 100
SFREBEBBERANT

(%)

Directly owned or

indirectly owned  Principal activities

EREA

IHERA IRER

Indirect Property development

5 EHERY

Inalrect Investment holding

M RARK

Indlrect Investment holding

i REER

Indlrect Investment holding

i REER

Indirect Property development

5 EHERY

Indirect Property development

M RHERE

Indlrect Investment holding

M RARK

Indlrect Investment holding

i REER

Indirect Property development

7 RHERE

Indirect Property development

5 EHERY

Inalrect Investment holding

M RARK

Indirect Property development

7 RHERE

Indlrect Investment holding

R RERR
“EMEFEFR 307
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of entity

RRAH

Suzhou Langkun Property Limited™*
FMABEXARAR

Suzhou Langming Management Consulting
Co., Ltd*
FMSERRARRAR

Chongaing Langhua Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.*(d)
ERHERBERYARAT ()

Chengdu Langming Property Limited**
RBHABRRRAT"

Suzhou Langrui Management Consutting
Co., Ltd*
AN EREARRAR

Suzhou Langxu Management Consulting
Co., Ltd*
FMARERFARRAR

Bejing Landsea Investment Management
Limited*
IRINRAERARAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
AL/
HIREEHY

Mainland China
HER

Mainland China
HE R
Mainland China
hERY

Mainland China
HER

Mainland China
HE R
Mainland China
HE R
Mainland China

hER

Hangzhou Pujun Enterprise Management Consulting Mainland China

Co., Ltd.*
gL ERERERAR

Nanjing Langaing Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
BRMEERERAR"

Chengdu Langsong Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
ARt X ERANERAR

Suzhou Langyou Industrial Co., Ltd.
EMARERARAD

Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment Management
Co, Ltd.*
BRERERAEEARAD"

308

hEME

Mainland China
HER

Mainland China
HER

Mainland China
HEm

Mainland China

hER

Landsea Green Management Limited

Kind of legal entity

EERBREA

Limited liability company
EREMAAT

Limited liability company
BRELAR
Limited liabilty company
BREERA

Limited liability company
ERERAT

Limited liability company
EREMAAT

Limited liabiliy company

Limited liabiliy company
BREERA
Limited liability company
BRAEAA

Limited liabiliy company
EREMAAT

Limited liabiliy company
BRERRA

Limited liabiliy company
BRERRA

Limited liabiliy company

BRELAR

44

Registered capital/
issued share capital
iRA/
BIRA

RMB100,000,000
AR%100,00000070

RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070
RMB50,000,000
AR %50,00000070

RMB,000,000
AR 80000007

RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070
RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070
RMB100,000,000
AR #100,00000070
RMBS5,000,000
AR %5,0000007

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7

RMB5,000,000
AR H5,00000070

RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070

RMBS,000,000

AR 800000070

Annual Report 2024

FEMB AT &)

Ownership interests held
by the Group
As at 31 December

RTZR=t-BA%E

frisaRERR
2004 2023
ZECmE —EocF
% %
- 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
- 100
100 100

Directly owned or
indirectly owned
BRER
SEEER

Indirect
3

Indirect
M
Indirect
&

Indirect

i

Indirect

Indirect
i
Inairect
5

Indirect
A%

Indirect
i

Indirect

i
Indirect

i

Principal activities

IEER

Property development
FHERE

Investment holding
RERR

Property development
FHERS

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding
RELR
Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
RELR

Property development
FHERE

Investment holding
RERR

Property development

FHERE
Investment holding

RARE



Name of entity

KR4

Chengau Langduo Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd* (c)
BARECXEREAERAA ()
Shanghai Langxian Enterprise Management
Consutting Co., Ltd.*
LEBAERERENERAA
Shanghai Langxu Management Consulting
Co, Ltd*
LERELRERERERAA

Nanjing Liangshu Building Materials Co., Lid.*
BRRER R HARAA

(Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Ltd.
BARRREERAA

Hangzhou Langning Investment Co., Lid.
WNAEREBRAT

Landsea Holaings Corporation

Landsea Equity LLC

Landsea Homes Corporation (g)

1.5-0C Portola LLG (g)

L.S-SF Jordan Ranch LLC (g)

SFVale LLC (@)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
AL/
HYREELY

Mainland China
REN
Mainland China
hERY
Mainland China
HER

Mainland China
ER

Mainland China
PEIR

Mainland China
PEIRH

Us
x4

Us
x4

Us
%A
Us
XA
Us
x5

Us
XA

44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Kind of legal entity

EERREA

Limited liability company
BRELAR
Limited liability company
BREEAA
Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
ERERAT
Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
ERERRE

44

Registered capital/
issued share capital
R/
BfTRA

RMB30,000,000
AR 3000000070
RMB30,000,000
AR 3000000070
RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070

RMB10,000,000
AR 1000000070

RMB30,000,000
AR 3000000070

RMB950,000
AE#9500007T

US$327,272,149
RTAMNOET

US$51,877 426
51877426 %

US$42,110,794
2107UET
US$165,497,892
165,497,802 7T
US$19,900870
19.900870%TC

15$9,000,000
9,000,000% 70

&8
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TENB QT

Ownership interests held
by the Group
As at 31 December

RtZA=t-RA%EE

fiAEERER
2004 2023
ZE-mE —E-cF
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 50
100 100
100 100
100 100
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
5 5
HBEERERAD

(%)

Directly owned or

indirectly owned  Principal activities

ERRA

SEEER E:3 3

Inalrect Investment holding

& RERR

Indlrect Investment holding

7 REnRK

Indirect Investment holding

% RELR

Inalrect Investment holding

% RELRK

Inalrect Investment holding

Rk RELRK

Inalrect Investment holding

Rk RELRK

Inalrect Investment holding

Rk RELR

Inalrect Investment holding

Rk RELR

Inalrect Real estate development
and sales US

& EHERERHAE - 8

Indirect Real estate development
and sales US

7 FHERERHE - £

Indlrect Real estate development
and sales US

Rk BHEREREE - 28

Inalrect Investment holding

% RELRK

"R FFR 309
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

310

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
AL/
HYREELY

Name of entity

RRAH

LS-LASmiLLC (g) Us

Pinnacle West Homes Holding LLC (g) US
X8

Pinnacle West Homes and Development LLG ()~ US

X8
Garrett Walker Homes, LLC (g) US
XA

Landsea Homes of Florida LLC (¢) US
X8

Landsea Homes of Texas LLC (g) US
X8

HFB ) Us
18

W N LLC Us
%8

Epic China Limited BVI
EREBARES

Landsea Green Management Limited

Kind of legal entity

EERBREA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BREFRA

Limited liabiliy company
BRERRA

Limited liability company
EREMAT

Limited liabiliy company
ERERAT

Limited liability company

ERERAT
Limited liability company
BEREfAT

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRERRA

44

Registered capital/
issued share capital
kA
BiRA

US540,687,727
40687727 % T

US$175,736,379
175,736 3795 7T

US962,117,604
64,117 6UETT

US$55,449.934
55449934 T

US8568,633
568,633 0

36262,583 495
262,583,495 7T
US855,111,436
55,111 436 %7

US$50,000,000
50,000,000%7

Annual Report 2024

TEHNB QA

Ownership interests held
by the Group
As at 31 December

RTZR=t-BA%E

fERERER
2004 2023
ZECmE —EocF
% %
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
- 54,05
100 100
100 100

(%)

Directly owned or
indirectly owned
BRER
SEEER

Indirect
i

Indirect

i

Indirect

i
Indirect
3

Indlrect

i

Indlrect

i

Indlrect

Indirect

i

Principal activities

IEER

Real estate development
and sales US

FHERSREE - X8

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Real estate development
and sales US

FHERRRHE - X8

Investment holding

RARE

Investment holding

RARE

Real estate development
and sales US
BHEREREE - 28

Real estate development
and sales US

FHERSREE - X8

Investment holding

REZR



44

45

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Limited liability company registered in Mainland China
English translations are for identification purpose only
(@) The Group is the only managing member of the Company.

(b) The senior notes (note 31) are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a
senior basis by these subsidiaries (each and collectively).

(c) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for bank borrowings of
the Group.

(d) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for loans from other
financial institutions.

(e) On 8 March 2024, the Group disposed of Landsea Homes Corporation,
by reducing equity interest from 54.80% to 47.03% at a total proceeds of
RMB230,725,000 and retained LHI as an associate.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(i) The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2024 were approximately RMB59,222,000 (20283:
RMB2,0883,311,000), of which approximately were
RMB67,786,000 (2023: RMB59,657,000) attributed as
below for Nanjing Langtong.

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has a material non-
controlling interest are set out below:

Percentage of equity interest held
by non-controlling interest:
Nanjing Langtong G

44

45

Notes to the consolidated
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EEW%QT%

R BEAMEMNEREERR

X EEEHES

AEBMRZARE—ERRE -

BEER (K1) AENE AR (AR &*LR)
BEUREGHERERER -

ZH B A R MR EAERARERITHERNER -

ZIMBARMEECER  UERIRE Lt &%
BEVER -

R-ZZT-mM&E=A/\B ' A& E X £ Landsea
Homes Corporation * #% i # #£ 54.80% /& 2 &
47.03% ' FT1S 3RIB 4258 B A R # 230,725,000 7T *
AR R LHI{E BBt & A &

EBEAFEHMEZMNERR
MBERNRBE

U

RZZZ_WF+=A=+—8 - k=4
MRS R EEH B AR 59,222,000 7T (=

— =44 : AR%2083311,0007C) °
H R BB B (S H) A R 67,786,000

T(ZEZ=%F: AR¥59,657,0007T)
e

BAEEBAFEHNERRENASEH B A
BIFIEERSIMT

RGBSR IR A D L

2024 2023
—B-opmE —F==

40% 40%

MEGROERERAE _—S_NFFER 31
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

Current
Assets
Liabilities

Total current net (liabilities)/assets

Non-current
Assets
Liabilities

Total non-current net assets/(liabilities)

Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries of
Nanjing Langtong

Net liabilities attributable to the
shareholders of Nanjing Langtong

Accumulated non-controlling interest

Landsea Green Management Limited

45 REAFEHMEZME QT

NRERBE @)
BERRREE
2024 2023
—EE —EC=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
ik
BE 800,960 800,673
afE (1,170,962) (711,480)
mE (AR EEFELR (370,002) 89,193
I E
BE 7,526 654
afE - (432,000)
RBEE (AR FELE 7,526 (431,346)
9 7 BA 8 B B A B 9 JE 2 Il (A
RERERBABERENAEFE
(362,476) (342,153)
RETFEIT | S (67,786) (59,657)
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 45
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
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CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Total profit

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributed to the non-controlling interests
of subsidiary of Nanjing Langtong

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Distribution to non-controlling interests

EBEARFEFEEDZNEL R

MRERBE @)
EahkEt2ERBZRFE
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
WA 287 819
B TS B B0 A1) (27,203) (177,800)
g8 & R 6,880 (326)
A EAEEE (20,323) (178,126)
R R R B B A B R A 25
EEFEEmKR A%
FEEIAENRELEE (20,323) (178,126)
SRS R G 2 W S AR
(8,129) (71,251)

) JE 42 | 1 A 2 0 Ik

BEEegRBRAT

_B_MEFEFR 313



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

mEMBHRRMNEE

45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash generated (used in)/from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

314 Landsea Green Management Limited

45 REAFEHMEZME QT

NRERBE @)
HERERBE
2024 2023
—EomF —EI=RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
LEES) (FTA), /T3 IRE F58
(1,565) 20,692
WEEBFAREFHAE - -
MEFESIE (A BREF8
1,551 (21,106)
RekReEEWRLDFHE (14) (414)
R—A—BMBEERREEEY 14 428
SNEE R BB EIR S KRS
ZEYNTE - -
R+-—A=+—HHER& X
REFEY - 14
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 45 EEXRFEFIUEBEMNBELAAN

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- MBERRE @

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(i) The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December R-TE =+ _-_A=+—HWEIEEH
2023 were approximately RMB2,083,311,000, of which M= A ARM2083,311,0007T + H A
approximately were RMB2,105,183,000 attributed as Landsea Homes F& {i7 49 A R #2,105,183,000
below for Landsea Homes. JCAATE °
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has a material non- HEEAEEF N AEEHE R A
controlling interest are set out below: BEYAT -

2023
—F-=
Percentage of equity interest held by IS RESTSRET DL
non-controlling interest:
Landsea Homes Landsea Homes 45.95%

BEEegRBRAT B _FEFER 315
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

45 EERFEHIMHERZHBLATIN
BRERNBE @

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL HBERREREE
POSITION
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARETIT
Current Vi)
Assets BE 9,629,328
Liabilities afE (1,346,823)
Total current net assets REFEERE 8,282,505
Non-current JERED
Assets BE 790,970
Liabilities afE (4,237,131)
Total non-current net liabilities EREFEELE (3,446,161)
Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries Landsea Homes [ff & A 7 &9
of Landsea Homes FEFE I 14 2 (251,252
Net assets attributable to the shareholders 5% B 7Y Landsea Homes
of Landsea Homes RERFEE 4,585,092
Accumulated non-controlling interest 2T I Hl M 2,105,183
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 45 EEXRFEFIUEBEMNBELAAN

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BBEREE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR ERbHEMZAWEREE

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARET T
Revenue WA 8,537,157
Profit before income tax B FT 15 56 A1 A1) 285,817
Income tax expense St & R (83,930)
Total profit aIbERGE 201,887
Total comprehensive income for the year attributed Landsea Homes
to the non-controlling interests of subsidiary of B8 A B FEAE M dE
Landsea Homes EhFEE2EREBE 24,091
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EKELE 177,796
Total comprehensive income attributable to non- JEFE MRS (R 2 E R S a5
controlling interest 83,935
Distribution to non-controlling interests ) JE 128 1) 1 4 25 0 Ik -
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45 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

318

Net cash generated from operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Landsea Green Management Limited

HEERRE @

REREXRBE

REEDMBIREIFE
BRERSMAREIFE
MEETHAARSFHE

R kReEEWM D FE
R—A—HNREMNASEEY

SMNEEXEBHR S RIS FEYHNTE

RT-A=t—BANReRBELZEY
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45 REAFEHMEZME QT

2023
—E=F
RMB’000
ARETIT

191,685

(62,340)

(167,702)

(28,357)

861,060

14,069

846,772



46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
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46 AABMBRRARRABEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE PINNEST I B 7
COMPANY
2024 2023
—ENEF =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z™E 209,814 637,899
Right-of-use assets CREEE - 451
209,814 638,350
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At Uk ~ TN R LIRS 2,718,113 3,457,090
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 1,242 1,781
2,719,355 3,458,871
Total assets EEHE 2,929,169 4,097,221
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H fib fE 53X 4,148,985 4,408,331
Borrowings & 239,887 909,620
Lease liabilities HEEE - 463
4,388,872 5,318,414
Non-current liability kRBER
Borrowings EEN 657,468 =
Total liabilities EEHAE 5,046,340 5,318,414
Equity =
Share capital (LN 38,702 38,702
Reserves (a) @& @) (2,155,873) (1,259,895)
Total deficit B At 28 KR (2,117,171) (1,221,193)
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 2,929,169 4,097,221
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved RARMBRARRERZZE_RAF = A

by the board of directors on 28 March 2025 and was signed on
its behalf.

Zhou Kunpeng
AR NS
Director

EF

“t+HN\BREERME TARAATALRE

BE o
Li Huanbin
TR
Director
EE
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46 AQA BB BRRRRFHEEE &)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

320

At1 January 2023

Exchange difference arising from
translation of foreign operation
Loss for the year

A\=Z-=%-f-A

AREBIRBELNELZS
ERBR

Total comprehensive loss for the year £ 2 Ff B4

Shares held for restricted share award
scheme
Employee share based compensation

Subtotal of transaction with
shareholders

At 31 December 2023

At1 January 2024

Exchange difference arising from
translation of foreign operation
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Shares held for restricted share award
scheme

Employee share based compensation

QOthers

Subtotal of transaction with
shareholders

At 31 December 2024

AR B L85 2
RANRD
[ERRERH

HARFRS Nt

R=BZ=£+ZA=+-A

RZZ-mF-F-A

BTN ERELNELER

ERBR

FEEERAR

SRHIER (2B 8
HENRD
ERESH

Eft

BRRRA N

RZE-mE+=A=1-A

Landsea Green Management Limited

(A) AREFEEEE

Share
based  Employee Capital

Share  Translation compensation share  redemption  Contributed Other  Accumulated

premium reserve reserve trust reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RESH  ESRH  E4RE

RHEE  FERE 1 & s E&BR  HAfpRE  ZiEE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT  AR¥TT ARETT ARETR AR¥TT ARETR ARBTR ARETRT ARETR
24,366 28,453 26,079 (114,780) 23,185 484415 19914 (1626867) (1,135,235
- (16,491) - - - - - - (16,491)
- - - - - - - (116,237) (116,287)
- (16491) - - - - - (116,237) (132,728)
- - - (209) - - - - (209)
- - 8,217 - - - - - 8,217
- - 8211 (209) - - - - 8,068
24,366 11,962 34,356 (114,989 23,185 484415 19914 (1743104 (1,259,89)
24,366 11,962 34,356 (114,989) 23,185 484,415 19914 (1,743,104 (1,259,895
- (26,206) - - - - - - (26,206)
- - - - - - - (879,361) (879,361)
- 26,206) - - - - - (879,361) (905,567)
- - - 1,440 - - - - 1,440
- - (11,691) 113,428 - (93,588) - - 8,149
- - (22,665) - - - 22,665 - -
- - (34,356) 114,868 - (93,588) 22,665 - 9,589
24,366 (14,244) - (121) 23,185 390,827 425719 (2,622,465  (2,155873)
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47 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 26 March
2025, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the special general
meeting to be convened and held, the Company proposes to
dispose of up to 6,135,151 shares of common shares of LHI
(“LSEA Stock”), representing approximately 16.9% of the issued
and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as at 26 March 2025,
during the period of 12 months from the date of approval by the
shareholders. Upon completion of such disposal, the Company
will cease to hold any shares of LSEA Stock.

Up to approval date of these consolidated financial statements,
another RMB432,000,000 of the Group’s bank borrowing,
bearing interest at 6.40% per annum and secured by properties
under development, was overdue and unpaid, along with
overdue interest amount of RMB35,879,000.

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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47 HEHESE &)

HAARATN —_E-_RE=A=-+/x8 7%
MAGEMER  TRENGEHRRBITHOR
RERAE LHER  NAREZRRES
AE B EREET 128 B BAE A & 5 % 6,135,151
BELHIE @A ([LSEAR D)) - (AR =T =A
F=AZ+"BEBTREITEINLSEARS
#169% - TN EBEELE%R  NARFTHE
5 (T LSEARK S °

HEZERAVWBERRIER  AEERE
A R # 432,000,000 7T HY 3R 17 & 3% (32 F FI| R
6.40% 5T 8 - 3 LA 3R B i E fE K R) 8 2R
KT - mEAFIE 258 A AR 35,879,000 7T ©
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Financial summary

R 75 1 22

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+t—HLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —E-=F —ET-— —E-—F —T_FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT AREFTT ARBTT AR®ETT
Results ]
Revenue* Uz A 1,725,922 9,039,797 14,018,521 8,076,070 8,991,903
(Loss)/profit before income tax* & P18 %1 Al
(B18) FIB* (1,532,332)  (823,318) (1,746,424)  (506,910) 521,739
Income tax expense* Fristi &R 18,863 (40,001) (707,328) (189,281) (489,148)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(HER)/FE  (1,513,469) (863,319) (2,453,752) (696,191) 32,591
Attributable to: R
The shareholder of the Company  ZANA 5] J& 3R (1,509,333) (860,793) (2,588,642) (777,504) (100,572)
Non-controlling interest JEFEHI R 2 (4,136) (2,526) 134,890 81,313 133,163
(1,513,469) (863,319) (2,453,752) (696,191) 32,591
Including continuing and discontinued operations PEFEREEBRERIEES
At 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —E-=F —ET—-— —E-—F —EFE-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT ARBTIT AR®TT
Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets BERE 9,323,292 19,353,585 19,986,792 27,883,353 24,700,795
Total liabilities BEERE (10,882,478) (17,281,301) (17,293,434) (22,302,091) (19,205,656)
(1,5659,186) 2,072,284 2,693,358 5,581,262 5,495,139
Attributable to: B
The shareholder of the Company  ZANA & & R (1,499,964) (11,027) 716,860 3,924,507 4,983,486
Non-controlling interest JEFEHI R 2 (59,222) 2,083,311 1,976,498 1,656,755 511,653
(1,559,186) 2,072,284 2,693,358 5,681,262 5,495,139
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Particulars of Properties

YESEA

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL PURPOSE
FELHERARHNBREENE

Attributable
interest of

the Group
AEBEGESR

Nature of
Location property
i Bh YIEMRE

Lease term

B FH

Nanjing Huafei Apartment, Apartment 100% Medium-term lease

The Eastern side of Huadian Road and

the Northern side of East Huadian Road,

Qixia District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

a3

LERE

Bam

EEE

EFTEAR  EBREAIL
ARERLE

5
et

DETAILS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Location

1 B

Shanghai New Mansion,

No. 25, Alley 770, Qingxi Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai,

The PRC

H

EEgm

FIRE 7707 2558
AT ReIE B

Chengdu Xihua Tianxi,

No. 288, Zilin Road, Tianfu New District,
Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province,

The PRC

H

PEPIIES

&R T

R [E B 288 5%

PR ARERZE R ERIE B

Nature of
property
MIEME

Residence

Shop/
parking space

g

Attributable
interest of
the Group

AEEELER

100%

100%

60%

60%

BEEegRBRAT

100%

GFA

(Ten thousand
sg.m.)
EEmE
(BE7HXK)

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.4

— =z =
P —

0O F F &

R EARE 4

Construction
progress

BRER

Completed

BRI

Completed

BRI
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Particulars of Properties

EE

==
=]

DETAILS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

TERBPEHEFS

Location

3 B

Nanjing Landsea Green Center,

Junction of Xuanwu Avenue
and Jiangwangmiao Street,

Xuanwu District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

A

TERE

R

ZH @

ZHRAREMBEIBERRE

MR ET LIEE

Chongaing Xiyue Mansion
No.55, Yuegang North Road,
Yubei District,

Nature of
property
MEME

Office

@,
FRr
)

Residence/
parking space

Chongaqing,

The PRC

H Y (ERecyg=-Kivi
EEM

ek &

138 78 3k B% 55 5%

EEERMITIEA
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Attributable
interest of
the Group

REMEGER

60%

60%

100%

100%
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GFA

(Ten thousand
sg.m.)
BEEEE
(BF¥FHK)

7.2

7.2

6.3

6.3

Construction
progress
BREE

Suspension

Under
construction

e

Expected
completion
date
st I A

2026
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